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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIR AR A

Corporate Information

REEHR
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Xu Chiming (appointed on October 18, 2018)
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Ouyang Jiejiao (appointed on August 25, 2018, resigned on October 18, 2018)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Zhou Meilin (appointed as chairman on October 18, 2018)

Xu Jinwen (appointed on August 25, 2018)

Zhou Rui (appointed on October 18, 2018)

Duh Jia-Bin (appointed on August 25, 2018 and resigned on October 18, 2018)

Zhao Yuhong (resigned on August 25, 2018)
Li Quan (resigned on August 25, 2018)

NOMINATION AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Xu Chiming (appointed as chairman on October 18, 2018)
Zhou Meilin (appointed on October 18, 2018)

Xu Jinwen (appointed on August 25, 2018)
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
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Corporate Information
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Chairman’s Statement

TEHES

Chairman’s

Statement
TEHEE

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present the Group's annual results

for the year ended December 31, 2018.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Group's total revenue for the year ended December 31, 2018 was amounted to
HK$433.2 million (FY2017: HK$516.6 million), which was due to unclear global trade

prospects and the weak performance of the global economy.
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Gross profit totalled HK$28.9 million (FY2017: HK$103.5 million). Gross profit margin
decreased to 6.67% in the year ended December 31, 2018, the reasons are (i) under the
impact of challenging global economic environment due to unclear global trade prospects
and the weak performance of the global economy, the revenue of the Group declined
while the unit cost of goods increased that lead the gross profit margin decreased
significantly compare with FY2017; and (i) the provision of write-down of inventories
included in cost of goods sold amounted HK$34.6 million (FY2017: reversal of write-down

of inventories amounted HK$3.3 millions).

The Group continued to execute stringent cost controls and streamline organisational
structure and operational procedures. Total operating expenses of the Group, including
research costs, distribution and selling expenses and general administrative expenses,
amounted to HK$179.1 million (FY2017 (restated): HK$181.0 million). The decrement
was mainly due to the staffs cost decreased HK$2 million included in distribution and

selling expenses and general administration expenses compared with FY2017.

Other gains and losses during the year were recorded as losses of HK$ I 1.5 million (FY2017:
loss of HK$3.9 million), the increment was mainly due to the loss on disposal of property,

plant and equipment amounting HK$5.0 million (FY2017 (restated): HK$0.4 million).

Impairment of goodwill was HK$ 33.8 million (FY2017: Nil). Impairment loss on financial
assets, net of reversal was recorded as HK$ 10.3 million (FY2017: HK$ 9.2 million) due to

credit loss of trade receivables.

Tax expenses of HK$12.3 million was recorded due to underprovision of overseas tax

expenses in prior year (FY2017: Nil) (details refer to note 12 of this report).

Loss for the year ended December 31, 2018 was HK$215.6 million (FY2017: loss of
HK$85.7 million).
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Chairman’s Statement

EFREHRES

OUTLOOK

Despite the uncertain global economy and the trade war between the China and United
States of America will continue to have a considerable impact on the growth of the
Group, nonetheless there are still opportunities and the Group remains confident in its

strategy in 2019.

The group continues to develop China market maximizing customer coverage from offline
and online channels, with customized product development focus on Sports Fitness Health
and Smart Leamning products. The group will form strategic partnerships with the leading
institutes in China in the children learning and healthcare areas to develop the customized

products and promotion through the joint effort.

OREGON SCIENTIFIC (“OS”)

A series of new SLIT products will be launched and this category will continue to be the
main product category of the OS business. The upcoming products will also come with
even stronger and interactive AR technology to enhance the leaming experience. Strategic
partnership will be formed with Intellectual Property Publishing House which is under the
National Intellectual Property Administration; PRC with focus on promoting the smart

learning products into the targeted channels includes school with joint promotion effort.

Regarding the smart home category, we will continue to streamline the number of
SKU and concentrated on the key ranges with good offerings. An experienced product
marketing team has also been established to strengthen the launch of new products,
increase existing customer participation, and explore more opportunities in existing

markets and new markets.

In terms of geographic expansion, China is the key focus while we will aim at steady
growth in the overseas business. We project steady growth as overall and remarkable
growth in China. OS will plan to launch the healthcare products in China partnering with
the health institutes.
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From the perspective of channel development, as we have engaged several strong
distribution partners in Europe in 2018, we will start to get the result in 2019 in terms of
point of sales expansion in the retail network. At the same time, e-commerce will stay as

the channel gets most resources and attention to increase business of B2C.

VALUE MANUFACTURING SERVICES (“VMS”)

Based on accumulative experiences and advantages through year's development, we are
entering into the era of smart health. Sports, Fitness and health continue to be the key
product category of the VMS business and the portion will be getting even bigger than in
2018.

Our VMS business and customers both focus on digital health products, including activity
tracking, blood glucose monitoring, heart rate monitoring, blood pressure monitoring etc.
All these products are related to the big data concept. As such, our customer and strategy
partners will work with us to analyze and utilize these data to develop products which

could suit better the consumers' need.

While we swiftly enter the digital health and smart lifestyle markets, we continue to
optimize and improve the existing products. We will outsource some of our low-
value products and the principle of no low margin or negative margin projects remains
unchanged. We would focus on the strategic VMS customers who can contribute good

scale and reasonable margin.

Besides working the existing customers and developing new ones, our focus includes
continuously improving the efficiency of product developments and manufacturing
operation. We continue to innovate with our VMS customers and achieve the largest
results at the lowest cost. As such, our customers would gain more resources to be

invested into new products and make us more competitive and grow together.
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Chairman’s Statement

EFREHRES

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | wish to express my gratitude to all shareholders
and business associates for the continuous support. Our deep appreciation also goes to
the management team and staff members for their hard work and dedication in the past

financial period.

Xu Chiming

Chairman

March 29, 2019
Hong Kong
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER A

Directors and Senior Management of the Group

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Xu Chiming

Chairman and Executive Director, the Chairman of Nomination and Corporate
Governance Committee, aged 59. Mr. Xu is an independent non-executive director of
Christine international holdings limited whose share are listed on main board in Hong
Kong with stock code 01210 since 31 August 2018. He then was re-designated as an
executive director of Christine international on |7 December 2018. Mr. Xu served as the
chief representative of China region of the Hong Kong Parkview Group Limited* (&7
BRERDFEHIE) from March 2004 to December 2017. He has also held the position
of a director (J2%) of Jiangsu Intemational Cultural Exchange Center* (JT &R BB 31k
ALY since August 2004, From June 1989 to September 2002, he had participated
in the establishment of the Shenzhen Foreign Investments Enterprise Association (Y1171
EIEE % E), which is an organization in China to provide comprehensive services
for foreign, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan enterprises in the Shenzhen Special Economic
Zone. From March 1995 to October 2000, he had served as a deputy secretary general
of China B-share Listed Company Directors Secretaries Association* (F1 BIBJ% =172 7]
EMEE ). Mr. Xu obtained a Master of Business Administration from the Hong Kong
Baptist University in November 2007.

Zhu Yongning

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer, aged 50. Mr. Zhu graduated from Fudan
University of Shanghai with a master degree in international finance, and is a senior
economist. He has over 25 years of working experience in the financial sector. Mr. Zhu
is an executive director of Christine International Holding Limited whose share are listed
on main board in Hong Kong with stock code 01210 since | November 2018. He then
was appointed as the chairman of the Board on |7 December, 2018. Form 2015, Mr.
Zhu served as the chairman of Jiangsu Nandasoft Technology Company Limited, whose
shares are listed on the GEM board of Hong Kong with stock code 08045. Mr. Zhu has
also served as the chairman of Guotai Junan Asset Management Co, Ltd. (1% B L& E
ERERM AR AT from 2006 up to present. Since 1990, Mr. Zhu served successively
as principal staff member of the international business department of China Construction
Bank in Jiangsu province, president of a sub-branch of China Investment Bank under its
Jiangsu branch, president of Hanzhong Road sub-branch of China Everbright Bank, Nanjing
BEIER

and investment advisor of Huaxia Securities Venture Capital Co,, Ltd. (EE

BERAR).
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIR AR A

Directors and Senior Management of the Group

rEEESKESREEE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Song Rongrong

Non-Executive Director, aged 41, Mr. Song is the Chief Financial Officer of Jiangsu Hongtu
and the Vice President of HISAP. Formerly, Mr. Song served as the regional general ledger
accountant and regional chief financial officer of HISAP. Mr. Song received a Bachelor
degree in accounting from the China University of Mining and Technology and Technology

and master degree in Business Administration from Nanjing University.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Zhou Meilin

Independent Non-Executive Director, the chairman of the Audit Committee, a member
of nomination and corporate governance committee and Remuneration Committee,
aged 52. Mr. Zhou is a Chinese practicing lawyer, Chinese certified public accountant
(Non-practicing), tax agent, and part-time teacher of Nanjing University of finance and

€conomics.

Mr. Zhou is an independent non-executive director of Christine international holdings
limited whose share are listed on main board in Hong Kong with stock code 01210 since
|7 December 2018. Form January 2016, Mr. Zhou joined Jiangsu Deqing law firm as
lawyer. Before that, Mr. Zhou worked for Nanjing Xuanwu Tax Bureau from July 1985 to
December 2015, took the different positions including tax administration, tax collection
and management, financial management, tax audit (From 1995 to 1996, Mr. Zhou worked
for Nanjing Shicheng Accounting (Tax) firm.). During the period in the tax bureau, Mr.
Zhou was employed as a part-time teacher in tax system, participated in the compilation
of provincial and municipal tax system risk platforms and inspection guidelines for many
times, and participated in dozens of enterprise bankruptcy, restructuring, restructuring and
merger and acquisition work. By virtue of his profound business skills, Mr. Zhou has won

the title of tax system business expert for many times.

Mr. Zhou has extensive experience in accounting, internal control, financial statement
analysis, tax planning and related laws; he is good at enterprise initial public offerings,
reorganization, merger and acquisition, bankruptcy, tax dispute’s settlement, tax risk’s
prevention and tax planning. Mr. Zhou holds a bachelor's degree from Nanjing Normal

University.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER A

Directors and Senior Management of the Group

Zhou Rui

Independent Non-Executive Director, the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
a member of the Audit Committee, aged 33. Mr. Zhou Rui is the vice president of China
Galaxy Securities from 2015 up to present, mainly responsible for business development
and providing investment, fund-raising consultant service to public and private company.
During August 2012 to February 2014, Mr. Zhou Rui worked in Beijing Hony Future
Investment Advisor Ltd as a senior manager, responsible for finding right investment
project, executing due diligence and investment and after investment management. During
August 2009 to August 2012, Mr. Zhou Rui served as supervisor of China International
Capital Corporation Limited, responsible for securities trading system'’s design and testing.

Mr. Zhou Rui holds master degree in Mathematics from Nanjing University.

Xu Jinwen

Independent Non-Executive Director and a member of the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee and the Audit Committee,
aged 53. Mr. Xu is the chairman, chief executive officer and executive Director of
Changjiang Securities International Financial Group Limited, and independent non-
executive Director of Shenzhen Zhongheng Hwafa Co., Ltd, the shares of which are
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (SZSE: 000020 and 200020). Mr. Xu served
as the deputy general manager of China Construction Bank Hubei Provincial Trust and
Investment Corporation (FEI#ZE%IR1T/#1L & E5EHRE A A]) from December 1990
to October 1995. He worked in Guotai Securities Limited Hubei Branch* (BIZR75 58
PR A RI#IL S A7) as the deputy general manager, and Guotai Junan Securities Limited
Jiangxi Branch* (BIZRE %Al 77 MR 3 B R A RIILEI 4 /2 A)) as the general manager from
October 1995 to November 2002. Mr. Xu worked as president in Golden Sun Securities
Limited* (EI2%#8%H B MR 7)) from November 2002 to April 2006, Mr. Xu served as
chairman in Changjiang BNP Paribas Peregrine Securities Co., Ltd. from April 2006 to
May 2007. Mr. Xu was the executive vice president and the secretary of the board of
Changjiang Securities Company Limited from May 2007 to March 2016. Mr. Xu has over
30 years of experience working in the financial industry, and he particularly worked in
the area of securities for more than 20 years. He is very familiar with China and oversea
financial markets and products, with extensive experience in the management of financial
institution and investment. Mr. Xu holds a doctorate degree in Management Science and

Engineering from Huazhong University of Science and Technology.

FEEESRSREEE

B

BUFRITES FHLRECETERERZE
SRE BVHEcBE—REZES - BAiikE
TBTEEIELERNERARGEY a8

TRERRAEBRALAIRERBERRR
Bt R _E-—_FN\AE_FE-RF
TARELRARETREBREAERARRR
KERY - AERBBBLZE B REM
BREERS  R-TTNFNAZE-T—_F
NAEETFERReRERLAREE A8
BHERHEFNERRT AT - Bk
ERARRARHERL S -

R
BUFNTESRTIMRES  REREEE
ARBEEUNEGZEENE 535 AL

RERIZEFEReREEARARESEE
ERTREH  YRATES  REFARL
MRARARIFEEZRHERA R (RZAE -
000020 2 200020) B JEHITEE — 5 © 1990
FNAZI9SFI0A  REEEPEERR
Tt ERRERRIRIBEIR 19955 10R
FNFIALBRETERESFGRA AN

A RFEHEE  BRELIFBRNERR
AL P EDABAEIE 20026 || AE 200654 A

EBIBE A BRA R © 2006 F 4 AZ2007
FSAERIBREEYESFERAALAE
ER2007FE5 AZWI6EIACRITIESRRK
ﬁﬁ’ﬂﬂﬁﬂ\ﬁﬁﬁwo@%$ﬁ$$
RITE=TRF  EFTE_THE  AHER
W%iﬂﬁ%ﬂémv%ﬁgémﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁ
BARELR REEBREEPRBAZER
RIZETRE LS -

Annual Report 2018 &} 15



Smart Learning & Immerswe Technology

nAb ecting Exploration with Fun
EEHE ssranss






IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIR AR A

Management . (J

Discussion and /\

Analysis
BEEENWR DN

L . ) : % i - -: | .
e der q ' P N s
) - b B, L - | L ' 4
: L Mg . - g f J
P TR re e Fi
= sl - .
ol ey, 3
J_I: » Ty’ . - _:3 . %
= o - W s F
4 . -
E: L e R e g L
- & . " Sptniry 4
e - - B L e
- ¥ g g il e “ o
i e C g iorey & e, R St Y s - -__ ¥
- z ", s - - Bt " g, Ty
B T, s N Y oy ol
. - . -.‘,-' - i i ; o o=
g S ol
_-' H: @ ._- L J
P Ly e e
18 Annual Report 2018 £



IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER A

Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2018, the overall weak global economy and the trade war affected consumers’ and
trade buyers' purchase momentum particularly in the consumer electronic business. The
company implemented a series of streamlining measures with aim to enhance operation
efficiency and lower business administration cost in the long term, there were several one-
off provisions which were made to achieve that, but impacted the performance in 2018.

Overall the company recorded decline in the sales revenue and increased net loss.

During the year, the management has put effort on cost control by lean manufacturing,
streamlining manpower and implementing business model change in overseas operations.
There were subsidiaries of the Company continued to suffer losses, the Group has
restructured the distribution operation model by distributors instead of operating by self-
own subsidiaries to expand retail point of sales network and accelerate cash inflow. The

Group also gave up the projects with lower margin or negative margin.

Even though 2018 was a challenging year, the company continued to put focus on
establishing the China business, which as result recorded 86.1 % growth in sales revenue
compared to that of 2017. We secured new distribution partners, opened e-commerce
platform and expanded retail point of sales network in the target channels by launching

customized products.

OREGON SCIENTIFIC (“OS”)

In 2018, sales revenue of OS business totaled HK$161.5 million (FY2017: HK$211.8
million), 23.7% decrease compared to last year, accounting for 37.3% of the Group's total
sales revenue. Connected Home (CoH) and Smart Learning & Immersive Technology

(SLIT) were the main product categories, accounting over 50.0% of OS sales.

In CoH, the Group's strategy was to continue bring in new products with new application
such as the stylish contemporary design of time and weather instruments and a series of
upgraded version on existing products with more affordable pricing, while to streamline

the number of SKU for more effective inventory management.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWmED M

In SLIT, the technology enablement of AR functions in this category continued to impress
the customers. The World First Open interactive smart globe became the iconic product
in most of the point of sales. The continuous content upgrade has been the unique key

selling benefits that appreciated by the market.

In terms of regional distribution, as we allocated more resources and formed several
strategic distribution partnerships in the key targeted channels in China, we achieved
86.1% increase of the sales revenue compared to that of in 2017. Europe was still the
largest market, accounting for 50.8% of total OS revenue, whilst the America increased to

21.1% and the Asia Pacific decreased to 28.1%.

We implemented the business model change in ltaly and Germany and secured strong
partnership with reputable distributors in the local market. This change enabled us to
leverage distribution partners’ point of sales network to enhance the reach to the market

at lower cost with faster cash inflow.

Value Manufacturing Services (“VMS”)

In 2018, the Group continued to strengthen its service to VMS customers and made
progress in customer retention, and some old customers increased the number of orders
and opened several new customers in the new market for VMS business such as China
and Israel. Still, due to the trendily weak performance of the global consumer electronics
industry and the higher tariff as a result of trade war did impact the purchase from the

customers in the 2nd half of the year.

The sales revenue of the Company’s VMS business in 2018 was HK$271.7 million (FY2017:
HK$304.8 million), which accounted for 62.7% of the Group's total revenue. In terms
of product categories, Sports, Health & Fitness is still the key, accounting for 53.8% of
the VMS sales revenue and followed by the Connected Home (22.0% of the VMS sales

revenue) and Makers' projects (24.2% of the VMS sales revenue).
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER A

Management Discussion and Analysis

Due to the steady growth of the smart health product and intelligent home control
products in global markets, the Company has gotten the new purchase orders from the
important brands. To maintain the leading role in technology and market competitiveness,
the VMS research & development team continuously establishes strategic partnership
with global innovative technology partner. Our Sports, Fitness & Health team has already
launched the co-operation with various strategic partners such as the co-developed
solution of Eink watch, PWTT Smart blood pressure monitor, heart rate variability

measurement.

WORKING CAPITAL

The inventory balance at December 31, 2018 was HK$74.8 million, decreased by 42.6%
compared to the HK$130.4 million at December 31, 2017. The inventory turmover days
decreased to 91 days (FY 2017: 104 days).

Trade receivables balances at December 31, 2018 was HK$36.6 million, decreased by
68.7% compared to the HK$ 1 7.1 million shown at December 31, 2017. Trade debtor’s
turnover days decreased to 64 days (FY2017: 80 days).

LIQUIDITY AND TREASURY MANAGEMENT

At December 31, 2018, bank balances and cash of the Group, including short term bank
deposits, were HK$22.3 million (December 31, 2017: HK$37.2 million).

During the year, the Group generated its funds mainly from operating activities. The net
cash position (bank balances and cash) at December 31, 2018 amounted to HK$22.3
million (December 31, 2017: HK$37.2 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWmED M

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

At December 31, 2018, there were no finance charges on the Group's assets.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment for the year ended December 31,
2018 amounted to HK$14.5 million (FY2017: HK$24.8 million) which was all used for
business operations and product development. Source of funds were financed by internal

resources and borrowings.

There were no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries and associated Companies

in the course of the year ended December 31, 2018.

DIVIDEND

The Directors of the Company do not recommend any dividend for the year ended
December 31, 2018 (FY2017: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

An indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Oregon Scientific Brasil Ltda, was
involved in a tax dispute with the State of Sao Paulo, the Federative Republic of Brazil,
which may cause a maximum tax payment including penalty and interest of approximately
Brazilian Real 3.6 million(equivalent to approximately HK$7.3 million). After seeking the
independent legal advice, the directors of the Company consider that the outcome and
the amount of final payment, if any, are uncertain, and no provision has been made in the

consolidated financial statements.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER A

Management Discussion and Analysis

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at December 31, 2018, the Group had 744 employees. The Group fully recognizes the
importance of its employees who contribute significantly to its success and continues to
maintain and upgrade the capabilities of its workforce by providing them with adequate

and regular training.

The Group's remuneration policy is to provide compensation packages at market rates
which reward individual's performance and attract, retain and motivate high quality
employees. The compensation packages offered by the Group are comparable with
other organizations of similar size and business nature and are reviewed annually. The
components of employee’s remuneration package consist of base salary, double pay,
fringe benefits including pension scheme, medical insurance, life and personal accident
insurance, employee compensation and business travel insurance as well as incentives like

discretionary cash bonus.

In Xixiang, Shenzhen, China where the Xixiang facilities are located, staff welfare rates
are set with reference to the prevailing labour laws in China. Accommodation and leisure

facilities are also provided to local staff at Xixiang facilities.

The Group's remuneration philosophy for senior executives is based upon creating a

strong link between performance and reward in accordance with the following principles:

I Fixed salaries and benefits are set at median-market level against comparator
groups of companies selected on the basis of similar size and business nature and

benchmarked with the prevailing market conditions; and

2. Performance-related bonus is linked to the achievement of pre-defined
performance targets including financial targets, performance index and pre-agreed

management objectives.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWmED M

The emolument of the directors is recommended by the remuneration committee with
reference to companies of comparable business type or scale, and the nature and quantity
of work at both Board and Board Committee levels (including frequency of meetings
and nature of agenda items) in order to compensate directors reasonably for their time
and efforts spent. The directors’ emolument is approved by the Board pursuant to the
mandate granted by the shareholders at annual general meetings. Remuneration are paid
to a director for appointment as a member of a particular committee. Non-executive
directors receive no base pay, benefits, bonus or pension except reimbursement for
expenses incurred in connection with their directorship of the Company. No individual
director is allowed to participate in the procedures for deciding his/her individual
remuneration package. Full details of the remuneration of and fees paid to the directors
for the year ended December 31, 2018 are set out in note 10 to the consolidated

financial statements from page 155 to page |58.
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The Group is committed to achieving a up to stipulated standard of corporate governance
to safeguard the interests of all shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability. Throughout the year ended December 31, 2018 under review, the
Company has applied the principles and complied with all code provisions and where
applicable, the recommended best practices prescribed in the Corporate Governance
Code (“CG Code") in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules™) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
This report describes its corporate governance practices, explains the applications of the
principles of the CG Code and deviations during the year ended December 31, 2018

under review.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board

During the period between January I, 2018 and August 25, 2018, the Board comprised
ten directors of whom two are executive directors and four are non-executive directors
and four are independent non-executive directors. For the period between August 25,
2018 and October 22, 2018, the Board comprised of seven directors of whom three
is executive director, one are non-executive directors and three are independent non-
executive directors. For the period between October 22, 2018 and December 31, 2018,
the Board comprised six directors of whom two are executive directors and one are non-

executive Directors and three are independent non-executive directors.

Brief biographical details of the directors appear in the Directors and Senior Management
of the Group section on pages |3 to 5. An updated list of directors of the Company and
their respective roles and functions are posted on the Stock Exchange's website and the

Company's website.

IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER A

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRESE

RREZBRREZNEACREBENHE
o REE-AEEBTETTFARERTZ
LE¥ER - DEBE_T-\F+-_A=1—
ALEEE ARFAEEALETEERARS
FAERDR(TERA ) EF EMAR LR
ADMETImE s cEERTR(EEER
STRI DA RAIRTRIGX - AREE&E
FROVER) - AESEFANEEREBEE
ECT-\FTAZt-RLEFEZRRE

RER THBEEERTAZRAER KRR
BEITR -
Exg
EEg

RZZE-NF-A—HEZZ-N\EN\A
“tHAHHE EEeHTERESMEN - BT
MERNTES NEAFATEERNEA
BURNTES - R E—\FENA-THH
ET-\F+A-+ZHEH E2ght
FESHEN HP=2ABNTES — %A
FRTESR=RARBIUFNTEST R
E-NF+AZ+TZRE_Z-N\F+=A
=+—RERE EXQH - REFEN - HP
MERNTEE  —BAFRTEER=4A
BUFHTES
EZ/REBRIAINEBEISAEZAEE
EERAREREND - ARRESHEINNEA
BEREEE A RBAH B AT A kA
AR o

Annual Report 2018 &} 25



IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIR AR A

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRES

Appointment, Re-election and Retirement of Directors

The Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee (“NCGC") reviews the profiles
of the candidates and makes recommendations to the Board on the appointment,

reelection and retirement of directors,

The Company recognises the importance of having the appropriate board composition.
In deciding the board composition, the attributes, skills and expertise among the directors
are considered appropriate to effectively lead and control the Group, taking into account
the scope and nature of its operations. The directors have a mix of core competencies
in areas such as accounting and finance, business and management, industry knowledge
and marketing strategies. The size of the Board is conducive to effective discussion and
decision-making and has an appropriate balance of independent directors to exercise

independent judgment.

In accordance with the Company's Bye-Laws, at each annual general meeting, one-third
of the directors shall retire from office. The directors to retire in every year shall be
those who have been longest in office since their last election or re-election. Further, any
director appointed by the Board as an additional Board member or fill in a casual vacancy
shall hold office until the following annual general meeting (“AGM") and shall then be
eligible for re-election at the AGM immediately following their appointments. The new
directors shall not be taken into account in determining the number of directors who are
to retire by rotation at that annual general meeting. Election and re-election of directors

will be done by separate resolution.

The names and biographical details of the directors who will offer themselves for
reelection at the forthcoming AGM are set out in the circular accompanying the notice of
AGM.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted a Board diversity policy setting out the approach to achieve diversity
on the Board. The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance the quality of its performance. Board diversity will be considered by the
Company from a number of aspects, including but not limited to cultural and educational
background, experience, skills, knowledge, length of service, age and gender. The Board
composition is reviewed, considered and discussed by the NCGC on an annual basis and
it will make recommendations to the Board after the review. The Company's business
needs will also be taken into account in determining the optimum composition of the
Board. In reviewing and assessing the composition of the Board as well as selecting
candidate(s), the NCGC will consider all diversity elements according to the Policy and
also devised guidelines for ideal board size, optimum number of executive and non-
executive directors and board membership criteria. The Policy and those guidelines shall

be reviewed and revised periodically to meet business needs of the Group.

Induction and Continuous Professional Development

Newly appointed directors of the Company will receive induction and reference materials
to enable him/her to familiarise himself/herself with the Group's history, mission, business
operations and board and company policies. Each director is briefed and updated from
time to time to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding of the operations and
business of the Group and that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities under statute
and common law, the Listing Rules, applicable legal and other regulatory requirements and

the governance policies of the Company and Latest Listing Rules and Legislation.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional development so as to
refresh their knowledge and skills for discharging their duties and responsibilities. For the
year ended December 31, 2018, relevant reading materials including regulatory update,
seminar handouts and Latest regulatory case selection etc. have been provided to the

Directors for their reference and studying.
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A summary of training taken by the Directors since January |, 2018 up to December 31, ATMIEBRE - N\F-HA—-BE_%

2018 is set out as follows:

—\F+ZA=+-REFAEI 2EI -

Training activities including in-house
activities/briefings, seminars/talks held

by professional organisations and/or

Directors reading materials on relevant topics
EFIES (BEAAANED,/
g3  ExAaEpowHe/

S BER,/ BERRRE M)

Executive Directors: PITEE:

Xu Chiming (appointed on October 18, 2018) ®ER RZE-\FTATN\BEZE) V

Zhu Yongning (appointed on October 18, 2018) kB (RZZ—\F+A+/\BEZMT) \

Foo Piau Phang (resigned on October 18, 2018) fRE (RZE-/\F+HAT/\BEHT) \

Yan Keya (re-designated from Non-Executive Director

to Executive Director on August 1, 2018,
resigned on October 22, 2018)
Qi Miao (resigned on August 1, 2018)

Non-Executive Directors:

Song Rongrong

Ouyang Jiejiao (appointed on August 25, 2018
resigned on October 18, 2018)

Wu Gang (appointed on March 2, 2018
resigned on August 25, 2018)

Han Hongtu (appointed on March 2, 2018
resigned on August 25, 2018)

Xin Kexia (resigned on March 2, 2018)

Jing Tian (resigned on March 2, 2018)

Shi Changyun (resigned on March 2, 2018)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Zhou Meilin (appointed on October 18, 2018)
Zhou Rui (appointed on October 18, 2018)

Xu Jinwen (appointed on August 25, 2018)

Yang Xiongsheng (resigned on October 18, 2018)
Duh Jia-Bin (resigned on October 18, 2018)
Zhao Yuhong (resigned on August 25, 2018)

Li Quan (resigned on August 25, 2018)
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

During the period between January |, 2018 to December 31, 2018, the roles of chairman

and chief executive officer of the Company were held by different personnel.

Responsibilities of the Board and delegations to management

The Board is responsible to the shareholders for leadership and control of the Company
and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company and its

businesses by directing and supervising the Company's affairs.

The Board focuses on overall strategies and policies with particular attention paid to the
growth and financial performance of the Group. The principal functions of the Board are

to:
®  establish the strategic direction and development of the Group;

®  determine the broad policies, strategic plans and performance objectives of the

Group;
®  monitor management performance;

®  approve financial plans and annual budgets, major funding proposals, key funding

and investment proposals;

®  oversee the processes for evaluating the adequacy of internal controls, risk

management, financial reporting and compliance;
®  approve the nominations of directors and appointment of key personnel; and
®  assume responsibility for corporate govemance.

The Board delegates daily operations of the Group to executive directors and senior
executives, while reserving certain key matters for its approval. Decisions of the Board are
communicated to the management through executive directors who have attended at

Board meetings and circulation of minutes of Board meetings to the management.
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The Board has adopted a set of guidelines to clearly divide the responsibilities of the
Board and the management. Matters reserved for decision and consideration of the Board
include, among others, all matters of strategic importance, corporate governance practices,
legal and regulatory compliance, internal control and risk management, corporate strategy,
operating and capital budgets, statutory financial reports, changes in Board members,
major transactions and investment commitments and remuneration policy of directors and
senior management, financial authorization and approval limits for operating and capital
expenditure, the procurement of goods and services, and the acquisition and disposal of

investments.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Coming from diverse business and professional backgrounds, the independent non-
executive directors of the Company have shared their valuable experience with the Board
in the interests of promoting the best interests of the Company and its shareholders. The
independent non- executive directors of the Company have made significant contribution
of their skills and expertise to the Board committees. All independent non-executive
directors are appointed for a fixed term of three years and are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election by shareholders at the annual general meetings of the Company

in accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws.

All independent non-executive directors are expressly identified in all corporate
communications that disclose the names of the directors of the Company. The functions

of independent non-executive directors include, but not limited to:

®  participating in Board meetings to bring in independent judgment to bear on
issues of corporate strategy, corporate performance, accountability, resources, key

appointments and standard of conducts;
®  taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;

®  serving on board committees, if invited; and

®  scrutinising the Group's performance in achieving agreed corporate goals and

objectives, and monitoring the reporting of performance.
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During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company has complied with Rules 3.10(1)
and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules regarding the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive directors including at least one independent non-executive director with
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or relating financial management
expertise. In assessing the independence of the directors, the Board has examined the
different relationships identified under the Listing Rules that might impair the directors'
independence and objectivity. The Board considers that all of the independent non-
executive directors are independent and are satisfied with the directors’ ability to act with
independent judgment. Furthermore, each of the independent non-executive directors has
provided to the Company an annual confirmation of independence required by Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all its independent non-executive directors
to be independent. Each director is subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. Any further re-appointment of an independent non- executive director, who
has served the Board for more than nine years, will be subject to separate resolution to

be approved by the shareholders of the Company.

The Company has also complied with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules that the independent

non-executive directors are representing at least one-third of the Board.

RELATIONSHIP

There is no financial, business, family and other material relationship among other

members of the Board.

There has been an effective and balanced Board collectively responsible for the
Company's activities and affairs. The Board members are free to discuss issues properly
put to the Board meetings and express their views and concerns. No individual or small

group can dominate the Board's decision-making process.

If a substantial shareholder or a director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be
considered by the Board which the Board has determined to be material, the matter will
be dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather than a written resolution of the Board.
The Board will take into account the exceptions to the general voting prohibition, as set
out in the Listing Rules when considering whether a director shall vote on any board
resolution approving any matters in which he has matenial interests or shall he be counted

in the quorum present at the meeting.
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MEETINGS

The Board meets regularly at least 4 times a year and holds additional meetings as and
when the Board thinks appropriate. Board committees also hold regular scheduled
meetings to discharge their duties. Meetings via telephone or video-conference are
permitted under the Bye-Laws of the Company. Attendance record of the Board and
Board Committees meetings during the year ended December 31, 2018 is set out on

page 34, 37, 38 and 42.

All Directors have access to the company secretary who is responsible for ensuring that
Board/Board committees meeting procedures are observed and advising the Board/Board

committees on compliance matters.

In an attempt to accommodate the competing time commitments of directors who sit on
multiple boards, Board/Board committees meetings dates are scheduled well in advance
at the beginning of every calendar year. The Company has given at least 14 days' notice
for regular Board and Board Committees meetings. For all other Board/Board committees
meetings, reasonable notices are given. Draft agendas for Board and Board Committee
meetings are prepared by the company secretary and are circulated to all directors for
comment before the meetings. The directors were given the opportunities to include
matters to be discussed in the agenda for all Board and Board Committees meetings.
The company secretary is delegated with the responsibility to prepare these agendas and,
where appropriate, take into account any matters proposed by each director/committee

member for inclusion in the agenda.

The agenda accompanied by detailed board papers (prepared in such form and manner as
will enable the Board to make an informed decision on matters placed before it, including
but not limited to, background or explanatory information relating to matters to be
brought before the Board and internal financial information such as quarterly management
accounts, forecasts and budgets with material variance between projections and actual
results explained) are circulated to all directors in a timely manner and at least three days

before the date of scheduled meeting.
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Minutes of Board/Board committees meetings are recorded in detail regarding the matters
considered and decisions reached, including concerns raised by directors or dissenting
views expressed. Draft minutes are circulated to relevant directors/committee members
within a reasonable time after the meetings for comments and will then be approved
by the Board/Board committees at the following meeting. Minutes of Board and Board
Committees meetings are kept by the company secretary and are open for inspection at

any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any director.

Directors are provided in a timely manner with complete, adequate explanation and
information about the Company and its subsidiaries, its activities, performances and its
projects particularly including any significant variances from a planned course of actions to
enable them to make an informed decision or assessment of the Group's performance,
position and prospects and to discharge their duties and responsibilities. In case when
the directors have queries, they are provided with the names and contact details of the
Group's senior executives for separate and independent access to them and they are able
to obtain more information than is volunteered by the management. Senior executives
are from time to time brought into formal and informal contact with the Board at Board

meetings and other events.

The Board and Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to properly
discharge their duties including access to independent professional advisers under agreed

procedures, upon reasonable request, at the expense of the Company.
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The Board held a full board meeting each quarter.

ExeEFTUeRTEBNKEIIREESE -

Details of the attendance of the meetings of the members of the Board during the year EXeNEANBFALEE

g At

under review are as follows: HEMT
2018 BOARD
MEETING 2018 AGM
—E-N\F —E-N\F
Directors = Ezgen BRRAFAE
Executive Directors: BITES:
Xu Chiming (appointed on October 18, 2018) "8 (E/\\fi_)\EJFH TN\BEZE) 1710 o/l
Zhu Yongning (appointed on October 18, 2018) FKBE(MRZ_Z-N\F+ATN\BEZE) 1/10 o/l
Foo Piau Phang (resigned on October 18, 2018) FEER -2 \F+AT/\BEHE) 8/10 0/l
Yan Keya (re-designed from Non-executive Director %K?E?E(EAZ - \F/\A—HH 6/10 0/
to Executive Director on August |, 2018 3F$ﬂﬁ§$§ﬁ&7/%$ﬂﬁ§$ '
resigned on October 22, 2018) —}\¢+H Z+ZHEHE)
Qi Miao (resigned on August |, 2018) WBM(HA —N\ENR—BEE) 7110 11
Non-Executive Directors: FHTES !
Song Rongrong R 10/10 0/
Ouyang Jiejiao (appointed on August 25, 2018, BERB (M- \FNAZTEREZRE - 1/10 o/l
resigned on October 18, 2018) RZFE-N\F+AT/\BET)
Wu Gang (appointed on March 2, 2018, RA(R_Z-N\F=ZA_BEZE 5/10 o/l
resigned on August 25, 2018) RZE-NFNAZTHHEHE)
Han Hongtu (appointed on March 2, 2018, BRE(R-_Z—-\$=ZA-REZFE 4/10 0/1
resigned on August 25, 2018) RZZ-N\FNAZ+HAET)
Xin Kexia (resigned on March 2, 2018) %W{(Eé—ﬁﬂ\fﬁiﬂ —REE) 3/10 o/l
Jing Tian (resigned on March 2, 2018) ARRZZ—\F=AZRAEHT) 3/10 0/1
Shi Changyun (resigned on March 2, 2018) ﬁﬁﬁ%(ﬁ/\\\i - N\FE=ZAZHET) 3/10 /1
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BUFHTES:
Zhou Meilin (appointed on October 18, 2018) BERR_ZE-NF+ATN\BEZE) 1710 /1
Zhou Rui (appointed on October 18, 2018) BAH(R_F-\F+A+\BEZE) 1/10 o/l
Xu Jinwen (appointed on August 25, 2018) BREX(NZZ-\FENAZTHBEZMA) 1/10 0/l
Yang Xiongsheng (resigned on October 18,2018) BB (R=_F—N\F+ A+ /\BEE) 7110 o/l
Duh Jia-Bin (resigned on October 18, 2018) HEBRZZ-N\F+AT/\BEHE) 9/10 o/l
Zhao Yuhong (resigned on August 25, 2018) BFI (RS- N\FNAZTRBET) 5/10 o/l
Li Quan (resigned on August 25, 2018) ZR(R_Z-N\FENA-THLBEE) 8/10 I/
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In addition to the above regular board meetings during the year, the members of the
Board of Directors followed the principles of good corporate governance and the
best practices of the relevant code provisions and recommendations of the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules and maintained a
continuous dialogue with shareholders, especially It is through the annual general meeting
or other plenary meetings to communicate with the shareholders. During the year under
review, the chairman of the board of directors attended the annual general meeting and
invited the chairman of the relevant committee to attend. If the chairman of the relevant
committee fails to attend the meeting, the chairman of the board invites another member
or the chairman of the committee concerned to properly appoint another member to

attend.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To maximise the effectiveness of the Board and to encourage active participation and
contribution from Board members, the Board has established four Board committees,
namely the executive committee, audit committee, nomination and corporate governance
committee and remuneration committee with specific written terms of reference that
clearly deal with their authority and duties, to oversee particular aspects of the Company's
affairs, assist in the execution of the Board's responsibilities enable the Board committees
to perform their functions properly. Board committees report to the Board on their work
and findings. They adopt as far as practicable, the principles, procedures and arrangements
of the Board in relation to scheduling and conduct of meetings, notice of meetings and
inclusion of agenda items, recording and availability of minutes. The written terms of
reference of the audit committee, nomination and corporate governance committee
and remuneration committee, which are in line with the CG Code, are available on the
website of the Company and the Stock Exchange and will be reviewed from time to time.

The quorum necessary for transaction of business of each Board committee is two.

Executive Committee (“EC”)

During the year ended December 31, 2018, the EC comprised of all executive directors.

The EC meets as and when required to oversee the day- to-day management of the
Group and has all the general powers of the Board except those matters specifically

reserved for the Board.
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The principal duties of EC include:

®  managing the business and investments by overseeing the Group's operations,
projects, assets and liabilities, budgets, compliance obligations and financial

performance in accordance with the policies and directives of the Board;

®  making recommendations to the Board as to the Group's overall policies, strategies
and financial objectives in the development of its business and ensuring their

implementation and execution; and

®  providing leadership to staff and management and nominating key personnel and

ensuring appropriate levels of authority are delegated to them.

Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee (“NCGC”)

During the period between January I, 2018 and August 25, 2018, the NCGC is chaired by
Mr. Foo Piau Phang (the Chairman of the Board) and comprised two independent non-
executive directors. namely, Dr. Li Quan and Mr. Duh Jia-Bin. During the period between
August 25, 2018 and October 18, 2018, the NCGC is chaired by Mr. Foo Piau Phang
(the chairman of the Board) and comprised two independent non-executive directors,
namely, Mr. Duh Jia-Bin and Mr. Xu Jinwen. During the period between October 18, 2018
and December 31, 2018, the NCGC is chaired by Mr. Xu Chiming (the Chairman of the
Board) and comprised two independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Xu Jinwen
and Mr. Zhou Meilin. The NCGC meets at least once a year. Al NCGC members, except

the Chairman of the NCGC, are independent non-executive directors.

The principal functions of the NCGC include:

®  making recommendations to the Board on all new appointments or reappointments
of directors, the establishment of a succession plan for directors, in particular the

chairman and chief executive officer and the composition of the Board;

®  identifying and nominating qualified individuals, subject to the approval of the Board,

to be additional directors or to fill vacancy in the Board as and when they arise;
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®  reviewing on an annual basis the Board structure, size and composition and the

independent element of the Board;
®  developing the criteria for selection of directors;
®  assessing the independence of independent non- executive directors;

®  developing and reviewing the Company's policies and practices on corporate

governance and make recommendations to the Board;

®  reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional development of

directors and senior management;

*  reviewing and monitoring the Company's policies and practices on compliance with

legal and regulatory requirements;

®  developing reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance manual

(if any) applicable to employees and directors; and

*  reviewing the Company's compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the

Corporate Governance Report.

The chairman of the NCGC will report to the Board on its proceedings and

recommendations after each meeting.
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During the year under review, four meetings were held by the Nomination and Corporate REEFH  RERGEERZEGARTHE
Governance Committee. Details of the attendance of the nomination committee meeting ReZ EFSHRREZESQA BTG
are as follows: mr

Directors Attendance
= H R
Xu Chiming (appointed as Chairman on October 18, 2018) BHERR_Z-N\FTAT\BEZEREE) 0/4
Foo Piau Phang (resigned as Chairman on October 18, 2018) AREEM_2-N\FTATN\BBEERE) 4/4
Li Quan (resigned on August 25, 2018) ZR(RZZ _/\EJ\H Z+AAEHE) 3/4
Duh Jia-Bin (resigned on October 18, 2018) R /%(E/\\ E—\F+H+\BET) 4/4
Xu Jinwen (appointed on August 25, 2018) HRBX(R_E-N\FN\AZTHREZT) 074
Zhou Meilin (appointed on October 18, 2018) BAERR_ZE-NF+ATN\BEZE) 0/4

The main works performed by NCGC during the year ended December 31, 2018
included reviewing the structure and composition of the Board; assessing independence
of existing independent non-executive directors and putting forward recommendations
to the Board on re-election of retiring directors as well as reviewing the updated Board

Diversity Policy and recommending the same to the Board for approval.
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Remuneration Committee (“RC”)

During the period between January |, 2018 and August 25, 2018, the RC is chaired by Ms.
Zhao Yuhong (an independent non--executive director) and comprised two members,
namely, Mr. Song Rongrong and Mr. Duh Jia- Bin. During the period between August 25,
2018 and October 18, 2018, the RC is chaired by Mr. Duh Jia- Bin (an independent non-
-executive director) and comprised two members, namely, Mr. Song Rongrong and Mr.
Xu Jinwen. During the period between October 18, 2018 and December 31, 2018, the
RC is chaired by Mr. Zhou Rui (an independent non-executive director) and comprised
two members, namely, Mr. Song Rongrong and Mr. Xu Jinwen. All RC members, except
Mr. Song Rongrong, the remaining members of the RC are independent non-executive

directors.

The RC consults the chairman and chief executive officer about its proposals relating to
the remuneration of other executive directors and has access to professional advice if

considered necessary. The principal functions of the RC include:

*  recommending to the Board on the Company's policies and structure for the

remuneration of the directors and senior management of the Group;

®  recommending to the Board the remuneration packages of all executive directors

and senior management; and

®  reviewing and approving the management's remuneration proposals with reference

to the Board's corporate goals and objectives.

The chairman of the RC will report to the Board on its proceedings and recommendations,

where appropriate, for the Board' s consideration and/or approval.
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During the year under review, four meetings were held by the remuneration committee. REEFEA @ H#E E\@ﬁ BOMNAGHE &
Details of the attendance of the remuneration committee meeting are as follows: %ﬁr‘%%\?@@ ZEEAEIT
Directors Attendance
= HERE
Zhou Rui (appointed as Chairman on October 18, 2018) AHR =T /\E‘Hﬂ TNBEZERER) 0/4
Zhao Yuhong (resigned on August 25, 2018) BFAR_Z-\FN\AZ+RHEE) 3/4
Song Rongrong RERE 4/4
Duh Jia-Bin (appointed as Chairman on August 25, 2018, HEBR-_Z-\FNA-_THREZEREE "

resigned on October 18, 2018) RZZ— /\¢+H TN\ BEHE) 4/4
Xu Jinwen (appointed on August 25, 2018) RBX(R_Z-\FNAZ+HHEZE) 074
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The main works performed by RC during the year ended December 31, 2018 included
reviewing the annual remuneration of directors and senior management and and

recommending the remuneration of newly appointed directors to the Board of Directors.

A general description of the Group's emolument policy and long-term incentive schemes
as well as the basis of determining the emolument payable to each directors for the year

ended December 31, 2018 are disclosed on pages 23 to 24 of this annual report.

Audit Committee (“AC”)

During the period between January I, 2018 and August 25, 2018, the AC consisted of
three independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Yang Xiongsheng (chairman),
Ms. Zhao Yuhong and Dr. Li Quan. During the period between August 25, 2018 and
October 18, 2018, the AC consisted of three independent non-executive directors,
namely, Mr. Yang Xiongsheng (chairman), Ms. Duh Jia- Bin and Mr. Xu Jinwen. During the
period between October 18, 2018 and December 31, 2018, the AC consisted of three
independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Zhou Meilin (chairman), Mr. Zhou Rui
and Mr. Xu Jinwen. The Board is of the opinion that the majority of the members of the
AC possess accounting and financial management expertise or experience required to

discharge their duties.

The major duties of AC include:

®  considering and recommending the appointment, re- appointment and removal of

external auditor;

®  approving the remuneration and terms of engagement of external auditor, any

questions of resignation or dismissal of that auditor;

®  reviewing and monitoring external auditor’s independence and objectivity and the

effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable standards;

®  discussing with external auditor the nature and scope of the audit and reporting

obligations before the audit commences;

IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER A

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRESE

FMEEERNEBE_T-/\$+_-_HA=1+—H
LFEERTZ IR T RBRRIEENRESR
EFHMIORN - MESFSREMTITESOHMH -

BRANEE 2 IR KR B R E A 8 A N

SREENEE T \F+-B=+—HIt
FERNEHHIZENBIEF BN AFEIRE 23
BUENRN-

ERZEE((BKERE))

R-FE-N\F-A-HE-F-/\F)\A
“tRRME BRREEAIBY T
EXAN BEBRE(ER)  BFLLLR
FREBEL -R-_T-N\FN\A-THEE-E
—NFETATN\BHA ERZEER=(F
VFMTEFAR  BEBELEE(EE)  HXK
BEERGHXEE - R_T-NFTATN
—NFE+Z=+—-HBHR EXZE
B FRTEFAR  AEMEE(E
) BHEERGBRXEL - EFERR - K
HNERZEeNBURE ST RIBEEE
RHBILR  UBTRE 2B -

JifZ)S

IZREEE:

EZZE

EEREZEME
i ;

BRERERIMNERE

o HAEMNEZEEMZEHH -
ZYE R TSR ZEHW%

PG B %

s REERARERHNERIMEZEMZ
BUMREENL  UARBRBRFZAEN

1
o RARETZEAEINEZEMTRE
BBz HE R BBENERET

Annual Report 2018 &} 39



IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIR AR A

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRES

40

developing and implementing policy on the engagement of an external auditor
to supply non-audit services and making recommendation of any measures for

improvements to be taken;

monitoring integrity of financial statements, annual and interim reports and
reviewing significant financial reporting judgment contained in them. In this regard,
in reviewing the quarterly, interim and annual financial statements and the annual

and the interim reports before submission to the Board, focusing particularly on:

() any changes in accounting policies and practices;
(i) major judgmental areas;
(i) significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(iv)  the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

(v)  compliance with accounting standards;

(vi)  compliance with the Listing Rules and other legal requirements in relation to

financial reporting; and

(vil)  any matters that have been raised by the Company's staff responsible for the

accounting and financial reporting function or auditors;

reviewing the Group's financial controls, internal control and risk management

systems,

discussing with the management the system of internal control and ensuring that
the management has discharged its duty to have an effective internal control
system including the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff
of the Company's accounting and financial reporting function, and their training

programmes and budget;

considering major investigations of findings on internal control matters as delegated

by the Board or on its own initiative and management's response to these findings;
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®  reviewing the internal audit programme, ensuring co- ordination between the
internal and external auditors, and ensuring that the internal audit function is
adequately resourced and has appropriate standing within the Company and

reviewing and monitoring the effectiveness of the internal audit function;

®  reviewing the external auditor's management letter, any material queries raised by
the auditor to management in respect of the accounting records, financial accounts
or systems of control and management's response and ensuring that the Board will

provide a timely response to the issues raised;

®  reviewing the Group's financial and accounting policies and practices;

®  reviewing the arrangements the Group's employees can use, in confidence, to
raise concems about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control
or other matters. The Committee should ensure that proper arrangements are in
place for fair and independent investigation of these matters and for appropriate

follow-up action; and

®  reporting to the Board on matters set out above and to consider other topics, as

defined by the Board.

The AC has explicit authority to investigate any matter under the scope of its duties
and the authority to obtain independent professional advice. It is given full access to and
cooperation of the management. It has been provided with reasonable resources to
discharge its duties properly. In the course of reviewing the Group's financial information,
the AC members liaise closely with the Board and the chief financial officer to gather

relevant information.
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During the year under review, 2 meetings were held by the audit committee. Details of

the attendance of the audit committee meetings are as follows:

ERZEEROBEARITRRE S - BXE
geg:

2 MEHFENT

@
=

Directors Attendance
= HERE
Zhou Meilin (appointed as Chairman on October |8, 2018) BERMR_Z-NEF+AT\BEZERERE) 0/2
Yang Xiongsheng (resigned on October 18, 2018) ik (M2 —\F+A+/\B#EHE) 212
Dunh Jia-Bin (appointed on August 25, 2018, Ti%/%(ﬁf\\ - N\FNA_THBEZE

resigned on October 18, 2018) " A¢+H+AH%E) 212
Zhao Yuhong (resigned on August 25, ,2018) BFOL(RZZ2-\FNAZTHABEME) 12
Li Quan (resigned on August 25, ,2018) ZR(N=-Z \i/\ﬂ THEEET) 212
Xu Jinwen (appointed on August 25, 2018) @ﬁxﬁﬁ —NENAZTHAEGE) 02
Zhou Rui (appointed on October 18, 2018) &85 (B A¢+H+AH%£{) 02

The major works performed by the AC during the year ended December 31, 2018
included the review and consideration of the announcements relating to the Group's
interim and annual results; interim and annual reports; significant accounting and audit
issues arising from annual audit of the Group's financial statements; budget, periodic
reports from internal audit department; internal audit plan, external auditor’s audit and
non-audit fees as well as the assessment and recommendation of re-appointment of

auditor for the coming year.

Full minutes of the AC are kept by the company secretary of the Company. Draft
and finalised minutes of the AC meetings are circulated to all members of the AC for
their comment and records respectively, in both cases within reasonable time after the

conclusion of the meetings.

Securities Transactions by Directors and Officers

The Company has adopted a code of conduct by Directors and Officers of the Group
on terms no less favorable than the standards set out by the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code") contained in

Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Having made specific enquiries to all Directors, save as disclosed above, all Directors
confirmed that they had complied with the required standards set out in the Model
Code and the Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions throughout the year ended
December 31, 2018.
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The Board members have been reminded of their obligation to comply with the Model

Code.

Directors and Officers as defined in the Code who are in possession of unpublished
inside information in relation to the Company or its shares are prohibited from dealing in
shares of the Company and are also prohibited from dealing in shares during the black-out

period.

INSURANCE

The Group has appropriate insurance cover in place in respect of any legal actions against

its directors and officers.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial reporting

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial statements which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs and results of the Company and of the
Group. Their responsibilities have also been stated in the section headed “Independent
Auditor's Report” on pages 87 to 89 of this annual report. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2018, the directors have selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently and made accounting judgments and
estimates that are prudent and reasonable in the circumstances. With the assistance of the
Finance Department, the directors ensure that the financial statements of the Group are
prepared in accordance with statutory requirements and appropriate financial reporting

standards.

Management recognises the importance of providing the Board with appropriate and
relevant information on an accurate and timely basis. Quarterly business review and
financial reports comparing the Group's actual performance with budget and highlighting
major relevant issues are provided to the Board to enable it to make an informed
assessment on the Group's performance, position and prospects. Under the CG Code,

monthly updates are required to be provided to all directors.
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The Board endeavours to ensure a balanced, clear and understandable assessment
of the Group's position and prospects to extend to the Group's financial reporting
including annual and interim reports, other price-sensitive announcements and other
financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, and reports to regulators as well as

information required to be disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements.

The Company publishes its interim and annual financial results and reports in accordance

with the requirements under the Listing Rules.

External Auditor and Auditor’s Remuneration

The external auditor of the Company is Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. The Audit
Committee is responsible for considering the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of external auditors. The Board has no disagreement with the Audit Committee’s

view on the re- appointment of external auditor.

The statement of Deloitte Touch Tohmatsu, the independent auditor of the Company,
regarding their reporting responsibility on the financial statements of the Group for the
year ended December 31, 2018 is set out in the section headed “Independent Auditor's
Report” on pages 87 to 89 of this annual report. Representatives from Deloitte Touche

Tohmatsu met up with the Audit Committee meeting to answer questions.

During the year ended December 31, 2018, the fees paid to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu,
the Company's external auditor, for audit services of the Company and its subsidiaries
amounted to HK$2.6 million (For the year ended 2017: HK$2.3 million). The fee paid for
non-audit related services, representing mainly taxation services, amounted to HK$0.55

million for the year ended December 31,2018 (2017: 0.1)

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective risk management and
internal control systems of the Group, and for reviewing their design, operational

adequacy and effectiveness.
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The Group's risk management and internal control systems encompass their policies,

processes, tasks, and other aspects of the Group that taken together:

* facilitate their effective and efficient operation by allowing it to respond
appropriately to significant business, operational, financial, compliance and other
risks with a view to achieving business objectives. This includes the safeguarding of
assets from inappropriate use or from loss and fraud and ensuring that liabilities are

identified and managed;

®  help ensure maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable

financial information for intemnal or external reporting; and

®  help ensure compliance with relevant legislation and regulations, and also with

intemal policies with respect to the conduct of business.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance of no material misstatement or loss and to manage rather than

eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and achievement of the Group's objectives.

The key procedures that the Board established to provide effective risk management and

internal controls are as follows:

® A distinct organisation structure exists with defined lines of authority and
responsibilities. Division/department heads are involved in preparing the strategic
plan which lays down the corporate strategies to be pursued in the coming year for
achieving the annual operating plan and the annual operational and financial targets.
Both the strategic plan and the annual operating plan lay down the foundation
for the preparation of the annual budget by which resources are allocated in
accordance with identified and prioritised business opportunities. The annual
operating plan is submitted for approval by the Executive Committee subject to
regular review. The strategic plan is presented to the Board by management subject

to regular review and the annual budget is approved by the Board yearly;
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® A comprehensive monthly management reporting system is in place providing
financial and operational performance indicators to the management, and the
relevant financial information for reporting and disclosure purposes. Variances
against budgets are analysed, and explained, and appropriate actions are taken, if

necessary, to rectify deficiencies noted; and

®  System and procedures are in place to identify, measure, manage and control risks
including legal, credit, market, operational, environmental, behavioral and system

risks that may have an impact on the Group.

The Group's Internal Audit Department (“IA") performs audit reviews of the risks and
key controls of the Group. IA plays an important role in monitoring the Group's internal
governance, evaluating the quality of the risk management and internal control systems
and informing the Board whether sound risk management and internal control systems
are maintained and operated by the management in compliance with agreed processes
and standards. To preserve the independence of the internal audit function, the Head
of IA reports directly to the AC on audit matters and to the chief executive officer on

administrative matters.

Using a risk management-based approach audit, IA plans its internal audit projects annually
in consultation with, but independent of, management. The audit methodology and
process adopted by IA include understanding and analysing the business, determining risk
areas within key processes; analysing and evaluating the process control effectiveness and
communicating results and follow up. Independent reviews of different financial, business
and functional operations and activities will be conducted with audit resources being
focused on higher risk areas. Ad-hoc reviews will also be conducted on areas of concemn

identified by the AC and the management.

The Company has established written policies and procedures on daily operations,
covering process flow, methodology adopted, reviewing process and reporting system.
Division/Department Heads will be notified of the control deficiencies noted for
rectification, and IA will follow up with the implementation of audit recommendations.
Significant internal control weaknesses are brought to the attention of the AC and if

necessary to the Board, and to the senior management for remedial actions.
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During the period under review, the Board, through the AC, has conducted reviews on
a regular basis, of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems covering all material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls, and risk management functions and gave due deliberation/consideration to the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience of the accounting and financial

reporting function.

Furthermore, the whistleblowing policy has been adopted by the Board for the Group's
employees, customers and suppliers to raise concerns, in confidence, about possible

improprieties in any matters related to the Group.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND SHAREHOLDERS'
RIGHT

Shareholders Communication

The Company strives to convey to shareholders pertinent information in a clear, detailed,
timely manner and on a regular basis and to take into consideration their views and inputs,
and address shareholders' concerns. Their views are communicated to the Board as a

whole.

The Company communicates with its shareholders through the publication of annual and
interim reports, results announcements, other announcements and documents required
to be published pursuant to the Listing Rules, and press releases. All shareholders’
communications are also available on the Stock Exchange's website at www.hkex.com.hk

or the Company's website at www.idthk.com.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides a useful forum for shareholders to
exchange views with the Board. The chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of AC,
NCGC and/or RC, or in their absence, members of the Board committees are generally

available to answer shareholders’ questions.

Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each substantially separate
issue, including the election of individual directors. Votes cast on each resolution at the

general meetings are properly counted and recorded.
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At each general meeting, the shareholders will be informed the detailed procedures
for conducting a poll and answers will be provided if there are any questions from the
shareholders. The poll results are posted on the Stock Exchange's website and the

Company's website.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE A SPECIAL GENERAL
MEETING (“SGM”)

The directors of the Company, notwithstanding anything in its Bye-Laws shall, on the
requisition of shareholders of the Company holding at the date of the deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of such of the paid-up capital of the Company as at
the date of the deposit carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company,

forthwith proceed duly to convene a SGM of the Company.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must be signed by the
requisitionists and addressed to the company secretary and deposited at the Company's

principal place of business in Hong Kong.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrars and upon their
confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the company secretary will ask the

Board to include the resolution in the agenda for the SGM.

If the directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of the deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of

three months from the said date.

Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at general meetings

Shareholders who want to put forward proposals at an AGM or SGM should submit a
written notice of those proposals with their detailed contact information to the company
secretary at the Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong. The request will be
verified with the Company's share registrars and upon their confirmation that the request
is proper and in order, the company secretary will ask the Board to include the resolution

in the agenda for the general meeting.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Send Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders" enquiries must be in writing setting out their contact information and
addressed to the company secretary and deposited at the Company's principal place of
business in Hong Kong at Block C, 9th Floor, Kaiser Estate, 41 Man Yue Street, Hunghom,

Kowloon, Hong Kong.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary is responsible to the Board for ensuring that the Board procedures
and policies are followed and also responsible for ensuring that the Board is fully appraised
of the relevant regulatory and corporate governance developments relating to the Group
and facilitating the induction and professional development of directors. Ms. Gao Keying,
the company secretary of the Company during the year ended December 31, 2018,
had attended relevant professional seminars to update his knowledge and skills. She had
complied with the Listing Rules and taken no less than |5 hours of relevant professional

training.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board recognised that effective communication to investors is the key to establish

investor confidence and attracting new investors.
Measures taken by the Group include:

®  Annual and interim reports are prepared and issued to all shareholders within the
prescribed period stipulated by the Stock Exchange. All results announcements and

reports are posted on the Stock Exchange's website and the Company's website.

®  The Group regularly releases corporate information such as awards received,
product launches and the latest news of the Group's developments on the
Company's website. The public are welcome to give their comments and make
their enquiries through the Company's website and the management will provide

their prompt response.

®  The constitutional documents of the Company can be found on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange and there is no change in the Company's

constitutional documents during the period.
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The Group complies with the requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Hong Kong Stock Exchange™). During the year under review, it is committed to rising
the environmental, social and governance of the Group (“Environmental Social and
Governance”) up to a higher level, and hereby to present its Environmental, Social
and Governance Report for the year ended 31 December 2017 which is prepared in
accordance with the "“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide™ contained

in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange.

. SCOPE

This report focusingly reports on the performance of the Group in promoting
corporate social responsibility (“Corporate Social Responsibility”) during the
period from January |, 2018 to December 31, 2018, mainly including the disclosure
of the policies and regulations as well as the key performance indicators which are
important and closely related to the stakeholders, covering the Brands Sales and
OEM/ODM Sales business segments owned by the company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group"), and the daily operations of the Group's Hong Kong office and Shenzhen
factory.
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COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS 2.

The Group has established a variety of channels to allow related institutions and
individuals in the society (the"stakeholders™), including investors, employees,
customers, government, suppliers and contractors, community and the public, to
participate in the Group's operations so as to understand and oversee the Group's
operating performance. The group is committed to forgo a harmonious community
with various coexisting interests, promote the harmony and co-prosperity of the
Group and its stakeholders, and maximize the comprehensive benefits of the
society, including maximizing corporate profits. Stakeholders can participate in the

operation of the Company through the following means:

Channels and means of

BE  HERERRE

EZANSH
AEBAKEE BT BF  HBF-
HEE - AZBE HERARZEAN
MekEAGNER(EEESEADR
MEREBLEINRRIELT - THHM
EBNAMEERN  BEEE—M@EMN
LM TSR - REREBEE
BARRMBELE BERBECERER
AMEEANREHRABERAL - #x
AU TRELEANRMNES

Stakeholders Key targets and interests communication and participation Company measures

BEA IRERREER BEZEDANEE DR

Shareholders and Protection of shareholders’  Shareholders’ meetings, investors' Publication of notifications and resolutions of
investors interest, truthfulness, accuracy  conferences and site visits, disclosure  the shareholders’ meetings and disclosure of

and timeliness of information  of information (including financial
disclosure. statement) and contact information

of the Company.

BRREKEER RREE  WaEEH BR BRAE REEXANZER
EaikE EEREEE . EERERMBERR) AR

R R - E VR
Employees Protection of basic rights, Workers union, communication

compensation and benefits, work  channels between employees and
environment, development and  management, opinion boxes, staff
promotion and occupational  activities, training and education.
health and safety.

1m0
H

HEARELEIR

m

\
A

RE - BHFME Ig BIRERERREE
BAMK BIEE HIEES

B THERR BRZ=H
BEEFRELze 5REE E-
R -

information of the Company in accordance
with rules; organization of various investor
activities; publication of the Company's contact
information on the Company's website and
reports, and assuring all communication
channels are smooth and unobstructed.
ERTERBRAGBAMER - REQ
AIER - HRZBIANREEED 7
%&é%mmTF ERUENBERR
FARBELN  YRERSEEREES
i o
Establishment of workers union to provide
workers with a platform to communicate;
payment of salaries and benefits in full and
on time; payment of social security insurance
in accordance with law; provision of a healthy
and safe work environment; establishment
of a fair promotion mechanism; cared about
our employees, organization of employee
activities, trainings and learmning activities.
RUT&EH RUEIRNRTA  KE
RBEIMFWEN  RE8MLaRR
RERE  Z2MIERE  BULTH
B BEET - HPERERT A
BETRE  HIEEE -
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RIE -HERER

Stakeholders

BImA

BE

Key targets and interests

IRERREER

Channels and means of

communication and participation

BESRLANEE

Company measures

DR

Customers

o
m

Government

B

Guarantee of the product
quality and delivery, long-term

stable co-operation.

Lawful operations, payment of
tax in accordance with the law,
production safety, fulfillment of

social responsibility.

BERE  REABT &2
HE BrOtgEf-
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Regular visits and maintain regular
communication. Strengthening of
quality control, assurance of steady
production and smooth logistic
process; provision of adequate
products; entering into long term
sales agreements with customers.
EHFED  REAEER - %8
8RR RELERENES
B REREBEM B RY
BiBE A (E i -

Site visits, inspections, work
conference and discussion,
work reports, submissions and

approvals.

R8T -RE TEeaN
A THERS  ®X - Fi -

All of the Group's locations have put in
use Red-Mine, a central email system, to
improve email communication and follow-
up efficiency; moreover, customer service
email system is planned with automatic reply
function for service enhancement while this
technology is currently under study.
SEZHER—ERTREBRH
RedMine A iEFt EEE B RIRERE - I
FETEBRREBERMABDRELZE
SR E AT
Conduction of operation in accordance
with the law; compliance management,
payment of tax in accordance with the
law; strengthening of the Company’s safety
management; acceptance of government
supervision, inspection and examination
in accordance with regulations, active
assumption of social responsibilities.
BERE  ARERE  ROEMT - MEA
RAIZEER  RAERXEIHGEE
BRERRGER  RBARLERT -
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Key targets and interests

IRERREER
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Channels and means of

communication and participation

BESRLANEE

RE #HERERRBSE

Company measures

DR

Suppliers and

contractors

Community and

the public

i EAR

Fair bidding, long-term stable

cooperation and timely payment.

ATRE
BEAE -

REREAE

Job opportunities, community
development, ecological
environment, compensation

and assistance.

RERE HEERR £
R MIERER -

Public bidding meetings and business

meetings, regular communications.

REE  ang BEAR

Co-hosting of community activities,
charity, volunteer service and

coconstruction of the community.

RS  BERE - TR
ERG - HEAZED -

Fair bidding, select by merit, performance
of contractual obligations, strengthening of
regular communications, maintenance of
longterm cooperation with quality suppliers
and contractors.

AYHE  2ERER ROBTRRE M
BERELR  HEEHEANARBHRY
affe

Promotion of community building and
development, provision of volunteer service,
establishment of communication channels
for the community and the community
members; hosting of community activities,

promotion of the building of harmonious

community
ﬁﬂﬁﬁ[ﬂﬁ[ﬁﬂmﬁ , %

HEED - RERER ﬂ%ﬁE
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3. ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE

3.  Environment

3.1.1 Emissions

The Group is actively responding to the global trend of emission reduction
and is committed to minimising release of greenhouse gases, wastewater,
solid wastes and other pollutants in its daily operations. Therefore, a series

of environmental policies have been developed to strengthen the control of

emissions, including;

Waste reduction

Most of the electronic wastes generated in the manufacturing process,
including the scrapped circuit boards, scrapped parts and malfunctioned
components, are returned or handled directly by recycling companies. At
the same time, the Group continues to seek and improve the manufacturing
process and technology in order to increase productivity and reduce

scrapped electronic products and parts during the production process.

For reduction of the waste generated, factory operation increases the

application of re-use boxes to avoid wastes generated from logistics tools

made of materials easily damaged such as paper, plastic.

The Group categorizes different kinds of wastes for proper disposal,
identifies recyclable wastes, and establishes classified bins. The Group also

arranged waste classification trainings to encourage employees to actively

participate in waste recycling.

Electronic products involve application of batteries and the Group
understands the far-reaching impact of batteries on the environment,

therefore has designated disposed battery collection locations for promoting

the appropriate handling and recycling of disposed batteries.
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In addition to disposed batteries, the Group also focuses on carton wastes.
Therefore, recycling bins have been set up to collect waste papers and

arrange recycling companies to handle.

The Group regularly evaluates the production process to find out
the sources of hazardous wastes, and defines action plans to reduce
these wastes. The Group also put labels to differentiate hazardous and
nonhazardous wastes to facilitate hazardous wastes being handled properly

by the qualified service providers.

Currently, the hazardous wastes produced by the Group include disposed
batteries, sewage sludge, oil rags and contaminated gloves; whereas

nonhazardous wastes mainly include disposed capsules and carton wastes.

The Group has demonstrated the following results in the reporting period

through the implementation of the aforesaid policies and measures for waste

BE  HERERRE

RTBEEL - SETETAMEAE
B gUEROMAE NSRS YR
e AT R

SETHFELERE  KEEE
BENELNRE  HERLAS
BEERYNTHHE YAKEERE
ENREZEZMIETREE - A
BRHEAZEENIHAERNR
BEBEEHEE -

BRIREXBHELNAEERY
BREED - BKEERINGE
BT BRESANTFES M
—RNEZERNIZAERE
BERBEMET -

BREEN BRI  RER
REREEEDHRORADT

reduction:

Total Annual Intensity per

Weight  production unit
(tons) (gram/piece)

BEEEM

HEEHEE

Types of Wastes BENESR 2FHS () (/%)
Hazardous waste BEEEY) 424 353
Non-hazardous waste EEEEY) 950 792
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Reduction of wastewater discharge

The Group's factory in Shenzhen discharges both industrial and domestic
wastewater. The factory has installed sewage treatment facilities to reduce
the pollutants in the wastewater, and has additional facility for re-use of the
treated wastewater. This approach not only reduces wastewater discharge

but also helps the Group to use less fresh water.

Reduction of greenhouse gas (GHG) emission

The Group seeks to adopt renewable or other clean energy in replacement
of coal combustion facilities in order to reduce the generation and emission
of sulphur and nitrogen oxides. In addition, the Group actively implements

other administrative means to reduce GHG emissions, including:

— Reduction of business trips

The Group has a thorough understanding that business trips increase
energy consumption and lead to an increase in GHG emissions; therefore,
the Group actively decreases the number of business trips to reduce GHG
emissions, and switches to other effective communication methods, including
avoidance of long-distance personal meetings, replacement with telephone
and/or video conferences, as well as adoption of bundled courier to reduce

GHG emissions from additional traffics caused by separate own delivery.

— Sourcing from local suppliers

Sourcing with non-local suppliers requires additional transportation; the
situation is similar to business trips which increases energy consumption
and GHG emissions. As long as the Group's requirements are fulfilled,
preferences are given to local suppliers. In each procurement process, the
Group will firstly consider and invite local suppliers to make quotations and
provide product information, then leverage the factors such as raw material
quality, cost and environmental protection. Non-local procurement will be

considered only when the local suppliers fail to meet the relevant conditions.
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— Environmental education

The Group understands the long-term impact of the electronics industry
on the environment, therefore plays an active role in the supply chain
to promote the importance of emission reduction and establishes
environmental management measures for suppliers to follow, including: for all
vehicles that enter the Group's premises, they must be kept idle, the engines
are not allowed to be running and emitting exhaust within the factory's
premises; the exhaust emissions need to comply with the environmental
requirements; all persons within the factory's premises shall abide by the
requirements such as waste classification, no littering and no smoking. In
addition, the Group requires chemical suppliers and transporters to ensure
that chemicals are protected against leakage before arrival and the packaging,
containers and labels of chemicals must comply with the relevant regulatory
requirements; and the supply of materials, semi-finished products and
finished products shall not contain any intentional or unintentional addition

of flammable and explosive substances.

The Group also incorporates the concept of environmental protection
into employee’s annual training program to enhance their environmental
awareness.Environmental training topics include RoHS, 1SO 14001
environmental awareness, waste classification, chemical safety and so on.
For key positions such as manufacturing and cleaning, trainings are provided
to new employees of each month to ensure that they can classify and
identify hazardous and non-hazardous wastes as well as arrange the qualified

recycling companies for handling.

RE #HEREARARSE

~RRHUE

CERREFEFURRNREY
2 MEHERPEERERNA
& BORBRHENEEN - HIE
TREEEEREMENET
BELEASEANER  F8
BUARRK  NMERFESIZEHY
EREAFERER  EROFRE
BARARRESR  EABEMBA
B WAESFRIRTEN - ARk D 8
REFREEER - o REE
KB mtE L ERmRR12m
EEEAMT T RIREE - M2
mi Bk  ARNEBRFLEME
HEEGIZER  REEHDE -+
KRR T A EREERNEES
FHERMNSREENE -

0|

SETERRRERSHAE TR
FREIFEF - BAMNRRK
B RRIBIIREBERHS
ISOI4001 R R EH  BEMH

B r2ntr% HEsERE
REB@RMAN - EATATARN
TRESEH - BROMEIER

Annual Report 2018 &} 59



IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIR AR A

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE  -#HE8RERBRE

60

During the reporting period, the Group did not have any violation of

environmental legislations. The sources and emission volumes of GHG are as

EHEHE - fEREEMERER
BERIMEREE - MEE RN

follows: EERRERBIREREREN
T
GHG Emission
Total Volumes (kg
consumption carbon dioxide
volumes equivalent)
BERBHKE
(RF=8&
GHG Emission Sources BERENERR ByE tHReE)
Diesel oil consumption from EEResEmEE (D) 0 0
stationary sources (litres)
Diesel oil consumption from MENRH SR 330 88l
mobile sources (litres)
Gasoline consumption from MERE) AR 19,723 44,837
mobile sources (litres)
Natural gas consumption (cubic meters) RARFEE (L FK) 91,880 201,409
Power consumption of facilities (kWh) FiHEEE(TRE) 3,470,093 2,928,165
Total GHG emissions BEREBNHNEE — 3,175292
Production volume (piece) HEE(H) — 1,199,942
GHG Emission Intensity RERBHREE 2.65
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3.1.2 Use of Resources 312 BRER

The Group understands that the resources on the planet are limited,
therefore appropriate measures are implemented to enhance the efficiency

of resources used, including:
Energy saving

In order to reduce energy consumption, the Group uses energy-efficient
products and equipment as much as possible, and actively plans to replace
equipment with high energy consumption, such as gradually replacing the
factory's traditional electric lights with LED lights in 2018. The air conditioning
system uses a central control to effectively manage the temperature of each
department and automatic shutdown is scheduled at a specified time to
reduce additional energy consumption caused by uncontrolled temperature
adjustments. In addition, employee’s code of conduct for energy saving was
established and requires employees to tum off electrical devices in office and
production when off work, in order to ensure all machinery are shut down
when out of working hours. It aims to develop employee a habit of shutting

down machinery when leaving workplace.

Water conservation

In addition to re-use of the treated wastewater, the Group has adopted
multiple administrative measures to enhance water consumption efficiency.
In the daily operation, wastewater is collected and used for non-production
purposes, such as toilet flushing or floor cleaning. Water equipment in the
production workshops and offices are inspected and repaired timely for any
leakage to avoid water wastage. Also, water conservation slogans are posted
on bulletin boards to enhance employees” awareness of water conservation,
and remind employees and visitors of water saving. During meetings, bottled
water is replaced by reusable water containers to change the unfavourable

employees’ habit of using bottled water at meetings.
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The Group's production site in Shenzhen has demonstrated the following
achievements in the reporting period through the implementation of the

aforesaid policies and measures for water conservation:

Sources/types of water used

RKER/FHE

Re-use of treated production wastewater

TRIRME A R IR 1R 6 A EERE K

Wastewater used for flushing toilets and cleaning floors
BEZKRA R 3R

Bottled water replaced by reusable water container in meeting

RESEl2%S Ik

Saving of office resources

Electronic documentation is promoted in the daily operation; hardcopies are
replaced by electronic files in computer and whenever possible paperless
office operation is implemented to reduce the use of paper consumables.
The Group set targets on amounts of paper to be used as well as
expectations to all departments on paper saving. Employees are required to
print on both sides of the paper. When copying or printing files, paper with
only one side used should be collected for re-use for saving of new papers.

The amount of paper used in 2018 decreased by 22.7% compared to 2017..

During the reporting period, the main resources consumed by the Group

during operation are summarized as follows:

Annual consumption (tons)

BREENLHORKER - &E
HFRINEEEMEREHEERNE
AT AR

Volume of water saved

HERKE

20 cubic meters per month
015K/ A

3-5 cubic meters per month
357K/ A

|0 bottles per meeting
0k €&

BHIRAZET

ERREEPRENEXFETL

MEX  ERTERFRABRE
Xt %%E? BRACHR - R
PEEMARMOER  LRTEA
FEMH T%%aﬁ  BEEREAE
THAORENHE  BRBTHR

RAEEITH - ERESITEIX M
B A% B A AR A 4 oK [ R A
A #Rg - — - \EMAK
ER-_T—LFRD2027%-

EREHA - SEEEEREMA
RONEBRIRERMIIMT -

Intensity per production unit

2FHAE(H) BLEEBUNENEE

Hong Kong Shenzhen Hong Kong Shenzhen

Resources &R BB Y B# YN

Electricity (KWh) EN(TRE) 251,793 3,218,300 0210 2682

Water (cubic meters) K(ZFK) 18 147,095 0 0.123
Packaging materials BEWH () N/A N/A

(paper) (piece) (LAEEE) TERA 11,603,965 NEA 9.670
Packaging materials EUE(BH) N/A N/A

(plastic) (piece) (CMEFHE) TEA 3,495,462 TEA 2913
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3.1.3 The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group understands the environmental concems from both community
and customers, and promote policy on green manufacturing and green

procurement policy:
Green procurement policy

When compliance with the Group's operating and pricing requirements,
preference is given to suppliers who are competent to provide
environmentally friendly products and/or services, including environmentally
certified materials or services (such as RoHS and REACH compliant
materials), use of products made of natural materials, products free of toxic
and hazardous substances, and other products/devices compliant with the
relevant environmental regulations. The Group is actively promoting the
proportion of environmental suppliers (the proportion of suppliers providing
environmentally friendly materials to the total suppliers), with the goal that

the materials provided by suppliers are 100% RoHS compliant.

Green manufacturing policy

Since the Group's business is the manufacturing of electronic products,
the main environmental impacts are electronic waste generation and
resource consumption during the production process. Therefore, the green
manufacturing policy is implemented along with the green procurement
policy to provide customers with environmental compliant products,
including compliance with the local environmental laws in the importing
countries, such as RoHS, REACH.

The Group is committed to the use of energy-efficient and water-efficient
equipment in the manufacturing process. Resource recycling process is
established to collect the reusable packaging materials for proper handling,
in order to reduce waste generation and wastage of various production
resources. A sewage treatment plant was set up to process wastewater
for compliance with the environmental standards, and then the treated
wastewater is recycled to be used for production or other purposes. This
not only reduces wastewater discharge but also decreases the total water

consumption.
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The Group has defined day-to-day management measures to reduce and
control the emissions of hazardous wastes. Annual environmental trainings
are provided to employees to enhance their environmental awareness and

to implement environmental management measures.

In addition, the Group regularly monitors the significant environmental
impacts to ensure compliance with local regulations of where the Group's
businesses locate. Regular environmental audits are conducted to identify
nonconformities timely, and implement the appropriate corrective and

preventive actions.

Society

3.2.1 Employment

In addition to complying with local employment regulations, the Group has
also formulated a series of employment policies to ensure that employees

are treated in a fair and reasonable manner.

Recruitment and promotion

The Group recruits employees through the company's website, emall,
advertisements, etc.,, and gives equal opportunity to every job applicant. The
Group shall not reject any applicant because of gender, age, race, and other
physical conditions. Employment decisions are solely based on fulfilment of
the job requirements, and shall not discriminate against physically disabled
applicants. Besides local applicants, applicants of other ethnicities and
nationalities are also considered at the time of recruitment, including ethnic

minorities and expatriates.

Regarding the mechanism for employee's promotion, the Group only refers
to the employee’s performance, experience and competence, and does not
consider other irrelevant attributes such as marital status, physical condition

and gender, etc.
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Wages and Benefits

The Group signs a contract of employment with its employees in accordance
with local laws to ensure employees’ legal rights in the employment
relationship, including the payment of legal minimum wage, and employees’
entitlement to paid holidays, vacation, sick leave and leave for workrelated
injury. In addition to the purchase of social insurance for employees
according to local employment regulations, the Group also purchases
commercial insurance beyond the local regulations in order to reduce
employee’s cost of seeking for medical services. In case of work-related
injuries and accidents, the Group will arrange reasonable compensation for

its employees and their families in accordance with laws.

During the reporting period, the Group did not discover or receive any
violations or complaints regarding discrimination or recruitment. As of 31
December, 2018, the total number and distribution of employees within the

Group are as follows:
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AZE018F 128318 - KEAH
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Number of Employees

ETAR
Hong Kong Shenzhen
Gender 5l E Y|
Male St 12 195
Female g3 8 436

Number of Employees

BETAY
Hong Kong Shenzhen
Job type IHER N YN
Full-time 28 20 631
Part-time iy 0 0
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Number of Employees

ETAH

Hong Kong Shenzhen
Age BTHFR 0 #
18-30 18-30 | 118
31-45 31-45 10 414
46 - 60 46 - 60 9 99
> 60 > 60 0 0
Total By 20 631

Average Monthly Employee

Turnover Rate (%)

BREERKLE (%)
Hong Kong Shenzhen
Gender TEMERI BB ]l
Male S 16,0 8.l
Female egid 219 55

Average Monthly Employee

Turnover Rate (%)

BRAREERELE (%)

Hong Kong Shenzhen
Age EIFkK N YN
18-30 18-30 50.00 1299
31-45 31 -45 20.00 507
46 - 60 46 - 60 1296 3.37
> 60 > 60 0 0
Total B 1833 6.29
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3.2.2 Health and Safety 322 REEZE

The Group is committed to achieving the goal of zero work accidents
through different measures to prevent the occurrence of occupational

diseases and work-related injuries and fatalities.
Workplace Safety Management

The Group conducts annual safety monitoring to identify potential safety
hazards, and implement corrective and preventive actions in a timely manner.
The Group installed protective devices for the production equipment and
machinery in the workplace to ensure that employees are not exposed to
dangerous parts. The compliance of the workplace is monitored, including
the provision of adequate fire equipment and regular safety inspection. In
addition, suppliers are requested to follow safety practice within the Group's
premises. All vehicles within the premises must be limited to the speed of
10 km/hour with no honking is allowed. Their driving routes shall follow the

instructions from the security team.

Employee Safety Training

The Group provides personal protective equipment to employees where
necessary, and arranges appropriate occupational health and safety trainings,
including the proper usage of protective equipment, awareness of safety risks
in the work place, content in the material safety data sheet (MSDS) and the
use, storage and emergency response to leakage of chemicals. The Group
also arranges fire and emergency drills regularly to train employees on the

evacuation routes at dangerous situations.

Work and Life Balance

The Group shall not force employees to work overtime, and regularly
organizes recreational activities, psychological counselling and trainings to
help employees relax from the working pressure, including psychological
health seminars, family days, tug-of-wars, seaside walk, watching movies,

hand-made, and explores various sport activities amongst employees.
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In addition, the Group is very concemed about how employees view the
company, therefore employee communication channels and suggestion
boxes have been set up. The suggestions collected from the employees are
followed up on a regular basis. Employee representatives are selected from
each department with the Group and they shall meet regularly for discussion

and sharing.

During the reporting period, the Group did not discover any violations
against the local occupational health and safety regulations. Within the
reporting period, no work-related fatality and lost day due to work-related

injury was found.

Development and Training

The Group established a comprehensive training system. Apart from the
general classroom trainings, the Group emphasises on-the-job exercises and
a mentor is assigned to every new employee. Through this apprenticeship
programme, the mentor gives the hands-on guidance and supervises the
new employee in accomplishing his/her work, this approaches enhances the
training efficiency and the new employee’s performance. Adjustments could
be made to the apprenticeship program according to the new employee's
competence and experience. At the same time, based on the Group's
strategies for product and business development, career development plan
is formulated for employees to support the sustainable development of the

Group's business.

During the reporting period, the monthly average proportions of employees
who have received training within the Group and the monthly average

number of trained hours received by each employee are as follows:
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BEZRINESH BHESWN
BRAVHREI SRR
Hong Kong Shenzhen Hong Kong Shenzhen
Gender =3 EN Y B# YN
Male Bt 68.46 0 077
Female 7 60.86 0 067
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Monthly Average Proportion of Monthly Average Number of

trained employees (%) Trained Hours per employee

BEZEINEEN BEREEN
SRAFHEIL =R RREbESS

Hong Kong Shenzhen Hong Kong Shenzhen
Employee level EE&A B8 el 0 w
Senior management aRERE 0 58.33 0 233
Middle management FRERE 0 57.16 0 1.04
Junior employee MH/ET 0 63.82 0 0.67
Labour Standards 324 XTER
The Group strictly prohibits the employment of child labour and will only EEBRRS I EAET DeRs

employ employees aged 18 or above. The Group follows the principle
of voluntary overtime to ensure that employees are willing to work and
employee's personal freedom is protected. The Group is committed not
to force employees to work overtime nor to work in any form of forced

labour, including not using any bonded labours such as prison workers.

For effective prevention of child labour, the applicant’s identity document
shall be carefully examined at the time of recruitment to confirm the age of
the applicant, and the application from an applicant less than 8 years of age
shall be excluded. In addition, the Group's personnel management system
set up an alert function to signal any applicant under the age of 18. With
this double gate-keeping mechanism, the risk of misusing child labour could
be avoided. Under the daily management, child labour will be terminated

immediately when he/she is discovered within the Group.

The Group has also set up measures to prevent forced labour. Employees
are required to submit working hours to their immediate supervisors. HR
shall review employees’ working hours, investigate immediately and stop the

relevant work assignment in case of involuntarily overtime identified.

During the reporting period, the Group did not discover any employment
of child labour nor any violation against the laws and regulations related to

forced labour.
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3.25 Supply Chain Management

The Group has developed supplier management policy for communication
to the suppliers the expectations of the Group and the requirements that
they need to abide by. The policy covers quality, environmental management,
health and safety, social responsibility, and anti-terrorism management, etc.
and these aspects are also the criteria for supplier selection. The Group has
established a supplier selection and evaluation procedure, which conducted
an initial review of new suppliers and an annual evaluation of key suppliers in
the form of on-site audits or questionnaires. The contents of the evaluation
include product quality, delivery time, environment, use of environmental
friendly materials, and management of hazardous substances. After the
evaluation, results shall be recorded as the monitoring evidence for the

subsequent long-term partnership.

Based on the aforesaid evaluation scope, procurement preference will be
given to local suppliers over their non-local counterparts who demonstrated
the same performance level from evaluation. Non-local suppliers shall be
considered only when no qualified local supplier available, currently local
suppliers account for about 96%. As of 31 December 2018, the geographical

distribution of the Group's suppliers is as follows:
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3.2.6 Product Responsibility 326 EmEfF

All products of the Group are subject to strict quality inspection/testing
before shipping out of the factory, including the sampling and monitoring
of hazardous substances in incoming materials such as 201 [/65/EU the
management procedure for the Restriction of the Use of Hazardous
Substances in Electrical and Electronic Products, in-process quality control,

and safety verification of the final products.

For product promotion and selling, the Group shall ensure the product
information provided to the customer is true and accurate to avoid any
misleading at the time of purchase. The Group also has designated customer
service personnel responsible for responding customer inquiries and initiating

product recall when necessary.

The Group has formulated a complaint handling mechanism to analyse with
Quality Department on the complaint received from customer, and shall
report the results of analysis and follow-up actions to the customer within

the specified time frame.

During the reporting period, the Group did not discover any customer
complaint or violation against regulations related to product responsibility;
and no item among all products sold was recalled due to product safety and

health reasons.
Quality Assurance Process

The Group starts the quality control of products at the source. Material
from supplier is verified for the quality acceptable before production,
alternatively the supplier is requested to provide an acceptable verification
report for raw materials. At the manufacturing process, production lines are
inspected and semi-finished products are sampled for verification to assure
the process meets the specified technical requirements. Final verification shall
be executed by Quality Department at the end of production; only finished

products which pass the verification could be delivered and sold.
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Upon identification of abnormal products through either external or internal
findings, the Group shall discuss amongst the relevant departments about
the need for identification, segregation and recall of the abnormal products
when necessary. Whenever product recall is necessary, the Group shall
collect the relevant batches of products from the customer, and implement

the procedure of nonconforming products for analysis and disposal.

Product Recall/Return Procedure

The Group has established product recall/return channel that allow
customers to report the product defects through phone or email. Internal
staff in the Group shall then evaluate the decision on product return upon
receipt of customer’s report. Whenever product return is deemed necessary,
the Marketing Department shall inform the customer to retumn the relevant
product. Warehouse shall record and track the retured products, and notify
the Quality Department to conduct cause analysis in order to identify the

solutions and the subsequent preventive measures.

Intellectual Property Protection

All products sold by the Group are newly designed by own brand. For
assurance of own brand's intellectual property, product design is sampled
and checked regularly for the ownership of the brand. Products will be
arranged to put off the shelf immediately upon any infringement of property

right is found.

The Group shall only adopt the product output from its own design centre,
and the design centre shall not plagiarize the design of other institutions. In
the employment contracts for employees in design centre, plagiarism is not
allowed and they committed that all their designs belong to company's assets
and they shall be held responsible for the confidentiality of their own design

products.

Up to now the Group has 4 product patents registered in the United States,
and 9 product patents registered in PRC. For management of information
security, the Group established KMS system through which information
of the Group's own design and product specifications from customer is

encrypted to prevent data leakage.
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The Group promises not to purchase any pirated office software, and such
software shall only be purchased from suppliers who have the appropriate
copyright; In addition, the IT Department shall conduct internal audits to
monitor any download of pirated software by employees. When employees
discovered using pirated software, he/she shall be instructed to delete the
pirated software immediately and be issued a waming letter for prevention

of recurrence.
Privacy Protection of Consumer Information

The Group has developed a policy for protection of consumer information
and privacy. Consumer information will not be used for publicity or
promotion without consumer’s permission. At the operation stage where
consumer information is processed by the Group's subcontractor, the Group
shall enter into a confidentiality agreement with the subcontractor and
request the subcontractor to have a robust information security management

system for preventing leakage and theft of customer information.

3.27 Anti-Corruption

The Group has established corporate governance policies in accordance with
the Code of Corporate Governance from the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
Also, the Group has formulated a policy of anti-corruption and prohibited
company directors, managers, employees and other representatives from

giving or accepting bribes.

Intemal Audit of Corporate Governance

The Group has established an Audit Committee which is responsible to
develop internal audit control procedures and annual audit plans for the
Group. This Committee conducts audits in an ongoing and systematic
manner in accordance with the annual audit plan and the additional
task announcement from the top management. Audit report is regularly
communicated with the management and disclosed to the Audit Committee.
Corrective actions and subsequent follow-ups shall be implemented in

accordance with the time frame specified in the audit report.
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Moreover, the Group hired an independent third party to conduct audit
on the Group's financial accounts. It aims to assure the company's accounts

are clear and accurate for enhancement of internal financial control and

supervision so that the interests of shareholders are protected.

Anti-Corruption Awareness Training

The Group announces its internal code of integrity at least once a year
with an emphasis on the awareness of corporate integrity; this includes the
principle that the Group never owes compensation, benefits and bonuses
to its employees and never owes payments to its suppliers. Also, additional
effort is paid to strengthen the awareness of anti-corruption to key
departments and positions. The Group communicates anti-corruption and
integrity through hotline, website and posters, and establishes investigation

channel for employees to report suspected fraud or corruption and other

illegal incidents such as extortion and money laundering.

Whistle-blowing Procedure

The Group has a whistle-blowing mechanism and communication channel
for employees, customers and suppliers to freely report any on fraud,
corruption and other illegal incidents. The reporting person is allowed
to send a written message to the mailbox of Internal Audit Department
in confidential and anonymous manner. Upon receipt, the Internal Audit
Department shall conduct investigation with other relevant departments

such as human resources, legal, logistics and career development, and then

return the investigation results to the reporting person.

Anti-Corruption Measures

In addition, the Group has established anti-corruption measures for various
aspects, including the declaration of personal interests by new employee
when report duty; also, directors are required to declare according to the
law their own interests including those in the competition business; regarding
procurement, evaluation from at least three suppliers is required to obtain
fair and reliable quotes for making procurement decision; for approval of
service contracts, different levels of personnel are authorized corresponding

to different levels of contract amount in order to ensure adequate review.

During the reporting period, the Group did not discover any legal cases or

complaints related to corruption.
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The directors (the "Directors”) of IDT International Limited (the “Company”) are pleased
to present to the shareholders their annual report and audited financial statements of the

Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) during the year ended December 31, 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its principal subsidiaries are
engaged in investment holdings, design, development, manufacturing, marketing and
distribution of lifestyle electronic products. Details of the principal activities of the Group

are set out in note | to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of revenue and segment information are set out in note 6 to the Consolidated

Financial Statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2018 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 90 and

further analysis is given in the accompanying notes to the financial statements.

DIVIDENDS
No interim dividend was paid for the year ended December 31, 2018 (2017: ni).

The Directors do not to recommend the distribution of a final dividend for the year

ended December 31,2018 (2017: nil).

GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five

financial years is set out on page 199 to 200.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year ended

December 31, 2018 are set out in note 24 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and of the Company during the year are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 93, and the financial

information of the Company on page 198, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At December 31, 2018, the Company did not have reserves available for distribution as

calculated in accordance with the provisions of the laws of Bermuda.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Group spent an aggregate amount
of approximately HK$14.5 million (for the year ended December 31, 2017: HK$24.8
million) on the acquisition of property, plant and equipment for the purpose of business

expansion.

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year are

set out in note 14 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended December 31, 2018, the aggregate percentage of purchases
attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers in the year accounted for approximately
31.9% of the Group's purchases and the purchases attributable to the largest supplier

accounted for approximately 8.9% of the Group's purchases.

During the year ended December 31, 2018, the aggregate percentage of turnover
attributable to the Group's five largest customers was approximately 46.0% of the Group's
turnover and the percentage of turnover attributable to the Group's largest customer was

approximately 27.1% of the Group's turnover.
None of the directors, their associates or shareholders, who to the knowledge of the

Directors own more than 5% of the Company's share capital, had any interest in any of

the five largest customers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended December 31, 2018 are:

Executive directors:

Xu Chiming (appointed on October 18, 2018)
Zhu Yongning (appointed on October 18, 2018
and appointed as CEO on October 22, 2018)

Foo Piau Phang (resigned on October 18, 2018)
Yan Keya (re-designated from Non-Executive Director to Executive Director on

August 1, 2018 resigned on October 22, 2018)

Qi Miao (resigned on August 1, 2018)
Quyang Jiejiao (appointed on August 25, 2018resigned on October 18, 2018)

Non-Executive directors:

Song Rongrong
Wu Gang (appointed on March 2, 2018, resigned on August 25, 2018)

Han Hongtu (appointed on March 2, 2018 resigned on August 25, 2018)

Xin Kexia (resigned on March 2, 2018)
Jing Tian (resigned on March 2, 2018)
Shi Changyun (resigned on March 2, 2018)

Independent Non-Executive directors:

Zhou Meilin (Appointed on October 18, 2018)
Zhou Rui (Appointed on October 18, 2018)

Xu Jinwen (Appointed on August 25, 2018)

Yang Xiongsheng (resigned on October 18, 2016)
Duh Jia-Bin (resigned on October 18, 2018)
Zhao Yuhong (resigned on August 25, 2018)

Li Quan (resigned on August 25, 2018)
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In accordance with Bye-Law 89 of the Company's Bye- Laws, any Director appointed
as an additional Director or to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company and shall be eligible for re-election but
shall not be taken into account in determining the Directors or the number of Directors
who are to retire by rotation at such meeting. On August 25, 2018, Mr. Xu Jinwen were
appointed as Independent non-executive Directors. On October 18, 2018, Mr. Xu
Chiming and Mr. Zhu Yongning were appointed as executive Directors; and Mr. Zhou
Meilin and Mr. Zhou Rui were appointed as Independent non-executive Directors. They
are eligible and, will offer themselves for re-election at the next annual general meeting of

the Company.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence from each of the
independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”). The Company considers all the independent non-executive Directors as

independent.

DIRECTORS BIOGRAPHY

Biographical details of the existing Directors are set out on pages |3 to |5 of this Annual
Report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years which can be terminated by either party giving
a three month'’s written notice to the other party. Under such service contract, each
of the independent non- executive directors is subject to retirement by rotation at the
annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with the Company's ByelLaws, and
is entitled to a fee subject to such adjustments as the Board of the Company considers
appropriate and the approval of the shareholders at annual general meeting of the
Company. Remuneration shall be paid to a director for appointment as a member of a

particular committee.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not determinable by the Group

within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

There were no contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
which subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended December
31,2018
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or in existence during

the year ended December 31, 2018.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

The directors or chief executives of the Company or any of their associates had, as at
December 31, 2018, any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO™)) which were notified to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange™)
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under the provisions of the SFO) or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.
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No. of % of the issued
Name Nature of Interests shares held shared capital
i BaitE FEROHE HERTRFEILL
Zhu Yongning (Note /) The interests of the controlled corporation 753,997,995 (L) 29%

KKB(HEE) PR 60 % B KO RE R

Note:

(1) Zhu Yongning holds 100% of the equity interests of China Huaneng Foundation Construction
Investment Ltd (“Huaneng”). Therefore, it is deemed to be interested in the interest in the

shares of the Company held by Huaneng through its subsidiary.

The letter “L" denotes the shareholder’s long position in the shares.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The effective share option scheme (the “2012 Share Option Scheme”) was adopted by
the Company on August 29, 2012. During the period under review, no share was granted,
exercised, lapsed or cancelled under the 2012 Share Option Scheme. As at December 31,

2018, there was no outstanding share option of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

No share options were granted to or exercised by the Directors during year ended

December 31, 2018 and there is no outstanding balance at December 31, 2018.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year ended December 31, 2018 was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or
their respective spouse or children under the age of |8 to acquire benefits by means of

the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at December 31, 2018, the following persons (other than the Directors or the chief
executives of the Company) had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company

under section 336 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company:

EZRBEROAERE 2ER

RBE-Z-N\F+-_A=+-BLFEEZ
YEERIITERRERN _F—/\F+_A
=t BUEEAARTE B -

BREXFABREEIN REE-T—/\F+_A
ST -HEFE  ARESEERANER R
E2EAARHE RESREBEAN2EBR
TAFEATZ FRABERE AR DA EMEM
EANER BRI EEE MBS -

FERR

R-E—N\E+-A=+—8 BRARAEES
FTHBES - THALRARRZ B KA
Ak - BERARREZESRBEKHIE
PR ATHEFE L ECMAMEENBENEARA
Al EmIAE

% of the issued

No. of shared capital
shares held HEBRTRAE
Name 5 FrisROEE BOk
China Huaneng Foundation i RERREERD
Construction Investment Ltd 753,997,995(L) 29%
Zhu Yongning (note 1) RXE(HE 1) 753997995(L) 29%
Jiangsu Hongtu High Technology Co., Ltd (note 2) T&LEREHRR 7D
B RE(HzE2) 556,898,770(L) 21.42%
Jiangsu Hongtu High Technology I#EE B (B R
(Hong Kong) Co. Limited (note 3) BRAR(HFE3) 556,898,770(L) 2142%
Hongtu High Technology Int' I Inc. Hongtu High Technology Int’ | Inc. 556,898,770(L) 21.42%
Chan Pau Shiu Yeng Shirley (note 4) BREE L (Hat4) 130,412,067 (L) 5.02%
Raymond Chan (note 4) BRIE X (Hfit4) 130,412,067 (L) 5.02%

Notes:

(1) Zhu Yongning holds 100% of the equity interests of China Huaneng Foundation Construction
Investment Ltd (“Huaneng”). Therefore, it is deemed to be interested in the interest in the

shares of the Company held by Huaneng through its subsidiary.
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Jiangsu Hongtu High Technology Co., Ltd. holds 100% of the equity interests of Jiangsu
Hongtu High Technology (Hong Kong) Co. Limited (“Hongtu (HK)"). Therefore, it is deemed
to be interested in the interest in the shares of the Company held by Hongtu (HK) through

its subsidiary (see note 3 below).

Hongtu (HK) holds 100% of the issued share of Hongtu High Technology Int'l Inc. (“Hongtu
(Seychelles)™). Therefore, Hongtu (HK) is deemed to be interested in the 556,898,770 shares
of the Company beneficially owned by Hongtu (Seychelles) by virtue of its shareholding of
Hongtu (Seychelles).

Mrs. Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley (“Mrs. Chan") is the wife of Dr. Raymond Chan ("“Dr.
Chan"). She is therefore deemed to be interested in the 130,412,067 shares of the Company
held by Dr. Chan. The letter “L" denotes the shareholder's long position in the shares.

The letter “L" denotes the shareholder’s long position in the shares.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified by any person (other than

the Directors or chief executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions

in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as at December 31, 2018 which

were required to be disclosed to the Company under Part XV of the SFO or which were

recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the

SFO.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(A)

Consignment Agreements

On June 9, 2017, BRAAZR E 5 (1/8) BR2AF] (Oregon Scientific Enterprise
(Shanghai) Limited®) (“Oregon Shanghai”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of

the Company, as the consignor entered into:

() the product consignment agreement and the related supplemental
agreement with 3t REEBRBAEFEMSZHEBHROLBRAF (Beijing
Funtalk Communication Chain Shuyang Procurement Centre Ltd.*)
(“Funtalk”), a company established in the PRC and controlled by =
SEHRAF (Sanpower Group Co., Ltd.*) (“Sanpower Group”), a
conglomerate established in the PRC, as consignee in respect of the
consignment of the products of Oregon Shanghai, such as consumer
electronic products developed and manufactured by Oregon Shanghai
(“Products”) through the sales and marketing network of Funtalk in the PRC
during the period from 9 June 2017 to 31 December 2019;
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(i)

the supplemental agreement of the product procurement agreement and
the product procurement (consignment) agreement dated 20 April 2017
with ZE =BT HR AR (High Tech Sanpower Co. Ltd.*)
("HISAP"), a company established in the PRC and controlled by Sanpower
Group, as consignee in respect of the consignment of the Products through
the sales and marketing network of HISAP in the PRC during the period
from 20 April 2017 to 31 December 2019; and

the supplemental agreement of the non-exclusive marketplace services
agreement dated 20 April 2017 with L/EEEHBMRAF (Shanghai
Meici Trading Limited*) (“Meici"), a company established in the PRC and
controlled by Sanpower Group, as consignee in respect of the consignment
of the Products through the sales and marketing network of Meici in the

PRC during the period from 20 April 2017 to 31 December 2019.

As at the date of the consignment agreements (as supplemented and
amended by the supplemental agreements) (“Consignment Agreements”),
as JIER B R RHERMH BRAF (angsu Hongtu High Technology Co,
Ltd.*), a controlling shareholder of the Company, is accounted for and
consolidated in the audited consolidated accounts of Sanpower Group,
Sanpower Group is a connected person of the Company for the purpose
of the Listing Rules. Each of HISAP, Meici and Funtalk is controlled by
Sanpower Group, and thus each of HISAP, Meici and Funtalk is a connected
person of the Company. Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under
the Consignment Agreements constitute continuing connected transactions

of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Details of the terms and conditions of the Consignment Agreements can
be referred to the Company's announcement issued and published on the

website of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on June 9, 2017.

During the year ended December 31, 2018, the aggregate commission

amount paid to consignee amounted to approximately HK$0.5million.
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(B)  Procurement Agreement

On June 8, 2017, BEEFRIX (RYIl) BRZAF] (DT Electronic Technology
(Shenzhen) Company Limited®) (“IDT Shenzhen”), an indirectly whollyowned
subsidiary of the Company, as buyer, entered into the framework product
procurement agreement (“Procurement Agreement’) with 5 7 B = B R
ZRAPRAT (Hunan Hongtu-Sanpower Science & Technology Development
Co,, Ltd*) (“Hunan Sanpower”) as seller in respect of the sale and purchase of PC
products and related accessories (“PC Products”). Pursuant to the Procurement
Agreement, IDT Shenzhen will procure the PC Products from Hunan Sanpower

from time to time.

During the year ended December 31, 2018, the aggregate procurement amount

from Hunan Sanpower amounted to approximately HK$63,936.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS, WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company had no outstanding convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights
at December 31, 2018.

There was no issue or exercise of any convertible securities, options, warrants or similar

rights of the Company during the year ended December 31, 2018.

REMUNERATION POLICY

Details of the Group’s remuneration policy are set out in the section of “Management

Discussion and Analysis” from pages 23 to 24 of this annual report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted its own Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions by
Directors (the “Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions”). This is on terms no less
exacting than the required standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing

Rules, and has been updated from time to time.

Having made specific enquiries to all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they had
complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code and the Code of
Conduct for Securities Transactions throughout the year ended December 31, 2018.
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The board members have been reminded of their obligation to comply with the Model

Code.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group's corporate governance principles and practices are set out in the Corporate

Governance Report on pages 25 to 49 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES
During the year ended December 31, 2018, neither the Company nor any of its

subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Bye-Laws or the
laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata

basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float throughout the year ended December 31, 2018 as required under
the Listing Rules.

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company has established an audit committee for the purposes of reviewing and
providing supervision over the financial reporting process and internal controls of the
Group. As at the date of this report, the audit committee comprises all three independent

non-executive directors of the Company.

The audited financial results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2018 have

been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

DIRECTORS’ VIEW ON THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S OPINION

The independent auditor of the Company has issued a disclaimer of opinion on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2018,
Details of the disclaimer of opinion are disclosed in extract from Independent Auditor’s

Report on this report pages 87 and 89.
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THE BOARD’S REPSONSE TO THE AUDITOR’S OPINION

In regard to the matters described in the section headed “Disclaimer of Opinion” and “Basis
for Disclaimer of Opinion” in the Independent Auditor's Report, the Board would like to
take this opportunity to provide the Boards' preliminary response, as well as measures

taken or to be taken by the management of the Company.

THE BOARD RESPONSE TO “DISCLAIMER OF OPTION — GOING
CONCERN”

As the Group had net current liabilities of HK$47.3 million and net liabilities of HK$43.0
million for the year ended December 31, 2018, the Board will appoint a team, which
will be led by the chief financial officer, to monitor the daily cashflow so as to ensure the
Group has the sufficient financial resources to settle the Group's financial obligation when
fall due.

In addition, in order to improve the Group's financial position, to provide liquidity with
cash flows and to sustain the Group as a going concem, the Group has been implementing

a number of measures, including but not limited to:

(i)  The Group obtained a loan amounted of HK$32.5 million from China Huaneng
Foundation Construction Investment Limited (“Huaneng"), the largest shareholder
of the Company, with the term of interest rate at 5% per annum and the maturity
term of 3 years, which was recorded as non-current liability in the consolidated

financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018;

(i) Huaneng has also committed to provide continuous financial support to the Group

as is necessary to enable the Group to meet its financial obligations as they fall due;

(iify ~ The management will continue to reduce all non-essential costs;

(iv)  The management will look for the potential investor to raise further capital as well

as to improve its gearing ratio by repaying loans and debts of the Group.

The Company and the audit committee shared the same view that the above solutions

will help raise capital to improve the liquidity and financial position of the Group.
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EEEHRES

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu,
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company's Bye-laws, every Director shall be entitled to be indemnified
out of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by

him as a Director.

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors' and officers’ liability insurance coverage

for the Directors and officers of the Group throughout the year.

On behalf of the Board

Xu Chiming Zhu Yongning

Executive Director (Chairman) Executive Director (Chief Executive Officer)

March 29, 2019
Hong Kong
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Deloitte.

TO THE MEMBERS OF IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
BREBRARAA
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of IDT International
Limited BELEIEE AR AR (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as "the Group") set out on pages 90 to 98, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at December 31, 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the

consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
Because of the significance of the matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer of
Opinion section of our report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated financial
statements. In all other respects, in our opinion the consolidated financial statements have

been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

As described in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group reported a
net loss attributable to the owners of the Company of HK$215.6 million during the year
ended December 31, 2018. As at the same date, the Group had net current liabilities
of HK$47.3 million and net liabilities of HK$43.0 million, as compared to its unrestricted
cash and cash equivalents which amounted to HK$22.3 million only. The Group's ability
to continue as a going concem is dependent on the ongoing availability of financing to the

Group, including the financial support from the shareholder.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 3% A &

As further described in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the largest
shareholder of the Company has committed in writing to provide financial support to
the Group as necessary to enable the Group to meet its financial obligations as and
when they fall due for the foreseeable future. However, we have not been provided with
sufficient appropriate documentary evidence to enable us to assess the financial ability of
the shareholder of the Company to provide such financial support to the Group. If the
financing were not available, the Group would be unable to meet its financial obligations

as and when they fall due.

In view of the extent of the limitation of audit evidence relating to the ongoing availability
of finance to the Group, and the significance of the Group's ongoing reliance on this

financing, we disclaim our opinion in respect of the year ended December 31, 2018.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA™) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no

realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial

reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group's consolidated financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. However, because of the matter described in the Basis
for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we were not able to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated

financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical

responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is

Wong Shun Yu.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

March 29, 2019
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER AR

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HeBEERHEMEZERER

For the year ended December 31,2018
BEZZ—/\§T-A=1+—HIEE

NOTES 2018 2017
Pt —B-N\E —B—tF
HK$ million HK$ million
REEEER BEAET
(Restated)
(&g8751)
Revenue Yz 6 4332 516.6
Cost of goods sold HERAK (404.3) (413.1)
Gross profit e 28.9 1035
Other income Hf WA 7 5.7 5.1
Other gains and losses HifrERER 7 (11.5) (39)
Impairment losses on financial assets, net of reversal & @l &&= R EEE « HIKREE 8 (10.3) (92
Impairment of goodwill BERE 16 (33.8) =
Research expenses MEEH (39.2) (41.6)
Distribution and selling expenses A RIHERX (84.4) (71.9)
General administrative expenses —RITBF X (55.5) (67.5)
Finance costs BMEKA (3.2) (02)
Loss before taxation BREAIERE 9 (203.3) (857)
Taxation Hi1A 12 (12.3) =
Loss for the year AFEFE (215.6) (85.7)
Other comprehensive expenses: Hit2EAX
[tem that may be reclassified subsequently RErjees r EEBmtk
to profit or loss: HIER
Exchange differences arising on translation MEBIRBELNEN 25
of foreign operations (5.9) (4.0)
Total comprehensive expenses for the year AFEEEERAY B (221.5) (89.7)
Loss and total comprehensive expenses for NTEBERERFREEHRER
the year attributable to: FHRXEE
— Owners of the Company o VNGIE ZS PN (221.5) (89.7)
— Non-controlling interests — R — —
(221.5) (89.7)
Loss per share BREE
— Basic (HK cents) —ER(EBI) 13 (8.29) (3.30)
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER AR

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
mE BRI R

At December 31,2018
RZE—-\F+=A=+-H

NOTES 2018 2017
Pt —E-N\F —T—tF
HK$ million HK$ million
BEEET BERET
(Restated)
(g=51)
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ERE Y e 14 27.6 325
Intangible assets RV EE 15 26 33
Goodwil BE 16 — 3338
Rental deposits Heke 6.5 6.7
Prepaid rental BREE 0.1 1.6
36.8 779
Current assets MENBE
Inventories FE 17 74.8 1304
Trade and other receivables 0 B R B Lt B W R TE 18 81.3 162.5
Tax recoverable AR EIFIE — 0.1
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRESR 19 223 372
178.4 3302
Current liabilities mEBE
Trade and other payables FERT AR IR S E A PR 500 20 117.8 1929
Tax payable e 12.3 —
Borrowing &3 21 374 355
Contract liabilities AR&E py) 58.2 —
225.7 2284
Net current (liabilities) assets nE(BE)EEFE (47.3) 101.8
Non-current liability FERBEE
Loan from a shareholder BRERER 23 32.5 —
Net (liabilities) assets (BR)EEFE (43.0) 179.7
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER AR

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
A B EMROR &R

At December 31,2018
RZE-N\E+=A=1+—H

NOTES 2018 2017

ik —B-N\E S e

HK$ million HK$ million

BYEETR BEBET
(Restated)

(& &51)

Capital and reserves B K St

Share capital B 24 260.0 2600
Reserves ] (303.1) (804)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ARRIER ARG R (43.1) 179.6
Non-controlling interests IR 0.1 0.1
(Net deficit) total equity (FER)ERER (43.0) 179.7

The consolidated financial statements on pages 90 to 198 were approved and authorised FNBEEE|BE Y BAVERREERN -
for issue by the board of directors on March 29, 2019 and are signed on its behalf by: —NEZA-+NBEEESoH RIS
17 WA PIATRREE

XU CHI MING ZHU YONG NING #BEm Sk
CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR *E BZ
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER AR

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

REERBHR
For the year ended December 31,2018
BE=F—\FtoA=t-ALEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARARE AR
Non-
Share Share Other  Translation ~ Accumulated Sub- controlling
capital premium reserve reserve losses total interests Total
EHiE SR
BE ROEE AR i ZiER It 56 &t
HK milion ~ HK$milon ~ HK$milion ~ HK$ milion ~ HK$ milion ~ HK$ milion ~ HK$ millon ~ HK$ million
A¥RET AREET A%nEn A¥eEr A¥PER AWEERT A¥EER AEEER
(Note)
(HfzE)
At January |, 2017 RZE—+E-A-A 2600 1650 325 (929) (953) 2693 0l 2694
Exchange differences arising on BERNERELZELER
translation of foreign operations - - - (40) - (40) - (40)
Loss for the year rEEEE — — = = (857) (857) = (857)
Total comprehensive expenses rEFRERRAR
for the year - - - (40) (857) (89.7) - (89.7)
At December 31, 2017 RZE—tE+-A=1-H 2600 1650 325 (%9) (1819) 1796 0l 1797
Adjustment (note 3) g% (W) - - - - (12) (12) - (12)
At | January 2018 (restated) RZZ-\E-R—-RH (F=5) 2600 1650 35 99) (182) 1784 0l 1785
Exchange differences arising on BESNEHELZELER
translation of foreign operations - - - 59 - 69 - 69
Loss for the year TEEFE = = = = (2155) (2156) = (2156)
Total comprehensive expenses AERREAXAE
for the year - - - (59 (2156) (2215) - (2215)
At December 31,2018 RZF-NFTZR=1-H 2600 1650 325 (1028) (3978) (43.1) 0l (430)

Note:

In 2012, the Group acquired the additional interests of its subsidiary and the amount represented
the difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests were adjusted and the fair

value of the consideration paid.

Wi

R-F-—F RREREEANBAANRIMES  ZNERFE
RESAEERACNREATEZRNER -
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER AR

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HEBEERER

For the year ended December 31,2018
BE-R-\FT-A=t-HItFE

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—tF

HK$'M HK$M

BEEET BEAET

Cash flows from operating activities RERPELCHERE
Loss before taxation BREiAI 2 18 (203.3) (85.7)
Adjustments for: HE -

Interest income FEKA (0.2) (04)
Finance costs AERA 32 02
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment MmE - BBERZEBINE 14.5 127
Impairment loss on goodwill HERERE 33.8 -
Impairment loss on trade receivables FYRERFRERL 10.3 9.2
Amortisation of intangible assets EVEE #H 0.7 0.7

Amortisation of prepaid rental BNMAE 2 #H 1.5 Il
Impairment of available-for-sale investment AIREERE A — 09
Losses on disposals of property, plant and equipment HEME  BERREZER 5.0 04
Write-down (reversal) of inventories FERUA (BERE) 34.6 (33)
Exchange losses RN ! (6.0) “.1)
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital & iE& & #BH 2L EREME (105.9) (68.3)
Decrease (increase) in rental deposits MemeR > (Em) 0.2 (1.1
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERAD(EM) 21.0 (24.9)
Decrease (increase) in trade and other receivables B 0 Lt B R R D (3B ) 69.8 8.2)
(Decrease) increase in trade and other payables FEAST BR AR B ELth FE 5 SR IEIE AN O 2 (34.2) 478
Increase in contract liabilities BREEEM 15.6 —
Cash used in operations RETBMARS (33.5) (54.7)
Tax refund B 0.1 04
Net cash used in operating activities REEHMAREFE (334) (54.3)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HEEERER

For the year ended December 31,2018

BE-T—\G+-A=t—ALEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'M HK$'M

EEEER BEAET

Investing activities REES
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment & ¥ 3 « #28 K L H TS FUB — 0.1
Interest received B IKHLS 0.2 04
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BENE  HEREE (14.5) (24.8)
Payment for patents and trademarks ENRER 2R — 03)
Net cash used in investing activities REEHMARSFE (14.3) (24.6)
Financing activities BEEE)
Proceeds from borrowing BT IA — 355
Proceed of loan from a shareholder REREFFEHE 32.5 —
Interest paid REREE) 0.1 02)
Net cash from financing activities REEHMARESFE 324 353
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents BekERAREBEE 2R FHE (15.3) (43.6)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year FOzHRekERREER 372 80.7
Effects of foreign exchange rate changes INEEXEETE 0.4 0.1

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year,

representing bank balances and cash

FR7BEeERREHER
AR E MIRITES 223 372

Annual Report 2018 %k 95



IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended December 31,2018
HE_Z-\F+-A=t—-BLFE

96

GENERAL
IDT International Limited & B EIFRBMR 2 7A] (the “Company’) is incorporated

in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability. The shares of the
Company are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange"). The addresses of the registered office and principal place of business
of the Company are disclosed in the Corporate Information section to the annual

report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company while its subsidiaries are
engaged in the design, development, manufacture, sales and marketing of various

consumer electronic products.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars which is

the same as the functional currency of the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company
have given careful consideration to the future liquidity of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) in light of the fact that the
Group's current liabilities exceeded its current assets by HK$47.3 million as at
December 31, 2018, the Group's total liabilities exceeded its total assets by
HK$43.0 million as of that date, and that the Group incurred a loss of HK$215.6

million for the year then ended.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

The directors are of the opinion that the Group will have sufficient working capital
to finance its operations and to meet its financial obligations for at least the next
twelve months from the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements
given that (I) China Huaneng Foundation Construction Investment Limited
(“Huaneng”), the largest shareholder of the Company, has committed to provide
continuous financial support to the Group as is necessary to enable the Group to
meet its financial obligations as they fall due and (2) the management of Group will

continue to reduce all non-essential costs.

However, should the above measures not be able to implement successfully, the
Group may not have sufficient funds to operate as a going concem, in which case
adjustments might have to be made to the carrying values of the Company's assets
to their recoverable amounts, to reclassify the non-current assets and non-current
liabilities as current assets and current liabilities, respectively and to provide for any

further liabilities which might arise.

e MR R

For the year ended December 31,2018
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended December 31,2018
BEZZ—/\§T-A=1+—HIEE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG 3. WARKEBIEEMEREEMN(E
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) BUBREEDN ) 2ER
New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current FEERBIERZHTRZEITEBH
year BREER
The Group has applied the following new and amendments to HKFRSs issued by RAFE AEEERRAHEESH
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") for the first MAg((EEgtMAg ) BRI
time in the current year: Ha] RSB TR BB ELR
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments EARBHRE ZHIA
ZAIFE 9%
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers BERUBRE EFFAAMEK
and the related Amendments LRIFE 155 1B
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Forejgn Currency Transactions and BR(ERME SESSZR
Advance Consideration mERE BRE
Z8g)
Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Z2EN
Share-based Payment Transactions BERMBRE URGEERHTH
£RIF 25 REH7ERTE
Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments ZIER]
with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts BRMBEHSE EBAZEHBFREE
£RIF 45 FIN[2MIA
ZIER] RE B HHEER
F4BREEA]
Amendments to HKAS 28 As part of the Annual Improvements BRGIEN (ERTEYFHEER
to HKFRSs 2014-20/6 Cycle 285 —E-WEF
ZIER] ZE-NFHY
ZFEXE
Z &7
Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property BREQER HEHFERANE
F 405k 2 BT
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current

year (continued)

Except as described below, the application of the new and amendments to
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the Group's financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures

set out in these consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Group has applied HKFRS 5 for the first time in the current year. HKFRS 15
superseded HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS || Construction Contracts and the related

interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS |5 retrospectively with the cumulative effect of
initially applying this standard recognised at the date of initial application, January
I, 2018. Any difference at the date of initial application is recognised in the
opening accumulated losses (or other components of equity, as appropriate)
and comparative information has not been restated. Furthermore, in accordance
with the transition provisions in HKFRS 15, the Group has elected to apply the
standard retrospectively only to contracts that are not completed at January I,
2018. Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be comparable as
comparative information was prepared under HKAS 18 Revenue and the related

interpretations.
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For the year ended December 31,2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended December 31,2018
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG 3. WARKEBIEEMEREEMN(E
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued) BUBREEN ) 2ERE)
New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current FEERBIERZHTRZEITEBH
year (continued) BRERER(Z)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (continued) BROBHEENE ISHEFEHNZ
(%)
The Group recognises revenue from manufacturing and sales of various consumer AEERRARERHEERBEFPANS
electronic products which arise from contracts with customers. BEFHEEmMAKE °
Information about the Group's performance obligations and the accounting FAASEERAEENBRELAE S
policies resulting from application of HKFRS 15 are disclosed in note 6 and note 4 5515 BAV B R BRI T 6 PN EE
respectively. 4R -
Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 15 DL BB FHEERE 15 FEE
HIZERE
The following adjustments were made to the amounts recognised in the RZZE-N\F-A—BNGEaHBRR
consolidated statement of financial position at January |, 2018. Line items that were FERANEECHELUTRE - #IER
not affected by the changes have not been included. BIXTEMINER -
January |,
December 31, 2018
2017 (After
Note (Audited)  Reclassification Remeasurement adjustment)
“EBtF —E-N\F
+=RA=t-H -A-H
fif & (BEZ) BHNR BHfitE (BE#)
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
AREET  B¥AEn  E%EEnT  AWEER
CURRENT LIABILITES RBRE
Trade and other payables ERETR
At A @) 1929 (426) - 150.3
Contract liabilties BREE @) - 426 = 426
Note (a)  AsatJanuary |, 2018, advances from customers of HK$42.6 million previously fizt:@ RZZE-NF-A—B %7l

included in trade and other payables were reclassified to contract liabilities.

100  Annual Report 2018 F#§

AT AT B 50 B L A FE A 3ROR
HNEPRREE4.68 BB
PERANAR -



IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)
New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current

year (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (continued)

The following table summarises the impacts of applying HKFRS 15 on the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2018 and its
consolidated statement of cash flows for the current year for each of the line items

affected. Line items that were not affected by the changes have not been included.

Impact on the consolidated statement of financial position

3.

e MR R

For the year ended December 31,2018

HE-T-\F+-A=+—-BL5FE
FARBETERMBERERN(E
BUBERERA ) 2ERAE)
AEERHERZHITREBIEEY
BEERER(E)

BEYBHEERE ISHEFEH YW
(%)

TEREAERAE BN BIRSER
HASER-_Z—N\F+_A =
BEMBRARRAEESRYEEE
NEeReRnERNTE - IEEEL
X EMYBEE o

HGa BN AR 7
Amounts

without

application

As reported  Adjustment  of HKFRS 15

I £ & Fi
BEMBRE
B |55

HIFT 23R R H& 8
HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million
AEEET A%EEnr AKEER

CURRENT LIABILITES REBEE
Trade and other payables 5 BR % % L FE £+ 300
Contract liabilities EHEE

1178 582 179.1
582 (582) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended December 31,2018
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T A=t BLEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current

year (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (continued)

Impact on the consolidated statement of cash flows for amounts without

application of HKFRS 15

FARBETERMBERERN(E
BUMBREER ) 2EAE)
FEERBERZHITREBITEEY
BEREER(E)

BEYBHEERE ISHEFEH YW
(%)

WERAEEYFHEERE 5K %
B AR e kT E

Amounts
without

application

Asreported  Adjustment  of HKFRS 15

3 &R
BRMBRE
ERIE 155

T2 R HE K&
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
AEEET AB%Bgnr AKEER

Operating activities mEEE
Decrease in trade and other payables EIRNERETRK

H it FE S SRR A
Increase in contract liabilities BREEEM

(342) 156 (186)
156 (156) —

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and
the related consequential amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces
new requirements for |) the classification and measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities, 2) expected credit losses (“ECL") for financial assets and 3)

general hedge accounting,
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current

year (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the transition provisions
set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied the classification and measurement requirements
(including impairment under ECL model) retrospectively to instruments that have
not been derecognised as at January |, 2018 (date of initial application) and has not
applied the requirements to instruments that have already been derecognised as
at January I, 2018. The difference between carrying amounts as at December 31,
2017 and the carrying amounts as at January |, 2018 are recognised in the opening
accumulated losses and other components of equity, without restating comparative

information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be comparable as
comparative information was prepared under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:

Recognition and Measurement.

Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 9 are disclosed in note 4.

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 9

The table below illustrates the classification and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities and other items subject to ECL under HKFRS 9 and HKAS 39 at
the date of initial application, January |, 2018.

e MR R

For the year ended December 31,2018
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e MR

For the year ended December 31,2018
BE_Z\F+_A=1—BLFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG 3. WARKEBIEEMEREEMN(E
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued) BUBREEN ) 2ERE)
New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current FEERBIERZHTRZEITEBH
year (continued) BRERER(Z)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued) BRUBHERAEIRLHBIR(E)
Summary of effects anising from initial application of HKFRS 9 (continued) A E B L ERE 9 FEE R
TENE(E)
Financial
assets
previously Financial
classified assets at
as loans and amortised  Accumulated
Notes receivables costs losses
KASER

EXRER ZEHRE

FIEK RN
B % THEE tREE 25 EAR
HK$ million HK$ million  HK$ million
BEEEL B¥EERT #BYEER

Closing balance at December 31, RZE—+F
2017 - HKAS 39 +ZA=t—BHXK
e — BB G HER
£395% 159.7 o (181.0)
Effect arising from initial application NP EABERBERE
of HKFRS 9: EUFIRELNTE
Reclassification EFNNE
— From loans and receivables —REERRENGK (a) (159.7) 159.7 —
Remeasurement EfTtE
Impairment under ECL model EHEEBEEXT
HYRE (b) — 12 (12)
Opening balance at January |, 2018 R=2-N\F¥—-H—H
iRIERS 23 — 158.5 (1822)
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current

year (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Summary of effects anising from initial application of HKFRS 9 (continued)

(@)  Loans and receivables

From loans and receivables to financial assets at amortised cost

The loans and receivables were reclassified as financial assets at amortised
cost since the Group's business model is to hold these financial assets for
collection of contractual cash flows, and the cash flows represent solely

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure ECL
which uses a lifetime ECL for all trade receivables arising from transactions
within the scope of HKFRS 15. To measure the ECL, receivables have been

grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics.

e MR R

For the year ended December 31,2018
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FEME(E)

@@ EXRREKFRE
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ENTREE

ER R ERFIRE R D B RE R
RAGENEREE ARAKE
RAEZSEREENEERA /R
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EREREAE KA ERMES
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For the year ended December 31,2018
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current

year (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Summary of effects anising from initial application of HKFRS 9 (continued)

(@)  Loans and receivables (continued)

ECL for other financial assets at amortised cost, including other receivables
and bank balances, are assessed on |2-month ECL basis as there had been

no significant increase in credit risks since initial recognition.

As at January |, 2018, additional credit loss allowance of HK$1.2 million has
been recognised against accumulated losses. The additional loss allowance is

charged against the respective asset.
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For the year ended December 31,2018
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG 3. FEIRKREBITERMEREEN(E

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current

year (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Summary of effects anising from initial application of HKFRS 9 (continued)

Impairment under ECL model

BUBERERA ) 2ERAE)
AEERHERZHITREBIEEY

BEREER(E)

FRUBEEERNEIRETHTR(E)

E AT BN FHEERE B E LA

FEME(E)

(0)

All loss allowance for trade receivables and other receivables as at

December 31, 2017 reconciled to the opening loss allowances as at January |,

2018 are as follows:

BEEEERER THRE

R-Z—+F+-_A=1+—HEZ
JE LS B 30 K 4t FE W TR TE RO T /S
BEEEN T \F—A—HN

HOBBRRELERNT
Amount
KX
HK$ million
BEEET
At December 31, 2017 RZF—+F+=-A=+—H
— HKAS 39 —EBGEAE R 231
Amounts remeasured through opening BRI R BRENTENERE
accumulated losses |2
At January 1,2018 RZZE-N\F—-H—H 243
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For the year ended December 31,2018
BE_Z\F+_A=1—BLFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG 3. HARRETEEMBREEN(E
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued) BUBREEN ) 2ERE)
New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current FEERBIERZHTRZEITEBH
year (continued) BRERER(Z)
Impacts on opening consolidated statement of financial position arising from the B H AT BRI #1478 B Bt R
application of all new standards FHZE
As a result of the changes in the Group's accounting policies above, the opening AR ERASEEHBEED B4R
consolidated statement of financial position had to be restated. The following table BHBMRARELET - TRIIRHE
shows the adjustments recognised for each of the line items affected. Line items RYEBARALAE - BIEAEIK
that were not affected by the changes have not been included. TEMHER -
December 31, January 1,
2017 (Audited) HKFRS 15 HKFRS9 2018 (Restated)
== —g-)\E
tT-A=t-H BEWKHRES EAMBES -A-H
(B&R)  RUF 5K RERIE 95 (&E5)

HKS million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
AEEETL BEHET BEHET BEEER

CURRENT ASSETS hBEE

Trade and other receivables FEURER 30 B At e 30 1625 — (12) 161.3

CURRENT LIABILITES RBRE

Trade and other payables FNERSRREMERES 1929 (426) = 150.3

Contract liabilties ANAR - 126 - 426

Capital and reserves RAR &

Reserves E1 (804) - (12) (81.6)

Note: For the purposes of reporting cash flows from operating activities under indirect izt BE_T-\F+ZA=+t—-HIt
method for the year ended December 31, 2018, movements in working capital have FERERE }f #ﬁizﬁﬁ% 2 EEESE
been computed based on opening statement of financial position as at January |, ZEEREMS € BESZHPER
2018 as disclosed above. ﬁbliﬁing'g*)\ifﬂfﬂﬁﬂ

MABARRREE -
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG

IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to HKFRSs

that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

HK(FRIC)-Int 23

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Leases'

Insurance Contracts?

Uncertainty over Income

Tax Treatments'

Definition of a Business*

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation'

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate

or Joint Venture?

e MR R

For the year ended December 31, 2018
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For the year ended December 31,2018
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS | and
HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

Definition of Material®

Plan Amendment, Curtailment

or Settlement!

Long-term Interests in Associates

and Joint Ventures'

Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle!

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January |, 2019

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January |, 2021

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined

Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions which the acquisition date

is on or after the beginning of the first annual period beginning on or after January |,

2020

5

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January I, 2020

Except for the new HKFRS mentioned below, the directors of the Company

anticipate that the application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs will

have no material impact on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable

future.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of lease
arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16
will supersede HKAS |7 Leases and the related interpretations when it becomes

effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of whether an
identified asset is controlled by a customer. In addition, HKFRS |6 requires sales and
leaseback transactions to be determined based on the requirements of HKFRS 15
as to whether the transfer of the relevant asset should be accounted for as a sale.

HKFRS 6 also includes requirements relating to subleases and lease modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed for lessee
accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for

short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

e MR R

For the year ended December 31,2018
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For the year ended December 31,2018
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at
cost (subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability is
initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments,
as well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification
of cash flows, operating lease payments are currently presented as operating
cash flows. Under the HKFRS |6, lease payments in relation to lease liability will
be allocated into a principal and an interest portion which will be presented as
financing cash flows by the Group, while upfront prepaid lease payments will
continue to be presented as investing or operating cash flows in accordance to the

nature, as appropriate.

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable to lessor, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and
continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease or a

finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS [6.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

As at December 31, 2018, the Group has non-cancellable operating lease
commitments of HK$28.9 million as disclosed in note 29. A preliminary assessment
indicates that these arrangements will meet the definition of a lease. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability in respect of all these leases unless they qualify for low value

or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental deposits paid of
HK$6.5 million and refundable rental deposits received of HK$0.7 million as rights
and obligations under leases to which HKAS |7 applies. Based on the definition
of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments relating to
the right to use the underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts of such
deposits may be adjusted to amortised cost and such adjustments are considered
as additional lease payments. Adjustments to refundable rental deposits paid would
be considered as additional lease payments and included in the carrying amount of
right-of-use assets. Adjustments to refundable rental deposits received would be

considered as advance lease payments.

e MR R

For the year ended December 31,2018

HE-T-\F+-A=+—-BL5FE
A REBTEBMBREERN(E
BUBERERA ) 2ERAE)
ERMEKRERZHET REBTER
MBHREER(E)

BERUBHEEERE 16 HHE(E)

AEBR-_T-\F+-A=1+—HE
ERAHECEMEREEE 28988
TR 29RE) - MAFEER - It
ERPRTEHENTE - REREA
PHREENS 165 AEEBHER
FREEE UREMBUHEHERH
MEERE BRIEFBEAEREEENR
EHHEERNER o

Woh - ARBE B RAIHE X AR ARER
e AETRERRMATEE
HeReBBUBEEBL RABHES
FERE I7RERMEE THERRE
o REFBEMBREEAE 65 TH
ENENTES  FRREUFEEHEE
ETRAEEHENTE At ZFRe
MEEAETASARARHENE  5H
AEERABINAETE - HEIAH
REFSESELNABERHEEAE
IEEREYGAFEAREENREE
Fo HEWRBMARERSESELN
ARBHERABABERE -

Annual Report 2018 F£# 113



IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended December 31,2018
HE_Z-\F+-A=t—-BLFE

3.

114

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

The application of new requirements may result in changes in measurement,
presentation and disclosure as indicated above. The Group elected the practical
expedient to apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified as leases
applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease and not apply this standard to contracts that were not previously
identified as containing a lease applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4. Therefore,
the Group will not reassess whether the contracts are, or contain a lease which
already existed prior to the date of initial application. Furthermore, the Group
elected the modified retrospective approach for the application of HKFRS 16
as lessee and recognised the cumulative effect of initial application to opening

accumulated losses without restating comparative information.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of

Securities on Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost
basis at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set

out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in

exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS
2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17
Leases, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36

Impairment of assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised
into Level |, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value

measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level I,

that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

J Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is

achieved when the Company:
J has power over the investee;

J is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the

investee; and
J has the ability to use its power to affect its retums.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three

elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the
subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the date when the Group

ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a

deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries
to bring their accounting policies line with those used by other members of the

Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated in full on

consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from the Group's
equity therein, which represent present ownership interests entitling their holders

to a proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is presented separately in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's
cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, which represent the lowest level at
which the goodwill is monitored for intemal management purposes and not larger

than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or groups of cash-generating units) to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment annually or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or groups of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that
reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to that unit and then to the other assets of the
unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or

groups of cash-generating units).
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon application of HKFRS 15 in

accordance with transitions in note 3)

Under HKFRS IS5, the Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, ie. when “control” of the goods or services underlying the

particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle of goods or
services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that are substantially

the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time by reference
to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant performance

obligation if one of the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided

by the Group's performance as the Group performs;

o the Group's performance creates and enhances an asset that the customer

controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group's performance does not create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for

performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains

control of the distinct good or service.

The Group recognised revenue at a point in time when the control of the goods is

transferred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon application of HKFRS 15 in

accordance with transitions in note 3) (continued)

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer goods or services
to a customer for which the Group has received consideration (or an amount of

consideration is due) from the customer.

Revenue recognition (prior to January I, 2018)

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable and
represents amounts receivable for goods sold in the normal course of business and

sales related taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured;
when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group's activities, as described

below.

Revenues from the sale of goods are recognised when the goods are delivered and

titles have passed, at which time all the following conditions are satisfied:

J the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of

ownership of the goods;

J the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree

usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

o the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

J it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will

flow to the Group; and

J the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be

measured reliably.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to

that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated

depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any

changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the
asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds

and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases

Leases are classified as finance lease whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lease. All other leases are

classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased

asset.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term, except where another systematic basis is more representative of

the time pattem in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases,
such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which

economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs not directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets are recognised in profit or loss in the year in which

they are incurred.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Research expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the year in which

it is incurred.

Patents and trademarks

Patents and trademarks are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment loss. Amortisation is calculated on
a straight-line basis over the estimated useful economic life of the relevant patents

and trademarks.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill (see the

accounting policy in respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order

to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of tangible and intangible assets are estimated individually,
or when it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an asset
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be

identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating

unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill (see the

accounting policy in respect of goodwill above) (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if
applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced
below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value
in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets

of the unit. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
(or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment

loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of
inventories are determined on a weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of

completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans, Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme and state-managed retirement benefits scheme are recognised
as expenses when employees have rendered service entitling them to the

contributions.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid as and when employees rendered the services. All
short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS

requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as wages and

salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any amount already paid.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred

tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from loss before taxation as reported in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income because of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been

enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In
addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises

from the initial recognition of goodwill.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary difference associated
with investments in subsidiaries except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they

are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient

taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the

reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they
relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in

the marketplace.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value except for
trade receivables arising from contracts with customers which are initially measured
in accordance with HKFRS 15 since January |, 2018. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of
a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest income and interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying

amount on initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon application of

HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in note 3)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at

amortised cost:

J the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to

collect contractual cash flows; and

J the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at

fair value through other comprehensive income (the “FVIOCI"):

J the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is

achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through profit and
loss (the “FVTPL"), except that at the date of initial application/initial recognition
of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes
in fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive income (the “OCI")
if that equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 Business

Combinations applies.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon application of

HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in note 3) (continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near term; or

J on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent actual

pattem of short-term profit-taking; or

J it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that are required
to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing

so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon application of

HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in note 3) (continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for financial
assets measured subsequently at amortised cost and debt instruments/receivables
subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting

period following the determination that the asset is no longer credit impaired.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with transitions in

accordance with note 3)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial assets which are subject
to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including trade and other receivables and bank
balances). The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes

in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default events
over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast, |2-month ECL (*12m
ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default
events that are possible within |2 months after the reporting date. Assessment are
done based on the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future

conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables without significant
financing component. The ECL on these assets are assessed collectively using a

provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

e MR R

For the year ended December 31,2018
BZ-Z—)\+-A=t-BLIFE
TESHERE)
SRMIAE)

THEE(E)

TREEZREREN T3 BEEA
EREENHHEERZE 9 K)

AEEGREBZBHBHRE EEIHA
TRENEREE(BRERER AL
FUFOR - RITEAER)MBRHEEERR
RERRE BHCEFRSENER
EHHEH  ARBRENSERARE
ERRAEL -

EHRMEERRERBTANENF
HAMBMENRANEHRELNERY
FEBE - Bk NEARREEER
(TREARBEEBERDERERNRE
BHKNEARANERENENEHE
FMEr2MEREEEE - LR
BAREATEERRERET L
EBABANRER - —REBERLAR
$9RE B AR AU KR AR TR
HRHEIEH T -

FEBBERRBEAREXNINES
FURRERZ:HENRCEERE - %5
BEMEREEERRAAGEAS
MBI TT R BT -

Annual Report 2018 F£3#% 131



IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

me

B RS R AR M &

For the year ended December 31,2018
HE_Z-\F+-A=t—-BLFE

4.

132

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with transitions in

accordance with note 3) (continued)

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance equal to [2m
ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime
ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk

of a default occurring since initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is available without undue

cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with transitions in

accordance with note 3) (continued)

0)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing

whether credit risk has increased significantly:

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial

instrument's external (if available) or internal credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk,
eg. a significant increase in the credit spread, the credit default swap

prices for the debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a significant decrease in the

debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results

of the debtor;

an actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological environment of the debtor that results in a

significant decrease in the debtor's ability to meet its debt obligations.

For the year ended December 31,2018
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with transitions in

accordance with note 3) (continued)

0)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group presumes
that the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the Group has

reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to
identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk and revises
them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying

significant increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For intemal credit risk management, the Group considers an event of default
occurs when information developed internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the

Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has occurred
when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging

default criterion is more appropriate.

Annual Report 2018 %}

TESHBERE)
E@MIE(E)

THEE(E)

TREEZREREN T3 BEEA
BT EHHREEREIRK)(E)

()

EERBAREINE)
N LA B R BRI KK
BRA - WE NN RAER30

'Mﬁﬂi% UREERRE
AREN - BIFAREFLERR
IR BRI A TEH

AEETHEZERUABAEERR
BEREEMOREZ ERE - I

BT ARIRE (R KR E S
L BREH S HER AR
LR

BHES
RABEREREENE - A48
25 BOEHERBHTNES
SRR BRBRESATAT

EDHAEREA(BRARE)ER
(Ret RAG B EAERR)
B4 o

Em BRG] AEERA
WMeEMEEDHEROX A2
BEENEN  BRIASEESE
BEEBENEBBEREERNEN
BEFRRE -



IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with transitions in

accordance with note 3) (continued)

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of default that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes

observable data about the following events:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

. a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

. the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower's financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise

consider;

. it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or

other financial reorganisation; or

. the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because

of financial difficulties.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with transitions in

accordance with note 3) (continued)

)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating
that the counterparty is in severe financial difficutty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the amounts are over three years past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group's recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or

loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default, loss given
default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure
at default. The assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that

is determined with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Annual Report 2018 %}

TESHBERE)
E@MIE(E)

THEE(E)

TREEZREREN T3 BEEA
BT EHHREEREIRK)(E)

(v)

MR

WEBEBRXHE FENEEH
BRER  BYEFRO
BNz ZHEFERERACEA
WERF)  SHEHRKTIER
5 AR ERNERE=FUAR
RREERE)  AREEMHES
BEE - AERERER(WEE)
% EMENEBEEDAREAR
SEHOREIEFERERHIHT - #
HBRE LRREM - HRKEH
ENEESRERARER

BEEEBR T ERER

RHEEERZGTEREOME -
BAOBKR(EMHBELRZANERX
BE)RENRR K - O
RRENBRR ZFHEHERER
BUBEARZELRIEEL - &
MEEBRN G DERENE
FHEE  UZEREENNAR
REBETE °



IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with transitions in

accordance with note 3) (continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective interest rate

determined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for cases where
evidence at the individual instrument level may not yet be available, the

financial instruments are grouped on the following basis:

. Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group's trade and other

receivables are each assessed as a separate group.);

. Past-due status;

. Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

. External credit ratings where available.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with transitions in

accordance with note 3) (continued)

V)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure the

constituents of each group continue to share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset unless the financial asset is credit impaired, in which case

interest income s calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all
financial instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception of
trade receivables and other receivables where the corresponding adjustment

is recognised through a loss allowance account.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (before application of

HKFRS 9 on January 1, 2018)

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories: available-for-
sale financial assets and loans and receivables. The classification depends on the
nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame

established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

() Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in active market. Subsequent
to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade and other
receivables and bank balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost

using the effective interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except
for short-term receivables where the recognition of interest would be

immaterial.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (before application of

HKFRS 9 on January 1, 2018) (continued)

(i) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity

investments.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted market price
in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of each

reporting period.

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on January 1, 2018)

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each
reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial assets, the estimated future cash flows of the

financial assets have been affected.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on January |, 2018)

(continued)

For all financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could include:

J significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

J breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal

payments; or

J it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-

organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade and other receivables, assets
are assessed for impairment on a collective basis even if they were assessed not
to be impaired individually. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
trade and other receivables could include the Group's past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
credit period granted, observable changes in national or local economic conditions

that correlate with default on trade receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss
recognised is the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original

effective interest rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on january 1, 2018) -

continued (continued)

For financial assets that are carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in

subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss
directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade receivables, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When trade receivables are considered uncollectible, they are written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off

are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period, the
amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the
extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the

impairment not been recognised.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual

arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets
of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the

group entities are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, borrowing and loan from
a shareholder are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective

interest method.
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For the year ended December 31,2018
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to
the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and

substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and any
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income

and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group's
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid

and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity, transactions in
currencies other than the functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not

retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the
retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the year in which

they arise.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the assets
and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rate prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at the
average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the heading of translation

reserve (attributable to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group's entire interest
in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign operation of which the retained
interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are

reclassified to profit or loss.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in note
4, the management of the Company are required to make various estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experiences, and other factors that are considered to be relevant.

Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the

revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and key sources of
estimation uncertainties at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES (continued)

Allowance for inventories

The management of the Group reviews the aging and conditions of the inventories
at the end of the reporting period and assess the adequacy of the impairment
provision for those inventories obsolete or/and slow-moving identified as no longer
suitable for use in production nor saleable in the market as a result of change in the
market conditions and technology. Estimation of net realisable value of inventory
involves judgment on the conditions and usefulness of items of inventories. Where
the expectation on the net realisable value is lower than the cost for certain items,
a write-off or write-down of inventories may arise. As at December 31, 2018, the
carrying amounts of inventories are HK$74.8 million (net of allowance of HK$32.6
million) as at December 31, 2017: HK$130.4 million (net of allowance of HK$31.3

million).

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

The Group recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables, using a provision matrix
based on the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date. The
amount of the impairment loss based on ECL model is measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
the effective interest rate determined at initial recognition. Where the future flows
are less than expected, or being revised downward due to changes in facts and
circumstances, a material impairment loss may arise. In addition, trade receivables
with credit impaired are assessed for ECL individually. As at December 31, 2018,
the carrying amount of trade receivables is HK$36.6 million (net of allowance for

credit losses of HK$24.2 million).
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable for goods sold by
the Group to outside corporate customers, net of sales related taxes. Revenue
represents mainly Oregon Scientific branded sales (“Branded Sales”) and original
equipment manufacturer and original design manufacturer sales (“OEM/ODM

Sales”). The revenue for the year ended December 31, 2018 is disaggregated

e MR R

For the year ended December 31,2018
BE=F—\FtoA=t-ALEE
Wz Rk 2 EBE R
BRARRAEBERIMIZEFHEEMM
EMREY 2 RIE - HEBHER -
A FE E & Oregon Scientific i h 85 &
([mieHE ) RRRBRERRRE
HEHE((RREVE/RRBEH

below. £ -BE_T-\F+-A=+—H
IEFRRSEFINT o
Smart leaming, Connected
and immersive home and Health
technology communications and
BEHA wellness Others Total
HEE BHRE RBERRFRE Efty ik
HK$ million HKS$ million HK$ million HK$ million HKS million
AREET A¥AEr A¥EEr EWaEr  E%EER
Timing of revenue recognition W tER e A
One point in time A — By s 554 1404 166.] 713 4332
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Performance obligations for contracts with customers

Sales of goods (revenue recognised at one point in time)

The Group sells various consumer electronic products to corporate customers.
Revenue is recognised when control of the goods has transferred, being when the
goods have been shipped to the customer’s specific location (delivery). Following
delivery, the customer has full discretion over the manner of distribution and price
to sell the goods, has the primary responsibility when on selling the goods and
bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods. The normal credit

term for customers is normally 90 days upon delivery.

During the year ended December 31, 2018, all performance obligations for sales
of goods are for periods of one year or less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the
transaction price allocated to unsatisfied performance obligations as at the end of

the reporting period is not disclosed.

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments requires operating segments to be identified on
the basis of internal reports about components of the Group that are regularly
reviewed by the executive directors and chief executive officer, being the chief
operating decision maker (the “CODM"), in order to allocate resources to the
segments and to assess their performance. The Group operates in four operating
and reportable segments, namely smart learning and immersive technology,

connected home and communications, health and wellness as well as others.
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For the year ended December 31,2018
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. WmRISHER (&)
Segment revenue and results DI R EE
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by operating and AEERSEN Bz WH REENT W
reportable segments: T
Smart learning,
and immersive Connected Health
technology home and and
EHEHE communications wellness Others Total
HEE HERE RERRE Hity e
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BR®EET #BWEEn EWEER A%EER BREER
Year ended December 31,2018 BE_T-N\F
TZA=T-BLLEE
Segment revenue 7 e as
Branded sales mIEHE 554 808 198 55 1615
OFM/ODM sales REBE/ R&s
RIEHE - 596 146.3 65.8 2717
Total segment revenue Dl e 554 1404 166.1 713 4332
Segment loss PEER (5.1) (53.1) (743) (48.7) (1812)
Unallocated income REAE WA Il
Unallocated expense REDEZRX (200)
Finance costs BEKA (32
Loss before taxation BRHAIER (203.3)
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For the year ended December 31,2018
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6.  REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.
Segment revenue and results (continued)
Smart learning,
and immersive Connected
technology home and

HEEHE  communications

R BHERE
HK$ million HK$ million
BEHET BYEER

W@k D HWER (&)

DI R EE
Health
and
wellness Others Total
ff B e (R i Hith B

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEEET BEEER B¥EER

Year ended December 31, 2017 HE_Z—+F

+ZA=+-HILFE
Segment revenue DEE
Branded sales migsHeE 820 1063 144 9.l 2118
OEMIODM sales ReREEE/ R

SHEHE — 1208 637 1203 3048
Total segment revenue k) Gtk 820 271 78.1 1294 5166
Segment loss PR (15) (236) (76) (159) (48.6)
Unallocated income REDEZ A 19
Unallocated expense REA B2 X (388)
Finance costs BERA (02)
Loss before taxation BRHEAIER (857)

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated from external

customers. There were no inter-segment sales for both years.

Segment loss represents the loss earned by each segment without allocation of
interest income, rental income, other miscellaneous income, unallocated expense
such as central administrative cost, and finance costs. This is the measure reported
to the Group's CODM, for the purposes of resource allocation and performance

assessment.

No segment assets and segment liabilities are presented as such amounts are
not reviewed by the Group's CODM for the purpose of resource allocation and

performance assessment or otherwise regularly provided to the Group's CODM.
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For the year ended December 31,2018
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. WERHHER (&)
Other segment information HittpHMER
Smart learning, Connected Health
and immersive home and and
technology communications wellness Others Total
BHHAE
HEBEE EEXE RERRR Hity nE
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BYEEEnL BR¥EER AWEET BY%EER BENEER
Year ended December 31,2018 HE_Z-\F
TZA=T-RILFE
Amounts included in the measure DEETIHEETA
of segment profit or loss: TR
Depreciation and amortisation FEREH
— property, plant and equipment -M¥  BERRE 64 5.1 12 1.8 14.5
— intangible assets -BVEE - — - 0.7 0.7
Provision of write-down of inventories FEMAHE 14.1 202 - 03 346
Loss on disposals of property, plant HENE  KERRE
and equipment ZEB 50 — - — 50
BE-Z—+F
Year ended December 31,2017 TZA=t-HLEE
Amounts included in the measure DEETIFEETA
of segmentt profit or loss: THIFE -
Depreciation and amortisation REREH
— property, plant and equipment —WE¥ BB REE 57 45 10 15 127
~ intanghle assets -BVEE — — — 07 07
Reversal of write-down of inventories HFEHRAD 2.1) (12) — — (33)
Loss on disposals of property, plant HENE  BERREZ
and equipment B 04 — = = 04
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information

The Group's operations are located in Asia Pacific, Europe and Americas
(representing the United States of America and Latin America). The Group carries
out its manufacturing and trading operations in Hong Kong and other parts of the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). The Group also operates marketing offices

in Europe, Americas and other Asia Pacific countries.

Information about the Group's revenue from external customers is presented

based on the location of customers are detailed below:

Wm Rk oEER (&)
EER

AEBZEBURTAR - BUNREMN
(ERERETEN) - AEEREFER
PEARAMB(HE])E M EE
THRERETESRY - ARETERK
M- EB - ATEMNREMTARER
REMGHEERFE

AEBRENAEPZRENRERP
P El ) - FEWMT

2018 2017
—e-\F  CFtF
HK$ million HK$ million

REEEER BEAET

PRC (country of domicile) FE (BAER) 14.7 79
Asia Pacific (excluding PRC) FAE (PBREFE) 719 1380
Americas ES 82.9 108.8
Furope BM 263.7 2619

4332 5166

Over 95% non-current assets of the Group are substantially located in the PRC.

Information about major customers

Revenue from a customer contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group is

AEEZBIS%FRDEERERTA
TEURTE -

ITEEFEHR

REREFERASERRE 0% 8HE

as follows: BeBEPZWHMT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
Customer “A"(note) BZPA (F5) 29% 17%

Note: Revenue generated from OEM/ODM sales in two segments: (i) connected home and

communications segment, (i) heafth and wellness segment.

Annual Report 2018 %}

et RERRBRE/RRABEHED
Wamp RMERHS : ()BRERE : (i)
ERRRE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R

For the year ended December 31,2018
BZ-Z—)\+-A=t-BLIFE

HitA - oS RER

OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

2018 2017
—E-N\§ —T+F
HK$ million HK$ million
BEEERT BERET
Other income H A
Interest income FEWA 0.2 04
Rental income RN 0.8 09
Sales of scraps FERIHE 4.6 32
Others Hoh 0.1 0.6
5.7 5.1
Other gains and losses HAhpris REE
Loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment &3 - #38 R R EHEE 5.0) (04)
Net exchange loss B EERE (7.0) (2.6)
Impairment of available-for-sale investments AHHEREZRE — (09)
Others Hit 0.5 —
(11.5) (39)
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES HERR
2018 2017
ZE-N\F —EB—+F
HK$ million HK$ million
BEHERT BERETL
Impairment losses recognised on RIEEERER
- Trade receivables — IR 10.3 9.2

Details of trade receivables impairment assessment for the year ended December

31,2018 are set out in note 27.

BE-_E-N\E+-A=T—HIEE
FE U BE SR B AT B B A BT R 27
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For the year ended December 31,2018
BEZZ—/\§T-A=1+—HIEE

9.

154

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION BRBATER
2018 2017
—E-NF —TLF
HK$ million HK$ million
BEEEBT BEEET
Loss before taxation has been arrived at after BB RIEEE MR (GEA) TFIBIE -
charging (crediting):
Directors’ emolument (note 10) M2 (i 0) 1.3 l.
Retirement benefits scheme contributions for Hith 8 TRIMRE R BIHR
other staff 183 120
Salaries and other benefits for other staff H BTz TEREAMBH 126.0 172.6
Other staff costs Hih 8 THA 144.3 184.6
Total staff costs BImkABE 145.6 185.8
Less: Amount capitalised to inventories B BRMREETHNEHE (37.1) 61.1)
108.5 1247
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESH 0.7 0.7
Auditors’ remuneration BEaMM < 2.6 2.3
Cost of inventories recognised as expense ERRBRFEX FERA 369.7 409.5
Provision (reversal) of write-down of inventories 17 & #UR & & (1) 34.6 (33)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment W  BERRBINE 14.5 127
Less: Amount capitalised to inventories B BRMREERHNEHE 8.7) (0.8)
5.8 6.5
Operating lease rentals in respect of mERNES
- office equipment and motor vehicles ~-PRERERAE 0.2 0.1
- rented premises —HEME 20.3 22.8
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R

For the year ended December 31,2018
BZ-Z—)\+-A=t-BLIFE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS 0. ESRTETHAEHE
The emoluments paid or payable to directors and the chief executive officer of the ENAENTESRFETHRAERA
Company were as follows: ZHemT
Salaries Retirement
and  benefits scheme
Fees allowances  contributions Total
RIKEH
wE HERER HE e nE
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
EWEErT AR®EEnx E¥EEx  RWEER
BE-_Z-N\&
Year ended December 31,2018 TZRA=1+—HILEFE
Executive directors: HITEE :
Mr. Foo Piau Phang (note /) RERE (Wat!) - - - -
Mr. Xu Chiming (hote 5) BRERAKE (Hits) — - - -
Mr. Zhu Yongning (note 6) RKBEE (Bizte) - - - -
Mr. Yan Keya (note 7) BricsE (Hit7) - - - -
Ms. Ouyang Jiejiao (note 8) BERBZt (Hiz8) — 03 0.1 04
Mr. Qi Miao (hote 2) WHEE (Hit2) - - - -
Non-executive directors: IPTEE -
Mr. Xin Kexia (note 4) FrREE (Fiz4) - - - -
Mr. Song Rongrong RERELE - - - -
Mr. Shi Changyun (note 4) WREXE (Hits) - - - -
Mr. Jing Tian (note 4) FIREHE (Hizt4) - - - -
Mr. Han Hongtu (note 9) BEERE (Wat9) - - - -
Mr. Wu Gang (note 9) REIEE (Brat9) - - - -
Independent non-executive directors: BUFHTEE -
Mr. Yang Xiongsheng (note /0) BRBEE (Bizt10) 02 — — 02
Ms. Zhao Yuhong (note /1) BRI E (fizt11) 02 — — 02
Dr. Li Quan (note /1) FRELT (W) 0.2 — — 0.2
Mr. Duh Jia-Bin (note 12) HFBEE (Hi5t12) 02 — — 02
Mr. Xu Jinwen (note /3) REWEE (H17213) 0.1 — — 0.1
Mr. Zhou Meilin (note /4) FEMEE (Bizti4) — - - -
Mr. Zhou Rui (hote /4) B#kE (Biti4) - - — —
0.9 0.3 0.1 13

Annual Report 2018 £# 155



IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR
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HE_Z-\F+-A=t—-BLFE

0.

156

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS (continued) 0. ESRTETBAEME(E)
Salaries Retirement
and  benefits scheme
Fees allowances  contributions Total
RIKEH
wE HERER EE 8 L
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BREEL EWEER EWEER  A%EER
Year ended December 31,2017 BE-_T—+&
TZA=1t—RIL%E
Executive directors: HITEE -
Mr. Foo Piau Phang (note /) HRELE (Hizt)) - - - -
Mr. Qi Miao (note 2) WE T (Hizt2) — - - -
Mr. Hou Kaai Wern (note 3) EAXRE (Hat3) - - - -
Non-executive directors: HHTEE :
Mr. Xin Kexia (note 4) FrkrsE (Hit4) - - - -
Mr. Song Rongrong REREFHE - - - -
Mr. Shi Changyun (note 4) mRELE (fi74) — — — —
Mr. Jing Tian (note 4) FIRFE (Biat4) - - - -
Independent non-executive directors: BUHHTEE -
Mr. Yang Xiongsheng (note /0) BRBEE (W:t10) 03 — — 03
Ms. Zhao Yuhong (note /1) WFLE (F1zt11) 03 — — 03
Dr. Li Quan (note /1) TIEBLT (1) 03 — — 03
Mr. Duh Jia-Bin (note /2) HEBRE (Wit)2) 02 — = 02
[l — - Il
Note |:  Mr. Foo Piau Phang resigned as the chief executive officer (“CEQ") and the Mkl - FHEBERESRIR_Z—tFNA
executive director of the Company on September | I, 2017 and October 18, +—BMN=Z-NFE+A+/\HE
2018, respectively. ERRETRER R TES
Note 2. Mr. Qi Miao was re-designated from non-executive director to executive director fizE2: MHEEER-Z—+FNAT—H
of the Company and was appointed as the CEO of the Company on September BARAINIFERTERATNTE
1, 2017. He resigned as the executive director and the CEO of the Company on £ WEZAERAARTHES -
August |, 2018, BEER=ZZ-N\FNA—BEHE
ARFTHBZNHTES -
Note 3:  Mr. Hou Kaai Wern resigned as the executive director of the Company on March M3 : EIAXAERZT—LF=A—H

[,2017.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Note 4:

Note 5:

Note 6:

Note 7:

Note 8:

Note 9:

Note 10:

Note | [:

Note 12:

Note |3:

Note [4:

Mr. Jing Tian, Mr. Xin Kexia and Mr. Shi Changyun resigned as the non-executive
director of the Company on March 2, 2018.

Mr. Xu Chiming was appointed as the executive director of the Company on
October 18,2018.

Mr. Zhu Yongning was appointed as the executive director and the CEO of the
Company on October 18, 2018 and October 22, 2018, respectively.

Mr. Yan Keya was appointed as the non-executive director of the Company on
March 2, 2018 and was re-designated as executive director and was appointed
as the CEO of the Company on August |, 2018. He resigned as the executive
director and the CEO of the Company on October 22, 2018.

Ms. Ouyang Jiejiao was appointed as the executive director of the Company
on August 25, 2018 and resigned as the executive director of the Company on

October 18, 2018.

Mr. Wu Gang and Mr. Han Hongtu were appointed as the non-executive director
of the Company on March 2, 2018 and resigned as the non-executive director of

the Company on August 25, 2018.

Mr. Yang Xiongsheng resigned as the independent non-executive director of the

Company on October 18, 2018.

Dr. Li Quan and Ms. Zhao Yuhong resigned as the independent non-executive

director of the Company on August 25, 2018.

Mr. Duh Jiabin resigned as the independent non-executive director of the

Company on October 18, 2018.

Mr. Xu Jinwen was appointed as the independent non-executive director of the

Company on August 25, 2018.

Mr. Zhou Meilin and Mr. Zhou Rui were appointed as the independent non-

executive director of the Company on October 18, 2018,

e MR R

For the year ended December 31,2018
BZ-Z—)\+-A=t-BLIFE

ESRIBTRAEME(H)

st :

Bi3Es

i aE6 :

PiEE7 :

BisEs :

BiEE9 -

A

PREEL L

GEAVE

BzEl3 :

BaEl4

FXE4E  FRREERBREEL
ERZE-NE=A-BEEAR
BFEMITES -

BEPEER_Z-NFETATN
HEZERANFIMITES -

KXELEDHNR=Z—\F+A
+TNBN=ZE—-NE+A=1+=H
DRBEERARRANTESRIT
TR, o

BrotEn—2—/\f=A=H
EZAAAAREHTES I
RZZE-NENA—BRETAEELR
AMITESRITHES -t =F
—NETAZTZBEEEAAAH
TEERITBEE -

BERELLIR T N\F/\H
“tHHEREATARHTE
2IR-E-N\FTAT/N\BE
EARRMTES -

RMEERBRBEER TN\
F= A HEZERTRAIF T
EX YR -_E-A\FAA-TH
BREARAFRTES -

BEBEER_Z-NE+ATN
HEHERDRIBUIFMITES -

FRBLRETALIN-_F-N
ENAZ+TRBRBEARRBELHE
HITES -

HRBEER-Z-NEFE+ATN
HEHERDRIBUIFMITES -

BREXEERZZT-NENR
T RREEERRRBEULIENT
g=-

BEREERBHREER T\
ETATNBREZESARREL
FHTES -
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10.

158

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS (continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services in

connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the Group.

The emoluments of the non-executive directors and independent non-executive

directors shown above were for their services as directors of the Company.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief executive officer

waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during both years.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

In 2018, the aggregate emoluments of the five highest paid individual included
one director of the Company. In 2017, no director is included in the aggregate

emoluments of the five highest paid individuals.

The emoluments of the four (2017: five) highest paid non-director individuals are as

follows:

10.

EERIBTRAEME ()
EXARRTESNMEEIBRES
BERARARAKEEHENRBEME o

FRTESRBUFATESCHME
ZEERFEARRAEZRERBH
M

REAMEFE  TEEERHNTER
HEXRERETAME -

IHBREFHES

R-ZE-\F LERSFHEEMS

REBR - EARAEE -N_T—L
CHEEFFALRRSFHHESM

F
SHR -

IBRME(CT—L5F: AR FEER
REMALZMEN FATEE :

N

2018 2017

—E-N\E T+

HK$'M HK$'M

BEHET BEEET

Salaries and allowances 4 MoERE 5.3 7.0
Retirement benefits schemes contributions RIREFFTEIHE TR 0.1 04
54 74
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued) I

The emoluments of the four (2017: five) highest paid non-director individuals are

within the following bands:

e MR R

For the year ended December 31,2018
BZ-Z—)\+-A=t-BLIFE

EEBBHNERS)
AT (— Bt B RS
BEMALZ BN TATIES

Number of employees

EEHE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$ 1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 785 1,000,001 TTE B 1,500,000 7T 3 3
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 75 H 1,500,001 7T E## 2,000,000 7T | 2

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals and directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office. None of the directors and chief executive has

waived any emoluments during the year.

EFER ASEREINHE TIAR
RFMEALESERARSMALEHE
IMARZHELRERBES - HES
EREEHTRABRFAREEAME -
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For the year ended December 31,2018
BEZZ—/\§T-A=1+—HIEE

12. TAXATION 2. BiE
2018 2017
—E-N\§ —E—+tF
HK$ million HK$ million
Current tax BY¥EER AEBET
BN IR
- Underprovision in prior year (Note) —REFEREETR (M) 12.3 —
Note: An indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Oregon Scientific Italy Limited Wizt - AR B2 E#EZ2 &M B2 R Oregon

(“OS ltaly™), was involved in a tax dispute with the [talian Tax Authorities. As disclosed

in the announcement of the Company dated on November 6, 2018, there was a tax

dispute between OS ltaly and the Italian Tax Authorities (the “Tax Dispute”), and

the tax charge judgement in relation to the Tax Dispute from the Supreme Court

of Cassation of Italy was received. After seeking the legal advice, the directors of the

Company considered no further legal actions are possible for OS Italy in relation to

the Tax Dispute. Based on tax notice received from the Italian Tax Authorities in

January 2019, the Group provided a tax provision of approximately Euro (“‘EUR™)I.4

million (equivalent to approximately HK$12.3 million) in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended December 31,

2108.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TAXATION (continued) 12.

The tax charge for the year is reconciled to the loss before taxation as follows:

e MR R

For the year ended December 31,2018
BZ-Z—)\+-A=t-BLIFE

BE(E)

AFEEHIEX HERTA 2 BEEEN
N

2018 2017
—E-N\& “T—+F
HK$ million HK$ million

REEEET BEAET

Loss before taxation BRIAIER (203.3) (857)
Tax credit at the domestic income tax rate of 165% EAMFTEHE 16.5% 5t HMFIEEK R (33.5) (14.1)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose N AJ 1T 7 37 2 i 1B 7/ & 0.1 =
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose AR A 2 FIBF £ (0.3) (0.2)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERRARBBE L HETE 28.6 26.6
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMAEERLEMBAR

operating in other jurisdictions FIERANE TR & (7.8) (5.9)
Underprovision in prior year BEFEEETR 12.3 -
Tax effect of deductible temporary difference

not recognised AR EZE HEYE 13.1 =
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised ~ EJFA R Al K ERR 2 HIEEE (0.2) (64)
Tax charge for the year AEFEREXH 12.3 -

On March 21, 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The Inland Revenue
(Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the "Bill") which introduces the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on March 28, 2018 and was gazetted
on the following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2
million of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits
above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not
qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a
flat rate of 16.5%.

RZBE-NE=ZA=-+—8 BFELZE
2R BOITERBUER N EBTHR) K
PIERNEGIER]) - S| AMEH R
Bl ZEHERR=_T-\F=A
ZHNBEEEEN YREATE -
BEFGHMAS 2 EREZEEBE
QEBTUANMAEHELR825% B
BAELBEBITIALMEF AR 165%%
o AEEFEHMRTEREEER
B EE IR 165% TR E
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For the year ended December 31,2018
HE_Z-\F+-A=t—-BLFE

2.

162

TAXATION (continued)

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT Law") and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate for the PRC subsidiaries is

25%.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the

relevant jurisdictions.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unutilised tax losses of
HK$1,403.0 million (2017: HK$1,230.3 million) available for offset against future
profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of such losses due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams in 2017 and 2018. Included in the
unrecognised tax losses were losses of HK$89.1 million (2017: HK$58.7 million that
would expire in the years of 2018 to 2022) that will expire in the years of 2019 to
2023. Other losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

The Group also has certain deductible temporary differences mainly related to
impairment losses and provision of write-down of inventories amount to HK$78.7
million and available for offset against future profits as at December 31, 2018
(December 31, 2017: Nil). No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to
such deductible temporary differences as it is not probable that taxable profit will

be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Annual Report 2018 %}

BE(E)
BR(FEAREMBCERGEHE)
([REMEFEDREBED - BRAR
ARBMHEMBRR 2 REMETH
EE25% °

Hial kiR 2 MIB IR R A e A
B2 REE -

RBEHR AEBERKREBHIEE
BAEKI4308BT(ZE—tF: 8
% 12303 RET)THEHBREN - B
RIZE—tFRZF-NFHNFAR
Kaflin QY BERZSHEERAET
WMEEE ABAREBHELEHRZ
T-NEZZ-_=FHREINBERE
% BET(ZE—+F: BKs878
ETER-_T—NE_T__FHR5
H) - HiE IR ERBAE -

AEENEREETIMRERER
FEER-_FT-N\F+ZA=1T—H%
BR1IVIBBAET(ZE—tFTZA
=B E)UARAREEBEET
FEREEBERGFENRBREEH - B
PN K AT 82 7 & SR B0 1) AT A DA 4R 8 7T
NRERZE  WHEREETNRY
FEBRAELHBEE -



LOSS PER SHARE

IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to the owners of the

Company for the year is based on the following data:

13.

e MR R

For the year ended December 31,2018
BZ-Z—)\+-A=t-BLIFE

BRER
AERARBRAAMGERENER
THETHIEER &

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$ million HK$ million
REEEET BEAET
Loss: B
Loss for the year attributable to owners of AU ESREABEZALNT
the Company and loss for the purposes of BEANEGLZAFEER
basic loss per share (215.6) (85.7)
2018 2017
—2-N\§ —T+F
Number of ordinary shares: EmRHAA
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for ~ ARG E BREREE
the purposes of basic loss per share T E AR N T £ 2,599,993,088 2,599,993,088

No diluted earings per share is presented for the years ended December 31, 2018

and 2017 as there was no potential ordinary share in issue for both years.

HE_Z-\FR-F-—t5+=A
St ALFE HEZIISREER

fl - AEmMEFETECETELER
& °
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For the year ended December 31,2018
HE_Z-\F+-A=t—-BLFE

14.

164

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14, Y% BBERRE
Furniture, Motor Plant and
fixtures and vehicles machinery Total
equipment
Rt KB P
ET RE ST T BE

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

BEEET B¥EEn BYWEERT BY¥EER
CosT BB
At January |, 2017 R-ZZE—+F—H—H 270.6 1.9 281.1 553.6
Currency realignment [ H oH 2 23 = = 23
Additions NE 46 02 200 248
Write-off A (10.9) — (15.6) (265)

RZTB—+F
At December 31,2017 +=A=+—H 266.6 21 285.5 5542
Currency realignment BEE 3, A 0.l — — 0.1
Additions INE 5.0 = 9.5 14.5
Write-off A (85) — (36.5) (45.0)
RZT—N\%F

At December 31,2018 +=A=+—8H 2632 2. 2585 523.8
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e MR R

For the year ended December 31,2018
BZ-Z—)\+-A=t-BLIFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) M BERREE)
Furniture, Motor Plant and
fixtures and vehicles machinery Total
equipment
EL N3 P
ET RE MR BE
B¥EERT BY¥EERT #B¥BEER BY¥EER
DEPRECIATION e
At January 1, 2017 RZZ—+tF—H—H 2634 1.6 267.7 5327
Currency realignment RS 23 — = 23
Provided for the year AEEFR 32 0.1 94 127
Eliminated on write-off isEE 8 (10.8) — (152) (26.0)
At December 31,2017 RZT—+5F
+=-A=+—8~ 258.1 |7 2619 521.7
Currency realignment BE 34 8% - - - —
Provided for the year REEHR 30 03 1.2 14.5
Eliminated on write-off WK B (8.5) — (31.5) (40.0)
R-F—\F
At December 31,2018 +=ZA=+—H 2526 20 2416 4962
CARRYING VALUES RHEE
RZZE-N\5F
At December 31,2018 +=A=+—H 10.6 0.l 169 276
R-T—+F
At December 31,2017 +=ZA=+—H 85 04 236 325

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property, plant and equipment,
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line

method, at the following rates per annum:

Fumiture, fixtures and equipment 10% - 25%
Motor vehicles 10% - 20%
Plant and machinery 10% - 20%

NE BELREHNERS - REE
AR FEHRERREEREIE AWM
WA - BEZFEXRMT

Bk~ KB MRS 10% - 25%
P2l 10% - 20%
TR w% fh M it 23 10% - 20%
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For the year ended December 31,2018
BEZZ—/\§T-A=1+—HIEE

I5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 5. EBFEE
Patents and
trademarks
R R EE
HK$ million
BEEER
COST PXANE
At January |, 2017 RZE—tF—H—H 199
Additions INEY 03
At December 31,2017 and 2018 RZE-—NER-ZE—++=-A=+—H 20.2
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT BHENRE
At January 1,2017 R-ZE—+F—-H—H 16.2
Amortised for the year AEFEH 0.7
At December 31, 2017 R_Z—+F+-_A=1+—H 169
Amortised for the year AEEHH 0.7
At December 31,2018 RZZF-—\F+-_A=+—H 17.6
CARRYING VALUES RmEE
At December 31,2018 R=ZE-—N\E+=-A=+—H 26
At December 31, 2017 RZZE—+F+-_A=1+—H 33
Patents and trademarks, which have finite useful lives, are amortised on a straight- ENRERARERER - HIRS-106F
line basis over 5 - 10 years. BREE o
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For the year ended December 31,2018
BZ-Z—)\+-A=t-BLIFE

GOODWILL 6. B
2018 2017
—E-N\§ “E—+F
HK$ million HK$ million
BEEET BEEET
COST AN E
At January 1, at originally stated R—A—H  BR%Z5I 338 338
At December 31, R+=-—B=+—8 33.8 338
IMPAIRMENT A
At January |, n—A—H — -
Impairment loss recognised in the year FRERRREER 338 =
At December 31, R+=—A=+—8 33.8 —
CARRYING AMOUNT REE
At December 31, R+-A=+—H — 338
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e MR

For the year ended December 31,2018
HE_Z-\F+-A=t—-BLFE

16. GOODWILL (continued) l6. HWE(#E)
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to two ARTHEARABN BEEHRIEEM
individual cash generating units (CGUs), comprising the health and wellness EEREIREN - AETEESRER
segment and the connected home and communications segment. The carrying REDHIARE ??\E/\‘B NEEE %
amounts of goodwill (net of accumulated impairment losses) allocated to these FEU s HERBEMNRZFRES
units are as follows: BT
2018 2017
—E-N\F S e
HK$ million HK$ million

REEEET BEAET

Time and weather consumer electronic products BREBREIRES % B el

unit in health and wellness segment (“CGU A”) ARETHEERE
(TRPREMAL) - 17.5
Telecommunications consumer electronic BRFXENBANENEF HEEMEN
products unit in connected home ([BIREfB])
and communications segment (“CGU B") — 163
— 338
The basis of the recoverable amounts of the above CGUs and their major it B3R B AL 2 AT E OB 2 B R A
underlying assumptions are summarised below: FERAERESRAT
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GOODWILL (continued)

The recoverable amounts of the CGU A and CGU B have been determined based
on a value in use calculation. The calculation used cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management for the next year. Cash flows beyond
the next year are extrapolated using zero growth rate. Management estimated
discount rate of 12% (2017: 12%) for both CGU A and CGU B using a risk-free
rate, the market return and CGU specific risk factors. The key assumptions are
annual growth rates and expected gross profit margin which were estimated based

on past experience and expectations of future changes in the market.

During the year, having considered that as some products have been loss-making
and the relevant operations were either terminated during the year or planned
to be terminated in the foreseeable future, so the directors have consequently
performed an impairment review for these CGUs and the recoverable amounts
were determined from a value in use calculation. As at December 31, 2017,
before impairment testing, goodwill of HK$17.5 million and HK$16.3 million
was respectively allocated to CGU A and CGU B. As a result of the impairment
tests, full impairment losses of HK$17.5 million and HK$16.3 million in relation to
goodwill of CGU A and CGU B was recognised for the year ended December 31,
2018. This impairment losses have been included in other gains and losses in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

e MR R

For the year ended December 31,2018

BE-T-\ET-A=t-HIER
BE(E)
BIREMARBIREMBZ AT KNESE
ERBEEABEFELMETE - Zit &
FERARBEREMGZIRENEEE
REMBASKERR - REBZAER
BAINEHEREE - EEEAERRF
X mEERRAREN 2 AERREA
ERMEFEREUARARENBZAE
ZHBREE12%(ZF—+F : 12%) ° £
ERB[DFEREREHEMNE - 1)
BEBTLRREHMSE LHARES
HE o

FN BRERETEREEABERA
HEBSERFNEIEHEERTRER
B BEEHEHZZAREMETR
B MAkE BRI EFAE
BMNAEET R-T—+tF+=A
=+—B RETRERNRN B
I7TSEEBLRAKI3EETZHER
ARDETEIREMAREIRERB - A
REEAS FBREIRELARERE
fIBzEBz2RREBEEL 17588
TTRABEIEETIRBE_Z-N
F+ZRA=T-HLEEER - ZRE
BREDGIAGAEEREMEERAER
mEE M ATE RER

Annual Report 2018 £# 169



IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended December 31,2018
HE_Z-\F+-A=t—-BLFE

7. INVENTORIES

#E
2018 2017
—®8-\F  —B—tF
HK$ million HK$ million

REEET BEEET

Raw materials R 43.0 51.3
Work in progress RS 6.3 103
Finished goods IR 25.5 68.8

74.8 1304

During the year ended December 31, 2018, there was a decrease in the net
realisable value of certain finished goods due to inventories obsolete and no longer
suitable in the market as a result of change in the market condition and technology.

Therefore, a write-down of HK$34.6 million has been recognised.

During the year ended December 31, 2017, there was an increase in the net
realisable value of certain finished goods due to rise in market price. As a result, a
reversal of write-down of HK$3.3 million has been recognised and included in cost

of goods sold.
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e MR R

For the year ended December 31,2018
BZ-Z—)\+-A=t-BLIFE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. MEWERR R H eI
2018 2017
—E-N\§ —E—+tF
HK$ million HK$ million
BEEET AKEET
Trade receivables JFE Y5 BR 3R 60.8 140.2
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEERE (24.2) (23.1)
36.6 [17.1
Other receivables H el 308 447 454
Total trade and other receivables JE U B 3 I E A PR W R IB 48 3R 81.3 1625

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables (net of allowance for credit

RBEERY BREFNNGBRERE

losses) presented based on the invoice date which approximate the respective & REFAH(ZEBEBAKEER
revenue recognition date at the reporting date. HERE) 252 R AT
2018 2017
—B-N\& —E—tf
HK$ million HK$ million
BEEET BEBET
0 to 30 days 0&30H 22.9 488
31 to 90 days 3IHZE9H 125 64.2
Over 90 days 90 BEAE 1.2 4.1
Trade receivables JRMER 36.6 7.1
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For the year ended December 31,2018
HE_Z-\F+-A=t—-BLFE

18.

172

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group normally allows credit period of 30 to 90 days to its customers. Before
accepting any new customers, the management of the Group will base on the
credit quality of the potential customers to define credit limits. Credit limits to
customers are reviewed annually. In determining the recoverability of the trade
receivables, the Group considers any change in the credit quality of the trade

receivables from the date credit was initially granted up to the reporting date.

As at December 31, 2018, included in the Group's trade receivable balances are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of HK$1.2 million (2017: HK$4.1 million)
which are past due at the end of the reporting period. The Group does not hold

any collateral over these balances.

As at December 31, 2017, the trade receivable balances of HK$ I [3.0 million were
neither past due nor impaired at the end of the reporting period for which the
Group had not provided for impairment loss since they had no default history and

of good credit quality.

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired:

YRR S BN RIER(E)

AEE-RETEFRAENENEE
B ZMEMFEL A AEEERE
ERREEEEPNEEEZAEEE
RE - AEFRHINEEREEEFE
T - RETESREERZEA T
KO AEESZRAEEERER
ERAEERERHLEIREERZE

B @iF

R-ZZE—N\E+-A=+—H X&H
LESRNERERDERREEAS
BI2REL(ZE—+F: B%41BE8
T ERBERRB 2 BYRRK - A%
B Bt % F AR A AR m -

RZB—+E+-B=+—-H 85
WERREHEE 1 130E BTN RE S
MABHTRRE MARESTEE
N RERFEEER  WAKEY
ERUREERTRAEEERME -

&
R

ERHERREL RS EKEHRER -

2017

—EtF

HK$ million

BEBET

Overdue less than 90 days AHERRE 90 A 22
Overdue 91 to 360 days BEI9I = 360H 19
41
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts on trade receivables:

e MR R

For the year ended December 31,2018
BZ-Z—)\+-A=t-BLIFE

YRR S BN RIER(E)
BHRABRARIRR G 2

2017

—T—tF

HK$ million

BEBEET

Balance at beginning of the year F&ER 136
Currency realignment BE 5 B 03
Impairment loss for the year FRRERSRE 9.2
Balance at end of the year IR 23.1

As at December 31, 2017, included in the allowance for doubtful debts were
individually impaired trade receivables with an aggregate balance of HK$23.1 million

which have either been placed under liquidation or in financial difficulties.

Other receivables

R-_E—+F+-_A=1+—8 RIRE
BREETEERRENI BN 2 B8
BRBBBIBEETZERNRESRE 5k
WBRK -

H 1t FEW R
2018 2017
—B-N\E “E—+F
HK$ million HK$ million

REEEER BEBET

Advances to suppliers At & 7 K 37.1 328
Other taxes recoverable Hib T B2 5.1 72
Others Hith 2.5 54

447 454
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For the year ended December 31,2018
BE_Z\F+_A=1—BLFE

18.

174

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 18. BUWERIRRHMEKNEE)
Other receivables (continued) HittEWRE (&)
Included in trade and other receivables are the following amounts denominated JRE s B 35 % Lt B M R IE 145 T 51 DA AR
in currency other than the functional currency of the group entities to which they Eﬁ%lﬁﬁgzmﬁﬁfﬁ%uﬂ\zgﬂgiﬁ
relate: A
2018 2017
—E-N\F S e
HK$ million HK$ million
BEEER BEBET
Renminbi (“RMB") AR 13.7 23
Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables for the year ended HE T \F+-_A=+—HItFE
December 31, 2018 are set out in note 27. 2 JE UK B 0 % L 4t P M SR TEDR (B AT
TEEHIEE 27,
BANK BALANCES AND CASH 19. THEBRAS

Bank balances and cash comprised cash held by the Group and bank deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less are at prevailing market interest rates in
the range of 0.35% to 1.10% (2017: 0.50% to 1.75%) per annum.

Included in bank balances and cash are the following amounts denominated in

currency other than the functional currency of the group entities to which they

RIEREASBEASEREZES
RBOER - BRERZRIBAA=
BANUT - RBITTBAETE &
FIENTO0BEZELIOE(ZE—+F:
050BEI752)

BRITEGLIASBRTIAEEEEE
BZMREEB AN G EHEZFB

relate:
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HK$ million HK$ million
BETET BEHET
EUR BT 42 —
RMB AR 8.1 8.0
UsD T 49 82
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20.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based on the invoice

date at the end of the reporting period:

IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R

For the year ended December 31,2018
BZ-Z—)\+-A=t-BLIFE

B IR R LB RE
RESHR  BRNERREZAHZT
ZIREDTIT

2018 2017
—E-N\& “T—+tF
HK$ million HK$ million

REEEET BEAET

0 to 30 days 0&30H 35.1 252

31 to 90 days 31 HZ90H 17.7 47.7

Over 90 days 90 BIAE 45.7 376

Trade payables ERERR 98.5 1105

Other payables Hfth e 501 19.3 824

Trade and other payables FE 7 BR 50 S Bt JE 9 5008 117.8 1929
Other payables HipE R

2018 2017

—E-N\F —TtF

HK$ million HK$ million

REEEER BEEET

Advance from customers BNEFRE - 42.6
Payable for staff costs FERT B TR 13.7 290
Payable for audit service i RIS TR 24 27
Other tax payables Hi TR 2.3 28
Others HAt 0.9 53
Total other payables Hih N FIREHE 19.3 824
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HE_Z-\F+-A=t—-BLFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 20.

Included in trade and other payables are the following amounts denominated in

currency other than the functional currency of the group entities to which they

BARAR L MENREE)
EBAREMEMFKREETIIAEESE
BER G ERUIIZERTEZR

relate: I8 :
2018 2017
—E-N\E T —+fF
HK$ million HK$ million
BEEET BEBET
RMB AR 442 320

21. BORROWING 2. f&R

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
HK$ million HK$ million

BEEER BEBET

Unsecured, repayable within | year and shown EEER R—FRNEEK

under current liability Rng & EE MR 343 355
Interest payable AREA) 3.1 =
374 35.5

On December 8, 2017, a subsidiary of the Group, BEE T (AYNER A E],
entered into a loan agreement with a financial institution to borrow RMB30.0
million (equivalent to HK$35.5 million) at a fixed interest rate of 8% per annum.

The borrowing was overdue as at December 31, 2018.

Up to the date of approval of issuance of the consolidated financial statements, the
Group is still in the process of negotiating with the financial institution to obtain

extension of the borrowing and agreements has not been reached yet.
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23.
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e MR R

For the year ended December 31,2018
BZ-Z—)\+-A=t-BLIFE

CONTRACT LIABILITIES 2. AHAR

December 31, January |,

2018 2018*

—E-N\E —E-N\F

t=ZA=+-H —H—H

HK$ million HK$ million

BEEET BEBET

Sale of goods HEMm 58.2 426
& The amounts in this column are after the adjustments from the application of HKFRS @ ZM% FREERREBEERE BN R

5.

The contract liabilities as at January I, 2018, amount of HK$42.6 million were

recognised as revenue during the year ended December 31, 2018.

LOAN FROM A SHAREHOLDER 23.

On November 6, 2018, the Company has entered a loan agreement with a
shareholder, Huaneng, to borrow an aggregate of USD 4.| million (approximately
HK$ 32.5 million) for working capital purpose. The loan was unsecured, carried a

fixed interest rate of 5% and had a maturity of 3 years.

RIS | SRR EL MR

R-ZE-—N\F—A—BEHNERELH
ABENEET BRAEABE-Z
—NE+-_A=F+—HIEFEHA -

RREM
RZZE-NF+—ARB ARAHEK
RERZITENGZ  BRATE418
BEET(NARDNSBEEL)REEEE
Ko ZEREER  BEFER% 5
RAIE -
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HE_Z-\F+-A=t—-BLFE

24. SHARE CAPITAL 24. RAE
Number Amount
of shares HK$ million
2
RE#E BEEET
Authorised: EERE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each SREEES0I10THLERRD
At January |, 2017 R_E—+F—-H—H 3,500,000,000 3500
Increase in authorised share capital ETERAIE N 16,500,000,000 1,650.0
At December 31,2017 and 2018 RZB—\ER-F—+F
+=—HA=+—H~H 20,000,000,000 2,000.0
Ordinary shares of US$0.10 each SREEO0.10ETHE BN
At January I, 2017 and December 31, R_F—+F—-A—HUK
2017 and 2018 —F—+t5t-A=1—H
kZZE-\F+=ZA=1—H 10,000 —
Issued and fully paid: BRIRMR :
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each FREEESI0TALBERN
At January |, 2017 and December 31, RZE—+F-A—HUK
2017 and 2018 “F—+t5t-A=T—H
E—Z-N\F+t-A=1+—H 2,599,993,088 2600

Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated on March 15, 2017, the

authorised share capital of the Company was increased from HK$350,000,000 and
US$1,000 divided into 3,500,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each and 10,000
ordinary shares of US$0.10 each respectively to HK$2,000,000,000 and US$1,000
divided into 20,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each and 10,000 ordinary
shares of US$0.10 each respectively by creation of 16,500,000,000 additional

ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each, which is rank pari passu in all respects with the

existing shares of the Company in issue.
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25.

26.

IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended December 31, 2018 and
2017, nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting periods.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to
continue as a going concern while maximising the retum to stakeholders through
the optimisation of debts and equity balance. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may raise loan from shareholders and issue new shares

to reduce debts.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable to owners of the

Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and loan from a shareholder.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure on a regular basis. As
part of this review, the management of the Group considers the cost of capital and
the risks associates with the capital, and takes appropriate actions through raising

debts to adjust the Group's capital structure.

25.

26.

e MR R

For the year ended December 31,2018
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B2
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ZT-BLEFE BRI RERRN
BE  RERESHRELEZZRMK

B o
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EXERER
AEBZEAEREERRASERZ
MEEROURELE  RABEAEL
BEERBRALEEABRERELZAER
BREIAREALERE  KEETMKF
BRREEERRBETHBORD B
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of financial instruments

¢WMIA
ST EER
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$ million HK$ million

BEEER BEBET

Financial assets CREE
Financial assets at amortised cost BREERATIRZ SMEE 614 —
Loans and receivables B K EW G
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BEREKERREER) — 159.7
614 [59.7
Financial liabilities ERBE
Amortised cost BRI 171.7 154.0

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include trade and other receivables,
bank balances and cash, trade and other payables, borrowing and loan from a
shareholder. Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments include market risk (currency
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management of the Company manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented

on a timely and effective manner.
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For the year ended December 31,2018
BZ-Z—)\+-A=t-BLIFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 27. £WMIAE)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) REREERERBK(E)
Market risk 5
Currency risk Bz
Certain of the Group's bank balances and cash, trade and other receivables, trade AEEETRITERLE S - BRER
and other payables, borrowing and loan from a shareholder are denominated in RE WA - R BR R R L feh FE A
RMB, USD and EUR which are exposed to foreign risk arising from various currency FE - BR BREERBRRERUAR
exposures, primarily with respect to HKS$. B ELRETEE  UBASEAER
ZRERER(EZREE)SEHOINE
R o
The Group currently has not entered into any contracts to hedge its foreign AKE B AR SRS A SAE I
currency risk exposure. The management monitors foreign exchange risk exposure BEkR ERESERINERRRES
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need EREREHERIMNER R
arises.
The carryinlg zlifn.ounts of the G.roups foreign currencies denominated monetary REBNNETE Y SEEED S ER
assets and liabilities at the reporting date are as follows: BERHY ETENT
Liabilities Assets
af &E
2018 2017 2018 2017
—B-0\f —FtF ZB-NF ZT+F
HK$ million HK$ million  HK$ million HK$ million
BEEET AXEErT BWEEBR B¥EER
usD eS8 325 — 49 82
RMB ARE 785 67.5 21.8 103
EUR BT — — 42 —
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27.

182

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5% (2017: 5%) increase and
decrease in the functional currency of the respective group entities against the
relevant foreign currencies. 5% (2017: 5%) sensitivity rate represents management's
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currencies denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the year-end for a 5% (2017: 5%)
change in foreign currency rates. The analysis has excluded USD denominated
monetary items as HK$, the functional currency of the group entity holding these
monetary items, is pegged to USD. The directors consider that the currency risk
in this regard is minimal. A positive number below indicates an increase in post-
tax loss for the year where functional currency strengthens 5% against the relevant
foreign currencies. For a 5% weakening of functional currency of the respective
group entities against the relevant foreign currencies, there would be an equal and

opposite impact on the post-tax loss and the balances below would be negative.

27.

SRMIAE)
BHEABREEERREE(E)

mE AR (E)

b

BE DT

TRAIEAEASEHEFREEER
ZNEEES LA BINEFAERRES%
(Z2 15  5%) 2HREE - 5%(ZF
—tF 5% NBRERKRERELHING
EERSEAAEH 2T HRESN
ERERANNETENEMIER
WRFEREZSB(ZF— L F : 5%) H5h
EEBARRESTHRER - ZHTALA
BDREETEEZERER  RERKEA
LhEEEMERA SEER 2 EEY
BLTHREETHN - EZTRAELER
ZEMBRRBHMTEE - THERERT
MR BB B BINETHE S BHZE
EHRRTEBEOEN - WEEHEE
BER D EEAERINERESS
HeHRReEREREERER ¥
2 MTIERERBE -

Effect on post-tax result for the year

HAFERBEXECTE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$ million HK$ million
BEEER AEBET
RMB AR 24 24
EUR BT (0.2) —

In management’s opinion, the analysis is used for reference purpose and is
unrepresentative of the inherent currency risk as the year end exposure does not

reflect the exposure during the year.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate nisk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk through the impact of
rate changes on bank balances. The Group cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Benchmark Borrowing Rate of the People’s Bank
of China.

The Group will continue to monitor the exposure on cash flow interest rate
risk and will consider hedging the interest rate should the need arise. In the
management’s opinion, the Group does not have material interest rate risk

exposure and hence no sensitivity analysis is presented.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group is arising from the amount of each class of financial assets as disclosed
in the consolidated statement of financial position. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with its

financial assets.

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has delegated
a team responsible for determination of credit limits and credit approvals. Before
accepting any new customer, the Group uses an internal credit scoring system to
assess the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by customer.
Limits and scoring attributed to customers are reviewed twice a year. Other
monitoring procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group performs impairment assessment
under ECL model upon application of HKFRS 9 (2017: incurred loss model) on
trade balances based on provision matrix. In this regard, the directors of the

Company consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

e MR R

For the year ended December 31,2018
BZ-Z—)\+-A=t-BLIFE

SRMIAE)
BHEABREEERREE(E)

mE AR (E)

ET

AEERROTEFNEEE 2w BMmA
EReREFNERR AEERNRER
ENXERIEEREFEARRITN
BRI o

PHHI

FEEREBEERORENRERA
R AELHZBRA L ERETHE

fn - EEERR AKEYLEEAF

REREE - MU E2FIGRE D -

nl

EERBRBETE

AEEREHAEANBERIRARE
ERBEAELRESBEHEE (NS
PHEARBRARE) - AEELBRHE
ERERRAEMEERARE - AR
HEREBEERBEERR -

ELHEFPENIKE 2 B 5N EN

AREEERKE AEEEEERIET

EFEEEEREREREESE] - R
BEMEMBELA - ARERARNIDE
BEAOGIETEEERPNEELEE
VTREXPHMEERSE HEFPNBE
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EERF  UBEREDBERERLDES
HER - o RERBBHMBREE
BIE 9%k - AEBENBEERRIER
HEEBEEEA (S5 BELEE
BIRN)HE HEMETRERRE - Bt

EARAIEERA FEEZEE
BB E AR K

Annual Report 2018 F£# 183



IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended December 31,2018
BE_Z\F+_A=1—BLFE

27.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 27. £WMIAE)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) REREERERBK(E)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued) EERE R ETE(E)
The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment comprises the following AEE 2 NEMEE RS RATEBEN
categories: TR :
Internal
credit rating Description Trade receivables Other financial assets
ABEEFR  HHA 85 BUUR HittEmEE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does Lifetime ECL — [2m ECL
not have any past-due amounts not credit-impaired
e HFHBREORR - BIEEMBHFKEA RERHEEBE- +-EABRMEEEAR
Y EELEERE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates Lifetime ECL — I2m ECL
but usually settle after due date not credit-impaired
BRRE BEBARBHBRALER  EREREHA ROBHEERE- T_HEABRMEEER
®izE Y EELEERE
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired
since initial recognition through information not credit-impaired

developed intemnally or external resources
a] & BB HERANE BN 2 5 % 2 BURSINED RERBEERRE- KEEREEBRR-TEELSR
B FERRENFERARL EEREM WEELEERE (e

Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired  Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired
credit-impaired

BB FEBRAAEELEERE REBHMEEBE- KROIBHNCEEBERE-BELEE
ELEERE R

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor Amount is written off  Amount is written off

is in severe financial difficutty and the Group
has no realistic prospect of recovery

Ji 56 BEBRABHEABARENBREE - TR M
BEARSEYERENHEE 6 -

184  Annual Report 2018 F3§



27.

IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R
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BZ-Z—)\+-A=t-BLIFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 27. £WMIAE)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) REREERERBK(E)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued) EERE R ETE(E)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group's financial assets, TREMASEeREE(BETHEBE
which are subject to ECL assessment: EEENL) 2 EERBALE
External Internal 12m of
2018 Note creditrating  credit rating  Lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount
TZEAR
—B-N\F ME SMBEENR AREETR KAFBRHEEHR ARREE

HK$ million  HK$ million
BEEET ABY¥EER

Financial assets at amortised cost

REBERASIIREHEE
Bank balances N/A (Note 1) [2m ECL
RITEE 19 TEA GELD) T EABRHEERR 223 23
Other receivables N/A (Note 2) [2m ECL
Hit EURIR 8 TEm (Ff5E2) T EARBEERER 25 25
Trade receivables N/A (Note 3) Lifetime ECL
(provision matrix)
B HRARR 18 TER (F5E3) REBMEEER 458
(Bfmr)
(Note 3) Credit impaired
(HiaE3) ELEERE 15.0 60.8

Annual Report 2018 £# 185



IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended December 31,2018
BEZZ—/\§T-A=1+—HIEE

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)
Notes:

[ For bank balances, the management considered the credit risk has not increased
significantly since the initial recognition. According to the historical observed default

rates of bank balances, the average loss rate is immaterial.

2. For other receivables, the management individually assessed whether the credit risk
increased significantly since the initial recognition. Based on the assessment, the Group

considered the credit risk has not increased significantly since the initial recognition.

3. For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to
measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Except for debtors with credit-impaired,
the Group determines the expected credit losses on these items by using a provision

matrix, grouped by intemal credit rating.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

As part of the Group's credit risk management, the Group applies internal credit
rating for its customers. The following table provides information about the
exposure to credit risk and loss allowance for trade receivables which are assessed
collectively based on provision matrix as at December 31, 2018 within lifetime ECL
(not credit impaired). As at December 31, 2018, the credit-impaired debtors with

gross carrying amounts of HK$ 5.0 million were assessed individually.

Internal credit rating

27.

e MR R

For the year ended December 31,2018
BE=F—\FtoA=t-ALEE
SMIA(E)
BREBRERBRRIK(E)

EERBRBETE(E)

ERASBREERMER 2 —#H X
ERUERPETANEENR - TX
RUEEHECERBRAERE S EIERER
BREEE/ BN EHERBHEDRE
KERREEBEAR S —\F+=
A=+—BzREERARETTHOE
EELGERE) RZT-N\F+=A
=+—RB AREEREYK S0BET
ZEEGERE BKERRTERIET
i o

Gross
Average carrying Impairment
loss rate amount loss allowance

R ERE B RFAR FHERZR BREE HEBRRE
HK$ million  HK$ million
BEBRERT BYEER
Low risk (e * 12.8 —
Watch list BRRE 15.9% 19.7 3
Doubtful R 45.8% 133 6.1
45.8 9.2

& According to the historical observed default rates of the expected life of the low risk * REEREEREREREH 2 BE

debtors, the average loss rate is immaterial.

EERROX  YHBERXYTE
*x o
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical observed default
rates over the expected life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort. The grouping is regularly
reviewed by management to ensure relevant information about specific debtors is

updated.

During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Group provided HK$8.7 million
impairment allowance for trade receivables, based on the provision matrix.
Impairment allowance of HK$15.0 million were made on credit impaired debtors,

which have either been paced under liquidation or in financial difficulties.

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that has been recognised

for trade receivables under the simplified approach.

27.

SRMIAE)
BHEABREEERREE(E)

EERBRBETE(E)

fhat R E DERER AR F HHE
ESERAGEORMGS L BAR
BB A BRI 5 2 Al bE 1 & K
ETHE - EEEBEHEN D BURERK
BRRTEBAZBAENGAER

BE-_Z-/\F+-A=1+—-BL#HF
B AEECRBEEGEERESEK
B GHRRERGEERs7TBEET - Bt
EEGEREZEBA(RESRIEY
BREMBRE)ELREREEE 1508

e —

BT °

TRBTIREGLEIACHESREE
R R GEREEERED

Lifetime ECL Lifetime

(not credit-  ECL (credit-

impaired) impaired) Total
RERSY RE
FEER BAAEE

(TEEE BRELE

FERE) FERHE) BE
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BREET EBWEERT #EWEER

As at January I, 2018 - As restated R-ZZ—/\&—H—H
—R&7 1.2 23.1 243

Changes due to financial instruments RZZE-N\F-A—B®ER

recognized as at January |, 2018: JERMIAEACEE :

— Transfer to credit-impaired -BREELEERE (0.7) 0.7 —

— Write-offs —Hiss — (10.4) (10.4)

New financial assets originated during the year RERNBEEZHERMEE 8.7 1.6 10.3
As at December 31,2018 NZF—\f+-A=1—H 9.2 15.0 242
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 27.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Changes in the loss allowance for trade receivables are mainly due to:

e MR R

For the year ended December 31,2018
BZ-Z—)\+-A=t-BLIFE

SRMIAE)
BHEABREEERREE(E)

EERBRBETE(E)

BHREERERREES T RAN

December 31,2018
~“F-N\FT=A=1-H
Increase/(decrease) in lifetime ECL

BMEEBEEN (D)

Not
credit-impaired  Credit-impaired
TRELFERE ELEFEHE
HK$ million HK$ million
BEHER BEEET
Three trade debtors with a gross carrying RZE-NF+-A=+—RKHEE
amount of HK$ 0.7 million defaulted and REREROTABLL=2EH
transferred to credit-impaired as EREFEENTEREE
at December 31,2018 EXEERE (0.7) 07

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a level
of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management to finance
the Group's operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of borrowings and ensures compliance with

|oan covenants.

The following table details the Group's remaining contractual maturity for its
financial liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. For non-derivative financial
liabilities, the table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required
to pay. The maturity dates for other non-derivative financial liabilities are based on

agreed repayment dates. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

RBETEE

REERBDECARTE  EEERA
AEEEERRERRAIRERER
ReBAKY  MEHERARELE XS
FIBECEERABASREND ¥
£ TEHEEREEZERRBRLRER
ERERED -

TRFFIRBRASNERGR  FEE
TRAGBZH TRNEHMA - BIFTE
ERAEMNS - ZRDBREZAKET
BEZHFEMHECERAGB IR
ARERERR - 1A RAR
ZABMBARERE ZENRE - ZKRE
RAURRAENHERE
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BEZZ—/\§T-A=1+—HIEE

27.

190

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Liguidity and interest risk tables

27. &RIEE)

BHEABREEERREE(E)

RBELmE(E)

REET RFFEBR

Weighted
average  On demand Total Carrying
effective or within 3 months undiscounted  amount at
interest rate 3 months to | year Over | year  cash flows year end
MEFY  BEXH =faR AERRE
BBRNZE  ZfEAR E-F  -FHLE  RELE FAREE
%  HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million
% AMEEnT BYERn BRWEER EWEER AWEER
2018 —E-N\F
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ 974 SMEE
Trade and other payables ERERREMENE - 104.9 - - 104.9 104.9
Borrowing fE 8.0 — 39.7 — 39.7 343
Loan from a shareholder BRER — — — 374 374 325
104.9 39.7 374 182.0 171.7
2017 “FtF
Non-derivative financial liabilities FTESRAR
Trade and other payables FERTBRSN R ALt SR — 1185 — — 1185 1185
Borrowing EE 8.0 — 369 — 369 355
1185 36.9 - 155.4 154.0
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on

discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors consider that the carrying amount of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements

approximates to their fair values.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities is that for which cash flow was, or future cash flow will be, classified in the

Group's consolidated statement of cash flow as cash flow from financing activities.

27.

28.

e MR R

For the year ended December 31,2018
BZ-Z—)\+-A=t-BLIFE
SMIA(E)
AFE

REFERAFEZ2REERERERE
ZRFEDRBEARARERED TR
ERNARTERLETE -

EERARNGAMBIMER D UEHKA
ARz EMEENERAB RABEE
HEAFEMEE -

METHELREYE

TREINASEARERDTEL AR
ZEH(BRATLFRASEY)FE
BEREZDMELANBERAKENRSG
AREREXRVBABELDMERS

MENREREIAKRERE -

Loan from
a shareholder Borrowing Total
BRREM fa= B
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEEERT A¥EER BYEER
At | January 2017 RZE—+F—-H—H = = =
Financing cash flow BEHRERE — 353 353
Finance cost B E AR — 0.2 0.2
At 31 December 2017 RZF—+tF+=-A=+—H — 355 355
Financing cash flow RMERERE 325 ©.1) 324
Foreign exchange loss INEE K 2B 1R — (12) (12)
Finance cost B — 32 32
At December 31,2018 RZZ-NF+=A=+—H 325 374 69.9
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BEZZ—/\§T-A=1+—HIEE

29. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 29, REHERE T8
The Group as lessee FEBERFEEA

RBEHR  AERERBEFATHE K
EHNEERR=ZRFHH)HRR
REBOMFAENT :

At the end of the reporting period, the Group was committed to make the
following future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases,

the terms of which is three to five years, fall due as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$ million HK$ million
BEEER BERET
Rented premises MEME
Within one year —ER 234 19.3
In the second to fifth year inclusive —ERFEN(BREEME) 55 230
28.9 423
The Group as lessor AEBEERHBEA

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with tenants, which

are negotiated for terms of three to five years, for the following future minimum

RESHR ARBEEPRBMENE
AR BBR=-ZREHE  ARKE

lease payments in respect of factory premises: BHNTET -
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$ million HK$ million
REEEER BEBET

Rented premises HEME

Within one year —ER 14.9 79
In the second to fifth year inclusive “ERFN(BEEERREF) 35 168
18.4 247
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e MR R

For the year ended December 31,2018
BZ-Z—)\+-A=t-BLIFE

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30. BEAIRZ
Apart from the transactions and the balances with related parties disclosed Rt SHREHBREAMEHF RN A
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, the Group also entered into ERGREBI AEERFAZHEB
the following significant transaction with related parties during the year: ERETUTERRS
2018 2017
—g-N\F  —F—+tF
HK$ million HK$ million

REEET BEEET

Consignment commission fee & TR XK EMe (fiaT)
to certain related parties (Note) 0.5 0.6
Note: These related parties are the fellow subsidiaries of one shareholder, Jiangsu Hongtu izt : ZEBMAIRR—RRL - IHLE
High Technology Co., Ltd. BRHARA A
The remuneration of directors and other members of key management during the EEREMTEEEEREF NN T
year was as follows: (N
2018 2017
—B-N\F —B—+F
HK$ million HK$ million
BEHERT BERET
- Salaries, allowances and other benefits —5&  REREMBEHN 1.5 18.1
- Retirement benefits scheme contributions — RN AIFT 24 0.7 0.7
122 18.8
The remuneration of directors and other members of key management is EERHEMTEZERABZMEmT M
determined by the remuneration committee having regard to the performance of ZBERMERNA LT ZRERTSEHBK
individuals and market trends. TEE

Annual Report 2018 F£# 193



IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended December 31,2018
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31.  PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 31.

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company's principal subsidiaries, are all
indirectly wholly owned by the Company except Huger Electronics GmbH which
is 99.83% indirectly owned by the Company. Details of the Company's principal

subsidiaries at December 31, 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

Nominal value

TENBAT
RZE-NEFRZZT—+F+_A
ST-HARAISEFENBRATHAR
ARIEEEEEE » M Huger Electronics
GmbH (2% 722 &) A & 1 A 99.83%) BR 51 ©
ARAFEMNBRAR-Z-NEFR=
E—tF+ZA=+—BZHBOT :

of issued
Place of incorporation/ ordinary share/
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital Principal activities
ERTEE

WEAR LM R AR LB i B ROEE ZMEEX FEXH
Cheer Win Electronics (Shenzhen) the PRC US$4,440,000 Manufacture and sales

Co, Ltd. H 4,440,000 7T of consumer electronic products

BRHEF(RY)BRAR SUENHERTHEEM

(Note)
RHEF (&) BRAAF

(Ff5E)

IDT Technology Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Trading of consumer electronic products
ERRER LA B BT RHETHEEM
BREF(RINBRAA the PRC HK$35,000,000 Manufacture of consumer electronic

(Note) H 75 #35,000,0007T products and plastic parts and provision
BEET (R ARAF of surface mount technology

GEY assembly services
SUEBTIRBERNREBRM R
REREE AR

Oregon Scientific France SARL.  France EURT,000,000 Marketing and distribution of consumer
Oregon Scientific France SARL ~ J&E 1,000,000% 7T electronic products
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of subsidiary

Place of incorporation/

establishment

31.

Nominal value
of issued
ordinary share/

registered capital

e MR R

For the year ended December 31,2018
BZ-Z—)\+-A=t-BLIFE

TEMBAR(E)

Principal activities

ERTER

WEAREM R, FR 3 4 B ROEE ZMEE FEXH

Oregon Scientific Global Hong Kong HK$2 Marketing and distribution of consumer
Distribution Limited BB AETT electronic products

B SRIRIAR AR EERDHETHEER

Oregon Scientific Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$500,000 Marketing and distribution of consumer
Limited B8 7 #500,0007T electronic products

R I YNG] HERDHETFHBED

Oregon Scientific Italia S.p.A [taly EUR2,156,000 Marketing and distribution of consumer

Oregon Scientific Italia Sp.A BEXRA 2,156,000 Z& electronic products

HERDHEFHEEM

Oregon Scientific Smartliving Hong Kong HK$2 Marketing and distribution of consumer

Limited BB ABETT electronic products

BRAGEESEEERAR

Note: These are wholly foreign owned enterprises established in the PRC.

All of the above subsidiaries operate principally in their respective place of

incorporation/establishment.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of

the directors, principally affect the results or assets of the Group. To give details

of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of

excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities outstanding at the end of

the year.

EERDHETHEER
et : RPERIZE2NELE -

bR F EME QR FE BEE T MK
3R E

FRRILESRAUAECERERE
EBREERVECLHMEBRAR - EERAAR
wF AR5 B L P B A Rl 2 BRI T
E o

RAERA  AHBATYRETNF
BEZEHES -
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31.  PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other subsidiaries that are

not material to the Group. Details of these subsidiaries are summarised as follows:

Principal activities

IRED

Principal place of business

EBHTERHY

31.

IEHBATE)

WRESK  AATRAL MY ALEE
YRERHHBAT - ZEWEA T
SHEBRIT -

Number of subsidiaries

WEAREE
2018 2017

—EB-N\F —E—+F

Marketing and distribution

of consumer electronic products:

HEROHEFHEER -

Marketing and distribution of wellness

and beauty products:

ERRDBRENEBER
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BZ-Z—)\+-A=t-BLIFE

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 3. XEWBARE)
Principal activities Principal place of business Number of subsidiaries
IRED FRENTEBH WEARHE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
Trading of consumer electronic products: Hong Kong | |
BEETHEEM &0
Japan |
A&
Trading of telecommunication products: Hong Kong |
BEERAER B0
Investment holding: Singapore |
REER : I
Provision of group administrative services: Hong Kong |
RUEETHRS - B0
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 32. BAREE

An indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Oregon Scientific Brasil Ltd,,

was involved in a tax dispute with the State of Sao Paulo, the Federative Republic

of Brazil, which may cause a maximum tax payment including penalty and interest

of approximately Brazilian Real 3.6 million (equivalent to approximately HK$7.3

million). After seeking the independent legal advice, the directors of the Company

consider that the outcome and the amount of final payment, if any, are uncertain,

and no provision has been made in the consolidated financial statements.

ARF KRB E 2 EM B2 FOregon
Scientific Brasil Ltda 2205 FaB F L FIE 2
REMNBETRBAL B RE N
ERR(EEIeRFENR36AER
AECER)EERNBETIIBET) -
THABLEZRERE  KAARESER
RERREENREE(NE )L T5#
- BUERNRA MBS RERELRE -
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BEZZ—/\§T-A=1+—HIEE

33.  FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY ARRNHEEN
Financial information of the Company at the end of the reporting period includes: RI|EBR - ARERNMBERBRE
2018 2017
—E-N\F “E—+tF
HK$ million HK$ million
BEHERT BERETL
Non-current asset ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NREPNGEEOY: £ — 1744
Current assets MEEE
Other receivables Hff fE shIR 05 05
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRES — 02
0.5 0.7
Current liabilities mEBE
Other payables Hfth e 5008 .1 34
Amounts due to subsidiaries ENMELRIEE 5.0 =
Net (liabilities) assets (BfR)EEHE (5.6) 1717
Capital and reserves BRA K
Share capital BRA 260.0 2600
Reserves f#E (265.6) (883)
(5.6) 1717
Reserves of the Company RRRREE
Share  Accumulated
premium losses Total
R4 5B R E1E BE
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEEBT BYEERT HEWEER
At January 1,2017 R-ZE—+F—H—H 165.0 (141.3) 237
Loss and total comprehensive expenses for the year A EBBEREZERAXEE — (112.0) (112.0)
At December 31,2017 RZE—+F+-A=+—H 165.0 (2533) (88.3)
Loss and total comprehensive expenses for the year ~ ANEFZ E1E Kk 2 Ff S 45 — (177.3) (177.3)
At December 31,2018 RZZ-\F+A=+—H 165.0 (430.6) (265.6)

198  Annual Report 2018 F#§



IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIRER AR

Group Financial Summary

SR BEHME

For the year ended December 31,2018
BZ-Z—)\+-A=t-BLIFE

Nine-month Year ended

period ended March 31,

December 31, =

Year ended December 31, 015 =A=+-H
tTZAZ+-HLEFE BE_T-1F IR:354

2018 2017 016 +=A=1+-H 2015
ZE-)\F “B—tF —ERE IENER “T-1F
HK$'M HK$M HK$™M HK$M HK$M

EREER EREET EREETL AREET EREET

RESULTS LS

Revenue B 4332 5166 565.0 5366 [,100.4

Loss before taxation BREAIER (2033) (85.7) (620) (86.1) (57.2)

Taxation HE (123) - (20) .1 (9.8)

Loss for the year/period AEE/BHEE (215.6) (85.7) (64.0) (86.2) (67.0)

Attributable to : ATFATRESR :

Owners of the Company ARAEEA (215.6) (85.7) (64.0) (86.2) (67.0)

Non-controlling interests R ER - - - - -
(215.6) (85.7) (64.0) (86.2) (67.0)

Loss per share BREE

—Basic -2 (8.29) HK cents  (3.30) HK cents  (246) HK cents  (3.32) HK cents ~ (2.59) HK cents

AR gl gl gl gl
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SEYBHME

For the year ended December 31,2018
BEZZ—/\§T-A=1+—HIEE

As at December 31,

As at March 31,

Wt=B=t-H R=A=1-H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2015
“B-N\E It o3 ZERE 0% —Z-1F
HK$'M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEBEER AERET BEBEET BEBET AEAET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Total assets BaE 2152 408.| 4145 5195 655.7
Total liabilties Baf (258.2) (2284) (145.1) (188.0) (2457
(43.0) 179.7 2694 315 4100
Fquity attributable to owners ARAEEA (43.1) 179.6 269.3 3314 4099
of the Company FElhER
Non-controlling interests FiRER 0.l 0.l 0. 0. 0l
(43.) 179.7 2694 315 4100
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